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Selected key consolidated financial data

Preliminary comments:

Vivendi deconsolidated GYT, SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from May 28, 2015, November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014,
and October 11, 2013, respectively, i.e., the date of their effective sale by Vivendi. In compliance with IFRS 5, these businesses have been
reported in Vivendi's Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued operations for all relevant periods as set out in the table of selected
key consolidated financial data below in respect of data contained in the Consolidated Statement of Eamings and Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows.

‘fear ended Decamber 31, _
2015 214 2013 2012 2011

Consolidated dats
Revenues 10,762 10,089 10,252 9,597 9,064
EBT 1,231 736 637 {1131} 1,269
Eamings attributable to Vivend: SA shargowners 1932 4,744 1,967 179 2,681

of which eamings from tontinuing operations attritkrtable to Vivendi SA sharecwners 699 (290} 43 (1,565) 51
Income from operations (a} 1,081 1.108 1131 na na
EBITA (3) 842 999 955 1,074 1,088
Adjusted net income (a} 597 626 454 s 270
Net Cash Pestton/{Financial Net Debt) (a) 6,422 4637 {11,097} 13,419 {12,027}
Total equrty 21,086 22,988 19,030 21,291 22,070

of which Vivendi SA shareowners' equity 20,854 22,606 17 457 18,325 19,447
Cash flow from operations (CFFO) (a) 892 843 894 846 897
Cash fiow from operations after interest and income tax paid {CFAIT} (a} {69} 421 503 172 826
Financial investments {3.927) [1,244) {107 11,669} {289)
Financial divestments 5,013 17,807 34N 201 4,205
Dividends paid by Vivandi SA to its shareholders 2727 b 1,348 (o 1,325 1.245 1731
Per sharg data
Weighted average numbar of shares outstanding 1.3615 1,345.8 1,330.6 1,2989 12814
Adjusted net income per share D51 0.48 o 024 [1F4]
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the period (excluding treasury shares} 1.342.3 1,351.6 13396 13225 12874
Equity per share, attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 1554 1673 1303 13.86 1511
Dividends per share paid 200 () 100 o 1.00 100 140

In millions of euros, number of shares in millions, data per share in euros.
na: not applicable,

a  The non-GAAP measures of Income from operations (a measure of the operating performance of business segments recently appiied by
Vivendi Management), EBITA, Adjusted net income, Net Cash Position {or Financial Net Debt), Cash flow from operations {CFFO} and
Cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid (CFAIT) should be considered in addition to, and not as a substitute for,
other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the related
Notes, or as described in this Financial Report. Vivendi considers these to be relevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial
performance. Each of these indicators is defined in the appropriate section of this Financial Report or in its Appendix. In addition, it
should be noted that other companies may have different definitions and calculations for these indicators from Vivendi, thereby
affecting comparability.

b. Helates to the ordinary dividend paid on April 23, 2015 with respect to fiscal year 2014 (E1 per share, i.e., €1,363 million), and the
intenm dividend paid on June 29, 2015 with respect to fiscal year 2015 (€1 per share, i e., £1,364 million).

¢.  On June 30, 2014, Yivendi SA paid an ordinary dividend of €1 per share to its shareholders from additional paid-in capital, treated as a
return of capital distribution to sharehoiders.
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Nota:

In accordance with European Commission Regulation (EC) 809/2004 (Article 28) which sets out the disclosure obligations for issuers of securities

Iisted on a regulated market within the European Union (implementing Directive 2003/71/EC, the “Prospectus Regulation”), the following items are

incorporated by reference inta this report

e 2014 Financial Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, prepared under [FRS and the related
Statutory Auditors’ Report presented on pages 158 to 293 of the "Document de Référence” No. D.15-0135, filed with the French Autorité des
Marchés Financiers {AMF) on March 13, 2015, and on pages 158 to 293 of the English translation of this “Document de Référence”, and

+ 2013 Financial Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, prepared under IFRS and the related
Statutory Auditors” Report presented on pages 172 to 324 of the "Document de Référence” No. D.14-0355, filed with the french Autorité des
Marchés Financiers {AMF) on Aprit 14, 2014, and on pages 172 to 324 of the English transation of this “Document de Référence”.
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1- 2015 Financial Report

Preliminary comments:

s OnFebruary 10, 2018, the Management Board approved the Financial Report and the Audited Consoltdated Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2015. Upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, which met on February 11, 2018, the Supervisory
Board, at its meeting held on February 18, 2016, reviewed the Financial Report and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for
the year ended December 31, 2015, as approved by the Management Board on February 10, 2016.

e The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 have been audited and certified by the Statutory Auditors
without qualified opinion. The Statutory Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements is included in the preambie to the
Financial Statements.

Overview

Acceleration of international expansion
in 2015, Vivendi continued to develop its international activities which now account for close to 60% of its revenues.

The group is the world leader in recorded music holding a 34% global market share’ in 2014. The faunch of new offerings by global, regionat
and locad players as well as new entrants in digital music provide Universal Music Group with opportunities to expand into new markets

Vivend: has 11.2 milkion pay-TV individual subscribers, of which 5.5 million are lecated outside mainland France. In perticular, Canal+ Group
now has more than 2 million individual subseribers in over 30 countries in Africa where, after faunching the African entertainment
channel A+ in October 2014, 1t continued to expand its offer by adding 25 additional channels in 2015.

The film and television production and distribution activities are driven in particular by Studiocanal, the leading European studio, which
continues its geographical expansion by entering into agreements in the United Kingdom and in Scandinavia in 2015, and by strengthening
its presence in the North American market.

In addition, with the acquisition of Dailymotion, one of the world's largest video platforms (3.5 billion videos viewed sach month), Vivendi
increased its digital distribution capacity, resulting in an acceleration of its international development.

In recent months, Vivendi also confirmed its willingness to invest in Southern Europe, a market that shares its Latin culture and roots. As of
December 31, 2015, it held 21.4% of Telecom ltalia’s common shares and 0.95% of Telefonica. In December 2015, as a iong-term
shareholder, the group successfully proposed the appointment of four members to the Board of Directors of the Italian telecoms operator, of
which three are Vivendi representatives and one is an independent member.

The investment in Telecom Italia represents an opportunity for the group to be present and to expand in @ market with significant growth
prospects and a very strong appetite for quality content. In pursuit of its investment strategy in Latin content, Vivendi is exploring
opportunities to invest in several production companies in Southern Europe.

Development of original content production

The development of original content production, which reduces Vivendi's dependence on third-parties, is being achieved by the continuous
investment in artists and talent, by multiplying original production projects and by the acquisition of interests in production companies.

Vivendi relies on its own in-house production capabilities: Canal+ (the Création originale label), Studiocanal (cinema and series), Flab Prod,
Studio+ and Can't Stop, companies acquired in the first half of 2015 (non-scripted television shows), Studio Bage! {short web-based content)
and Universal Music Grotp labels.

Vivend will acquire a 26.2% interest in Banijay Zodiak, one of the largest independent producers and distributors of television programs in
the world, resulting from the combination of Banijay Group and Zodiak Media. The transaction will be finalized shortly. The group also
acquired a 30% interest in Mars Films, a French leader in film proguction and distribution.

! Saurce : Music & Copynght

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 Vivendi /6



Friday, February 19, 2016

The need to stop losses of Canal+ channels in France

The six Canal+ channels? have been losing money in France for the last four years With a subscriber base that has been severely eroded
since 2012, the channels recorded a negative EBITA of £264 million in 2015, a €76 million loss increase compared to 2014. The arrival of new
national and international players in the areas of sports and fiction caused a surge in the price of content broadcasting rights and has
increased the number of competing offers, leading to greater losses.

This situation threatens the entire Canal+ Group, which employs 8,200 people and is a major player in the financing and development of the
movie industry, in which it invests globally close to €800 million per year both in France {French cinema agreements renewed in spring 2015}
and intemnationally.

The priority for the new management team put in place last summer is to implement a major transformation plan in order to return to break-
even. This plan must ensure that the subscriber's perceived value of the group's offers is restored by increasing investment in original
content production and premium content as well as by improving significantly the user experience, all in an essential cost-efficient manner.

Vivendi cannot on a long term basis continue to finance the osses of Canal+ channels in France. Over the past two years, the group has
already invested €1.5 billion in Canal+ in France (acquisition in October 2013 of the 20% interest in Canal+ France held by Lagardére and
pubtic tender offer for Société d'Edition de Canal Plus (SECP) shares in May 2015) and investments will remain substantial in the medium
term, both in content and in technology.

For a detailed description of the significant events that occurred 1n 2015, as well as the subsequent events, please refer to Notes 2 and 27,
respectively, to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015.

1 Earnings analysis: Group and Business segments

Preliminary comments:

* [ncome from operations, EBITA and adjusted net income. non-GAAP measures, should be considered in addition to, and not as a
substitute for, other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements and
the refated Notes, or as described in the Financial Report. Vivendi considers these to be relevant indicators of the group’s operating and
financial performance.

Vivendi Management uses income from operations, EBITA and adjusted net income for reporting, management, and planning purposes
because they provide a better illustration of the underlying performance of continuing operations by excluding most non-recurring and
non-pperating items.

The difference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acquirad through business combinations,
the impairment of goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, and EBIT's “other charges” and “other
income” as defined in Note 1.2.3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015.

As defined by Vivendi, income from operations is calculated as EBITA as presented in the Adjusted Statement of Eamings, before
share-based compensation costs related to equity-settfed plans, and special items due to their unusual nature or particular
significance.

Moreover, it should be noted that other companies may have different definitions and calculations for these non-GAAP measures from
Vivendi, thereby affecting comparability.

» In compliance with IFRS 5, SFR and Maroc Telecom group (sofd in 2014). as well as GVT (sofd on May 28, 2015) have been reported as
discontinued operations. In practice, income and charges from these businesses have been reportad as follows:

their contribution, until their effective divestiture, to each line of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earnings (before non-
controliing interests) has been reported on the line “Earnings from discontinued aperations”,

any capftal gain recognized as a result of a completed divestiture is recorded under the line “Earnings from discontinued
operations”, and

their share of net income and the capital gain recognized as a result of a completed divestiture have been excluded from Vivendi's
adjusted net income.

? Relates to the six premium channels: Camals, Canals Cinéma, Canal+ Sport, Canals Séries, Canal+ Family and Canal+ Décalé
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1.1 Consolidated Statement of Earnings and Adjusted Statement of

ADJUSTED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

Earnings
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS
Revenues
Cost of revenues

Selling. gereral and administrative expenses excluding
amortization of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations

Restructunng charges

Amgruzation of intangible assets acquired through business

combinatans

Impairment losses on itangibte assets acquired through

busingss combinations

Other income

Other charges

EBIT

Income from equity affiliates

Interest

Income from investments

Other financial income

Other financial charges

Eernings from coatinuing operations before provision

for income taxas

Prowvision for income taxes

Eavrnings from continuing operations

Earmungs from discontinued operations

Earnings

Of which

Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners
continaing operations
discontinued operations

Nen-controlling interests

Esrnings stributable to Vivendi SA shareownera per
share - hasic (in suros)

Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per
share - diluted (in euros)

In millions of euros, except per share amounts.

1.2 Earnings analysis: Group

Year ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
2015 2014 2015 014
10,762 10,009 10.762 10,089 Revenues
{6.555) 6121} 16.555) (6,121} Cost of revenues
{3.163) {2,865) [3,148) {2,860) Selling, general and administrative expenses excluding
amorbzation of intangible assets acquired through business
cembinations
1061 1108 Income from operations
{102} {104) (102) {104} Restructunng charges
{1 {5) OCther cperating chages and income
{408} {344)
(3} {92)
745 103
w
1.531 1% s 939 EBITA
{10} {18) [10) {18} Income from equity affiliates
(30} {96) (30) (96 Interest
52 k] 52 3 [ncome from investments
18 19
{73 {751}
1,786 {107} 954 888 Adjusted earnings from continuing operations before
provision for income taxes
{441} {130} {199) {700} Prowisien for Income taxes
s [F=i])
1,233 5,262
1978 173 75 Adjusted net income before non-cantrolling interests
Of which
1,932 4,184 687 626  Adjusted net incoms
(2501
1,233 5034
48 281 58 62 Non-controlling interests
142 352 051 0.46 Adjusted net income per share - hasic (in euros)
14 35 0.51 0.46 Adjusted net income per share - diluted {in euros}

1.21

Analysis of Adjusted net income and Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners

In 2015, adjusted net income was a €697 million profit (or €0.51 per share), compared to €626 mitlion in 2014 {or €0.46 per share), a
€71 million increase {+11.3%). The change in adjusted net income mainly resulted from the decrease in interest expense {(+€66 million} and
the increase in income from investments (+£49 million), partially offset by the decrease in EBITA {-£57 million). As a reminder, pursuant to
the application of IFRS 5 to SFR and Maroc Tetecom group (businesses sold in 2014), as well as GVT (sold on May 28, 2015), the Adjusted
Statement of Earnings includes the results of Canal+ Group, Universal Music Group, Vivendi Village and New Initiatives’ operations, as well

as Corporate costs.

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015
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Adjusted net income per share
Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

Adjustod netincome {in millions of euros) 697 697 626 626
Number of shares (in millions)

Weughted average number of shares outstanding {a} 13615 13615 13458 13458
Potental dilutive effects related to share-based compensation - 53 - 55
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 13615 1.366.8 13458 13513
Adjusted netincome per share (in euros) 11 051 046 (46

a. Net of the average number of treasury shares: 1.6 million shares in 2015, compared to 0.4 million in 2014

In 2015, eamings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners were a €1,932 million profit {or €1.42 per share), compared to €4,744 miliion
{or €3.52 per share} in 2014,

1.22 Reconciliation of earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners to adjusted net income

Year ended December 31,
{m millions of euros) 2015 2014
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners {a) 1,932 4,744
Adjustrnents
Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations 408 344
impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations {a) 3 9z
Other income (a) (745} (203}
Other charges (a} 45 30
Other financial income {a) {16) {19)
Other financiat charges (al 73 751
Eamings from discontinued operations {a) {1,233) {5,262}
Of which capital gain on the divestiture of GVT, after taxes paid in Brazif {1.423) -
capital loss on the divestiture of Telefonica Brasil 294 -
capital gain on the divestiture of SFR - {2,378}
capital gain on the divestiture of Maroc Telecom group - {7861
capital gam on the sale of 41.5 million Activision Blizzard shares - 54
Change in deferred tax asset related to Vivendi SA's French Tax Group and to the
Consolidated Globa! Profit Tax Systems 229 37
Non-recurring items related to provision for income taxes 145 5
Provision far income taxes on adjustments (132) {112}
Non-controlling interests on adjustments 12} 213
Adjusted net income 697 626

a  Asreported in the Consolidated Statement of Earrings.
123 Detailed analysis of the main items from the Statement of Eamings

Revenues were £10,762 million, compared to £10,08% million in 2014 (+6.7%. or +1.4% at constant currency and perimeter’). As a result of
the appreciation of the U.S. dollar (USD} and the British pound (GBP) against the euro (EUR) in 2015, revenues included a €473 million
favorable impact, primarily attributable to Universal Music Group, as well as the litigation settlement proceeds in the United States at
Universal Music Group {+E56 millign).

Income from operations was £1,061 million, compared to €£1,108 million in 2014, a €47 million decrease (-4.3%). At constant currency and
perimeter, income from operations decreased by €65 million (-5.9%).

The decline of Canal+ Group (€76 milhon), notably reflecting increased investment in contents and a positive non-recurring impact in 2014
related to a litigation settiement, and the impact of the integration of developing activities within New Initiatives (-€18 milflion), were

? Constant perimeter reflects the impacts of the acquisitions of Thema (Gctober 28, 2014) and Dailymotion {June 30, 2015].
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partialty offset by the improved operating performance of Vivendi Village (+844 million), mainly associated with Watchever's return to break-
even thanks to the transformation plan implemented during the second half of 2014

Cost of revenues amourted tg €6,555 million (compared to €6,121 million in 2014).

Selling, general and administrative expenses reported in the Adjusted Statement of Eamings amounted to €3,146 million, compared to
£2,860 million in 2014, 2 €286 million increase (+10.0%).

Depreciation and amortization of tangible and intangible assets are inciuded either in the cost of revenues or in selling, general and
administrative expenses. Depreciation and amortization, excluding amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations,
amourted to €305 million (compared to €307 million in 2014), and were notably related to Canal+ Group's set-top boxes, as well as
Studiocanal's catalogs, films and television programs.

EBITA amounted to €942 million, compared to €399 miilion in 2014, a €57 million decrease (-5.7%). At constant currency and perimeter,
EBITA decreased by €74 million (-7.4%) This decline reflected the unfavorable change in income from operations and the impact of other
operating charges and income. EBITA notably included:

* restructuring charges for €102 million, primarily incurred by Universal Music Group (€51 milfion, stable compared to 2014) and
Canal+ Group {€47 million, notably related to the new organization put in place during the second half of 2015). In 2014, restructuring
charges amounted to €104 million and included, in addition to a €50 million charge incurred by Universal Music Group, an exceptional
provision of €44 million intended as part of Watchever's transformatien plan in Germany; and

s other operating charges and income excluded from income from operations for a net charge of €17 million, compared to a
€5 million net charge in 2014. In 2015, they notably comprised : on the one hand, Universal Music Group's income from litigation
settiement proceeds in the United States (+€29 million), as well as reversals of reserves at Canal+ Group (+€22 million) and at
Corporate (+€19 milfion), and on the other hand, accruals of reserves related to litigation at Canal+ Group {-€61 million} and charges
related to equity-settied share-based compensation plans (-€16 miflion). In 2014, they notably included reversals of reserves at
Universal Music Group {+£24 million} and non-recurring profits related to pensions at Corporate (+€25 million), partially offset by
transition costs at Canal+ Group {-€15 million), EMI's integration costs at Universal Music Group {-€13 million) and charges refated to
equity-settied share-based compensation plans (-€9 million)

EBIT amounted to €1,231 million, compared to €736 miliion in 2014, a €495 million increase (+67.2%) In this amount:

« gther income and charges were a €700 million net income, compared to a €173 million net income in 2014, In 2015, they primarily
comprised the capital gain on the divestiture of the 20% interest in Numericable-SFR (€851 million, before taxes} and a reversal of
reserve related to the impairment of Canal+ Group's interest in TVN in Poland (€54 million), sold on July 1, 2015. In 2014, other
income in EBIT mainly included & capital gain on the divestiture of Universal Music Group's interest in Beats (€179 million); and

+ amortization and depreciation of intangible assets acquired through business combinations amounted to €411 miilion in
2015; amortization increased by €64 million notably as a result of the appreciation of the U.S. dollar {USD) against the euro at
Universal Music Group. In 2014, amartization and depreciation of intangible assets acquired through business combinations
amounted to €436 million and notably included the impairment of goodwill losses attributable to Digitick and MyBestPro (Wenga) for
€92 million.

Reconciliation of EBIT to EBITA and to income from operations

Yaar ended December 31,

{in milliens of euros) 2015 2014

EBIT (a} 123 736
Adjustments

Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations 408 344
Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations (a} 3 92
Other income (a) {745) (203
Other charges {a) 45 30
ERITA 942 999
Adjustments

Restructunng charges {a) 102 104
Charges related to equity-settled share-based compensation plans 16 9
Other non-curent operating charges and 1ncome i {8
Income from operations 1,061 1,108

a  Asreported in the Consolidated Statement of Eamings.

Income from equity affiliates was a €10 million loss, compared to g £18 million loss in 2014.
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Interest was an expense of £30 million, compared to €96 million in 2014, a €66 million decrease {-68.7%). In this amount:

e interest expense on borrowings amounted to €65 million (compared to €283 million in 2014} This €218 miflion decrease was

attributable for £216 million, to the decrease in the average outstanding borrowings to €2 2 illion in 2015 {compared to €9.7 billion
in 2014}, In 2015, the average interest rate on borrowings was 2.91% {compared to 2.94% in 2014). The redemption of bonds for an
aggregate amount of €5.6 biltion, including £0.9 billion at maturity date of the redeemable bonds in January 2014 and €4.7 billion in
December 2014 following the sale of SFR, resulted in interest savings of €175 million in 2015. The outstanding bonds remaining in
the Statement of Financial Position (€1,950 million as of December 31, 2015) generated a €59 million interest expense in 2015.
In addition, pursuant to the application of IFRS 5 to GVT and SR, interest expense was reported net of interest received by
Vivendi SA from financing provided to these entities, on an arm’s-length basis The interest received from GVT amounted to
€4 million in 2015, compared to €172 million received from SFR and GVT in 2014, a €168 million decrease, primarily attributable to
the sale of SFR at the end of November 2014; and

e interest income earned on Net Cash Position amounted to €31 million, compared to €15 million in 2014, This change resulted from
the increase n the average Net Cash Position to €8.8 billion in 2015 {compared to €2.1 billion in 2014) following the divestitures
occurred in 2014 (SFR, Marac Telecom) and in 2015 (GVT, Numericable-SFR).

Income from investments amounted to €52 million, compared to €3 million 1n 2014. In 2015, €26 million was attributable to interest
generated between May 6 and August 19, 2015 by the €1,948 million receivable from Altice related to the deferred payment for the sale of a
10% interest in Numericable-SFR. They also included dividends received from Activision Blizzard (€8 million, in cash) and from Telefonica
{€16 million, 1n shares).

Other financial charges and income were a €57 million net charge, compared to a €732 million net charge in 2014. In 2015, this amount
included the unfavorable change in the time value component of the coflar hedge denominated in USD on Vivendi's remaining interest in
Activision Blizzard during the second half of 2015 {-€16 million). In 2014, it mainly included the premium paid (€642 million} with respect to
the early redemption of bonds in December 2014 (€4.7 billion} following the sale of SFR.

Provision for income taxes reported to adjusted net income was a net charge of £139 million, stable compared to 2014. The effective
tax rate reported to adjusted net income was 20.6% in 2015 {compared to 22.0% in 2014}, mainly reflecting the favorable impact on tax rates
of Vivend!'s French and U.S. Tax Group Systems, as well as the favorable impact of Watchever's return to break-even in Germany, thanks to
cost management implemented since the second half of 2014

in addition, provision for income taxes reported to net income was a €441 million net charge, compared to a €130 million net charge in
2014, This €311 million increase mainly reflected the income tax payable by Vivendi SA in France related to the sale of the interests in
Numericable-SFR, GVT and Telefonica Brasil {-€187 million, net of the tax savings related to Vivendi SA's Tax Group System), as well as the
3% tax on Vivendi SA’s dividends (-€122 million, with respect to dividends of €4.1 billion). As a reminder, in addition to the ordinary dividend
of €1 with respect to fiscal year 2014 approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting of April 17, 2015, Vivendi's Management Board, in furtherance
of its commitment, approved the distribution of two nterim ordinary dividends of £1 each with respect to fiscal year 2015, following the
sales of GVT on May 28, 2015 and of the 20% interest in Numericable-SFR on May 6, 2015. The first interim dividend was paid on
June 29, 2015; the second one was paid on February 3, 2076

Earnings from continuing operations after provision for income taxes were a €745 million profit, compared to a €237 million loss in
2014, a favorable change of €982 million. In 2015, this change notably included the capital gain on the sale of the 20% interest in
Numericable-SFR (+€651 million, before taxes), partially offset by the increase in provision for income taxes {-€311 million) as a result of the
income tax paid in France related to the sale of the interests in Numericable-SFR, GVT and Telefonica Brasil (-€187 million}, as well as the
3% tax on the dividends paid in France (-€122 million). In 2014, this change mainly included the premium paid (-€642 million} with respect to
the early redemption of bonds in December 2014 following the sale of SFR.

Earmings from discontinued operations amounted to €1,233 million, compared to €5,262 million 1n 2014, In 2015, they included (i) the
capital gain on the sale of GVT on May 28, 2015 for €1,818 million, before taxes of €335 million paid in Brazil, {ii} the capital foss on
Telefonica Brasil shares (€294 million), and {iii} GVT's net eamings up until its sale for €179 million, including the impact related to the
discontinuation of the amortization of tangible and intangible assets since September 1, 2014, m comphance with IFRS 5 {+£153 million in
2015) They also comprised the remaining impact related to the sale of the 80% interest in SFR to Numericable (-£69 miflion). In 2014, they
included the capital gains on the sale of SFR (€2,378 million, after taxes), of Maroc Telecom (+€786 million, after taxes) and of the interest in
Activision Blizzard {+£84 miillion), as well as GVT, SFR and Maroc Telecom's net earnings, before non-controlling interests, for an aggregate
amount of £2,010 million, including the impact of the discontinuation of amortization of tangible and intangible assets, in compliance with
|FRS 5 (+£1,385 millign in 2014). Please refer to Note 2.11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Earnings attributable to non-contrelling interests amounted to €46 million, compared to £281 million in 2014, a €235 million decrease
mainly attributable to the sale of Maroc Telecom group on May 14, 2014, Adjusted net income attributable to non-controlling
interests amounted to €58 million, compared to €62 million in 2014, and included non-controfling interests of Société d'Edition de Canal
Plus (SECP; prior to their full acquisition by Vivendi from mid-August to the end of September 2015), Canal+ Overseas and nc+ in Poland.

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 Vivendi / 11



Friday, February 19, 2016

1.3 Performance analysis: Business segments

Year ended December 31,

% Change at

% Change at constant currency
fin millions of euros) 2015 2014 % Change constant currency  and perimeter ()
Revenues
Canal+ Group 5.513 5,456 +1.1% +0.5% H2%
Urwersal Music Group 5,108 4557 +12.1% +2.5% +2.7%
Vivench Village 100 96 +3.5% -0.2% 5%
New Initiatives 43 .
Elimination of intersegment transactions {2} {20
Total Vivendi 10,762 10.089 16.1% +2.0% +1.4%
Income from operations
Canal+ Group 542 618 -12 2% -12.3% -13.1%
Universal Music Group 526 606 +3 2% 0.9% 0.6%
Vivendi Village 10 (34 na na na
New Initiatives {18} -
Corporate {09} (82}
Total Vivendi 1 gl_ 1!1IB 4.3% -Gé%; -5.9%
EBITA
Canal+ Group 454 583 -22.1% -22.2% -23.0%
Universal Music Group 593 565 +50% +3 8% +1.0%
Vivendi Vilfage g {79} na na na
New Initiatives (20} -
Carporate {94) {20}
Total Vivendi 942 999 -5.7% -7& -71.4%

na: not applicable.

a. Constant penmeter reflects the impacts of the acquisitions of Thema by Canal+ Group on October 28, 2014, and Dailymotion {included
within New Initiatives) on June 30, 2015, as well as the transfer of L'Qlympia from UMG to Vivendi Village as from January 1, 2015.
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131 Canal+ Group

Year ended December 31,
% Change at
% Chiange at cunslan? currency
{in miflions of euros} 015 w014 % Change canstant currency and perimeter (a)
Pay-TV in Mainland france 3.383 3,454 21% 21% 21%
Of which Canal+ channels (b) 1,743 1,778 2.0% 20% 20%
Free-to-air TV in Mainland France 203 196 +3.3% +33% +3.3%
International Pay-TV 1,364 1,273 +7.2% +6.2% +H.7%
Poland 500 515 28% 2.5% 2.5%
Overseas 413 406 +1.7% +1.9% +1.9%
Africa 400 312 +28.2% +26.1% +20.0%
Vietnam 51 40 +29.3% +1.1% +11.1%
Studiocanal 563 533 +5.7% +2.3% +2 3%
Total Reveaues 5513 5,456 +1.1% +0.5% 2%
Income from operations 542 618 -122% -123% -13.1%
Income from operations’ margin 9.8% 11.3% -1.5pt
Charges related to equity-settled share-based 3 )
compensation plang
QOther special tems excluded from income from operations
{including transition and restructunng costs) {85) (32)
EBITA 54 583 -2.7% -22.2% -23.0%
LBITA margin 82% 10.7%
Of which Canal+ channels’ EBITA (b} {264) {188)
Capel+ Group's Pay-TV
Individual subseribers {in thousands)
Mainiand France 5,746 6,062 -316
International 5,495 4,986 +509
Poland 2119 2,146 27
Oversoas 499 494 +5
Africa 2073 1,552 +521
Vietnam 804 794 +10
Total Cansi+ Group 1124 11,048 +193
Subscriptiens (in thousands}
Mainland France {c) 9072 9,463 -391
Subscriptions with commitment (d} 8459 8.664 405
Canaiplay subscriptions (e} 613 599 +14
International 6.677 5,886 +791
Total Ganal+ Group 15.74% 15,349 +400
Main! -
Chum, per indiwdual subsenber with cemmitment 14.9% 14 5% +04pt
Net ARPU, in euras per indnidual subscriber with commitment M7 40 +16%
Mainland Fr ¢a-19-pir TV's audience sh
;] 34% 3.3% .1 pt
m7 12% 12% -
i>Télé 1 0% 0 9% +0 1 pt
Total 5.6% 5.4% Ham

a.  Constant perimeter reflects the impact of the acquisitien of Thema on October 28, 2014.

b Relates to the six premium channels: Canal+, Canal+ Cinéma, Canal+ Sport, Canal+ Décalé, Canal+ Family and Canal+ Séries. In 2013
and 2012, Canal+ channels' revenue amounted to €1,832 million and €1,840 million, respectively, and ts EBITA to -€130 million and
-€21 million, respectively.

Includes individual and collective subseriptions.

9,199 thousand subscriptions with commitment {Canal+ and Canalsat) as of December 31, 2013, and 9,563 thousand as of December 31,
2012,

e 335 thousand Canalplay subscriptions as of December 31, 2013, and 156 thousand as of December 31, 2012.
f. Source: Médiamétrie. Population four years and older.

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 Vivend /13



Friday, February 19, 2016

Canak Group's revenues amounted to €5,513 million, up 1 1% {(+0.2% at constant currency and perimeter) compared to 2014,

At year-end 2015, Canal+ Group had a total of 15 7 miflion subscriptions, a year-on-year increase of 460,000, driven by international markets.
The total number of individual subscribers also grew to 11.2 million compared to 11 million at the end of 2014, notably driven by Africa,
where, for the first time, the number of individual subscribers exceeded 2 miliion at year-end 2015.

Revenues from pay-1V operations in mainland France were down 2.1% year-on-year due to fewer subscriptions. Intematonal pay-TV
revenues grew significantly (+7.2%) compared to 2014, thanks to growth in the subscriber base, in particular in Africa.

Advertising revenues from free-to-air channels, up 3.3% compared to 2014, benefited from the continuously growing audience of D8, which
is once again the leading DTT channel in France and the fifth most watched French channel with a 3.4% audience share. For the population
aged 25-49 years old, D8 is the fourth most watched French channel with a 4.3% audience share.

Studiccanal's revenues grew significantly year-on-year {+5.7%, +2.3% at constant currency), thanks to the sale of film rights for recent
hox-office hits such as Paddington, Imitation Game and Shaun the Sheep, as well as the build-up of the TV series production business.

Canal+ Group's income from operations was €542 million compared to €618 million in 2014, and EBITA was €501 million {excluding
reorganization costs) compared to €583 million in 2014. This change mainly resulted from increased investment in programs, as well as
non-recurring items.

132 Universal Music Group (UMG)

Year ended December 31,
% Change at
% Change at constant curency
{in milliens of suros} 2015 04 % Change constant curency  and perimeter (a)
Recorded music 4113 3,608 +11.5% +2.2% +24%
FPhysical sales 1410 1417 45% £7% H5.7%
Digital sales 1.975 1,640 +205% +86% +#6%
of which straaming and subscriptions 954 610 +56 2% +432% +H32%
License and other 728 831 +153% +5.4% +7.1%
Music pubtishing 756 673 +12.4% +3.0% +3.0%
Merchandising and other 276 232 +19.1% +35% +35%
Elimination of intersegment transactions (37} (36)
Total Revenues 5,108 4,557 H2L1% +2.5% +2.1%
Income from operations 626 606 +3.2% £0.9% -3.6%
Income from operations' margin 12.3% 13.3% 1.0pt J4pt
Charges retated to equity-settied share-based
compensation plans 5] [2)
Special itemns excluded from mcome from operations
{ncluding integration and restructuring costs) {28) {39}
EBITA 593 565 +5.0% +0.8% +.0%
EBITA margin 116% 124%
Recorded music revenyes by geographical area
Europe 38% N%
North America 42% 39%
Asia 1% 1%
Rest of the world 9% 9%
100% 100%

a. Constant perimeter reflects the impacts of the transfer of L'Olympia from UMG to Vivendi Village as from January 1, 2015.
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Recorded music best sellers, by value (Source: MusicMari)

Year ended December 31, 2015 Year ended December 31, 2014
Artist Title Artist Title
Taylor Swift 1989 Various Artists Frozen
Justin Bieber Purpose Taylor Swift 1989
Sam Smith In The Lonely Hour Sam Smith In The Lonely Hour
The Weeknd Beauty Behind The Madness Ariana Grande My Everything
Various Artists Fifty Shades Of Grey Katy Perry PRISM
The Beatles 1+ Lorde Pure Heromne
Dreams Come True Dreams Come True The Best! Watashino Dorikamu  Imagmne Dragons Night Visions
Maroon 5 v 5 Seconds Of Summer 5 Seconds Of Summer
Drake If You're Reading This It's Too Late Margon 5 v
Helene Fischer Weihnachten fggy Azalea The New Classic

Universal Music Group’s (UMG) revenues were €5,708 million, up 2 7% at constant currency and perimeter compared t6 2014 {+12 1% on an
actual basis), driven by growth across all divisions.

Recorded music revenues grew 2.4% at constant currency and perimeter thanks to growth in subscription and streaming revenues {+43.2%)
and the recognition of legal settlement income {+£56 million), which more than offset the decline in both digital downioad and physical
sales.

Music publishing revenues grew 3.0% at constant currency, also driven by increased subscription and streaming revenues. Merchandising
and other revenues were up 3.5% at constant currency thanks to stronger retail activity.

In the United States, UMG had seven of the Top 10 albums of the year, including two of the top three with Taylor Swift's 7989 and Justin
Bieber's Purpose. In the United Kingdom, UMG had nine of the Top 20 albums of the year, including the debut from the UK.'s biggest
breakthrough artist of 2015, James Bay, and nine of the Top 20 singles, including Hozier's Take Me To Church. In Germany, UMG artist
Helene Fischer was the best-selling artist of the year for the third time in four years

Globally, recorded music best sellers for the year included strong carryover sales from Taylor Swift and Sam Smith, new releases from Justin
Bieber, The Weeknd, Drake, the Fifty Shades of Grey soundtrack, a compilation from The Beatles, as well as the Japanese band Dreams
Come True,

UMG’s income from operations was €626 mitlion, marginally down 0.6% at constant currency and perimeter compared to 2014 {+3.2% on an
actual basis). Income from operations excluded restructuring charges as well as a legal settlement income in 2015 (+£29 million), and a
reversal of provisions in 2014

UMG's EBITA was €593 million, up 1.0% at constant currency and perimeter compared to 2014 (+5.0% on an actual basis), thanks to revenue
growth, even with 2014 benefit of a reversal of provisions.
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1.3.3 Vivendi Village

Year ended December 31,

% Change at

% Change at  constant currency
{in milkons of euros) 2015 204 % Change constant currency  and perimeter {a)
Vivendi Ticketing 52 51 6% £.5% 6.5%
Watchever 16 26 -36.9% -36.9% -36.9%
MyBestPro 22 19 +14.4% +14 4% +14.4%
Olympia 10 -
Radionomy - -
Total Revenues 100 96 +3.5% -0.2% -9.6%
Income from operations 10 (34)
EBITA 9 {79

a. Constant parimeter reflects the impacts of the transfer of L'Olympia from UMG to Vivendi Village as from January 1, 2015.

Vivendi Village's revenues were €100 million, up 3.5% compared to 2014.

Vivendi Vitiage's income from operations, at €10 million, and EBITA, at €9 million, became positive in 2015 largely thanks to the
transformation plan implemented by Watchever, the subscription video-on-demand service in Germany.

MyBestPro, which connects individuals with professionals from various business sectors, continued to record a very steady progress of its
activities, driven in particufar by JuriTravall com, a French leading oniine legal content platform also providing legal information and conflict
resolution services to third parties.

Vivendi Ticketing, which provides ticketing services in the United Kingdom, France and the United States, recorded a satisfactory year in
2015.

L'Olympia was affected by the events that occurred on November 13" in Paris, which resufted in the rescheduling or cancellation of concerts
and shows.

In the coming months, the group plans to open 10 CanalOlympia concert venues in Africa.

On December 17, 2015, Vivendi announced the acquisition of 64.4% interest in Radionomy Group, a major giobal player in the digital radio
industry, which was integrated within Vivend: Village. With this investment, Vivendi expands its presence in content ¢reation and
distribution to the growing sector of digital audio, driven by a dynamic advertising market.

1.34 Corporate

Corporate’s income from operations was a net charge of €93 miilion, compared to €82 million in 2014, a €17 million increase, primanly due
to the decrease in management fees, the increase in fees related to certain litigation, as well as the set-up costs for the new husinesses.
Moreover, recurring personnel costs were stable.

Corporate’s EBITA was a net charge of €94 million, compared to €70 million in 2014. In addition to the items included in income from
operations, this €24 million increase in the net charge in EBITA was notably linked to fewer positive non-recurring items {related to pensions
in 2014 and litigation in 2015).
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2 Treasury and capital resources

2.1 Net Cash Position and equity portfolio

Preliminary comments:

«  Vivend; considers Net Cash Position, a non-GAAP measure, to be a refevant indicator in measuring Vivendi's treasury and capital resources. The
Net Cash Position is calculated as the sum of:

. cash and cash equivalents as reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, corresponding to cash in banks, monay
market funds, complying with the criteria set forth in AMF position No. 2011-13, and other highly liguid short-term investments
with intial maturities of generally three months or less, as required by IAS 7 (please refer to Note 1.3.5.11 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015}

i, cash management financial assets. included in the Consofidated Statement of Financial Position under “financial assets”,
corresponding to financial investments which do not comply with the criteria for classification as cash equivalents set forth in
IAS 7, and, with respect to money market funds, the criteria set forth in AMF position No. 2011-13, and

fi.  derivative financial instruments in assets, and cash deposits backing borrowings, included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position under "financial assets”, lass

iv. fong-term and short-term borrowings and other financial liabifities as reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
o Net Cash Fosition should be considered in addition to, and not as a substitute for, other GAAP measures as presented in the Consolidated
Staterment of Financial Position, as well as any other measures of indebtedness reported in accordance with GAAP, and Vivendi considers it to

be a relevant indicator of treasury and capital resources of the group. Vivendi Management uses this indicator for reporting, management, and
planning purposes, as well as to comply with certain covenants.

2.1.1 Net Cash Position as of December 31, 2015

Refer to Notes to the
Consolidated Financial  December 31,2015 December 31, 2014
{in mithons of euros) Statements
Cash and cash eguivalents {a} 14 8,225 6845
of which Vivendi SA's money market funds 5550 4754
Vivend: SA's term deposits, interest-bearing current accounts, and MTN 2372 1,770
Cash management financial assets 14 581 -
Cash position 8,806 65845
Denvative financial instruments in assets 19 115 133
Cash deposits backing borrowings 12 439 .
Borrowings and other financial liabilities 19 {2,938) (2,347}
of which long-term (a) {1,555) {2.074}
short-term (a} {1,383) 273
Borrowings and other financial items (2.384) (2,208}
Net Cash Position 6A2 4537

a. As presented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

As of December 31, 2015, Vivendi's Net Cash Position was €6,422 million {compared to €4,637 million as of December 31, 2014). This
amount included the group’s cash position of €8,806 million as of December 31, 2015, of which £8,508 million was held by Vivend) SA and
invested as follows:

e £€5,550 million invested in money market funds;

e £2,638 million invested in term deposits, interest-hearing current accounts and MTN, of which €2,372 million is classified as “cash
and cash equivalents” and the remaining balance (€266 million} as “financial assets”, and

e €315 million nvested in bond funds and cfassified as "financial assets”.

As ot December 31, 2075, Vivendi's borrowings and other financial liabilities ret of derivative financial instruments in assets and cash
deposits amounted to €2,384 million, compared to €2,208 million as of December 31, 2014, a €176 million increase. They primarily comprised
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three Vivendi SA honds for an aggregate amount of €1,950 miflion, maturing in December 2016, March 2017 and December 2018,
respectively, as well as the share repurchase program in place as of December 31, 2015 (€193 million}.

In addition, Vivendi SA has a €2 bilhon bank credit facility, undrawn as of December 31, 2015 On October 30, 2015, the maturity of this
credit facility was extended for one year, to October 31, 2020.

As of February 10, 2016, the date of the Management Board mesting that approved Vivendi's Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2015, after taking into account {i) the cash proceeds from the sale of Activision Blizzard shares and the unwinding of the
related hedging instrument on January 13, 2016 (+£1.4 billion), (i) the payment of the second interim dividend on February 3, 2016 with
respect to fiscal year 2015 (-€1.3 billion), and (iii} the repurchase of treasury shares {-€0 5 billion), Vivendi's Net Cash Position would be
approximately €6 billion.

21.2 Equity portfolic

As of December 31, 2015, Vivendi held a portfolic of quoted and unquoted non-contralling equity interests, mainly in Telecom ltaha,
Activision Blizard, Telefonica, Ubisoft and Gameloft. At this date, this equity portfolio represented an aggregate market value of
approximately €6 billion {before taxes). please refer to Notes 11 and 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2015.

As of February 10, 2016, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved Vivendi's Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2015, the market value of Vivendi's portfolio of non-controtling equity interests amounted to approximately €3.8 billion.
This change included the sale of the interest in Activision Blizzard and fluctuations in stock market prices.

2.2 Changes in Net Cash Position

Borrowings and
Cash .and cash other financial ~ Net Cash Position

(i millions of euros) Bquivalents ttems {a)
Net Cash Position as of December 3t, 2014 6,845 (2,208) 4,637
OutflowsAlinflows) related to continuing operations;

Operating activities g7 - 87

Investing activities 4854 1,011 £ 865

Financing activities (3,564} {603) {4,167}
Foreign currency translation adjustments of continuing operations 3 - 3
Outflows/{inflows} related to continuing operations 1,380 408 1,788
Outflows/linflows) related to discontinued operations - (3} (3)
Not Cash Position as of December 31, 2015 6275 {1,803] 6422

a “Other financial tems” include cash management financial assets, commitments to purchase non-controlling interests, derivative
financial instruments (assets and liabilities) and cash deposits backing borrowings.
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Preliminary comments:

o The non-GAAP measures cash flow from operations (CAFO) and cash flow from operations after interest and taxes (CFAIT) should be
considered in addition to, and not as substitutes for, other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as presented in the
Consolidated Financial Statements and the refated notes or as described in the Financial Report. Vivend! considers these to be relevant

indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance.

s In compliance with IFRS 5, SFR and Maroc Telecom (sold in 2014), as well as GVT (sold on May 28, 2015} have been reported as

discontinued operations. In practice, cash flows from these businesses have been reported as follows:

- their contribution until their effective sale, to each line of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been grouped under

the line "Cash flows from discontinued operations ", and

- their cash flow from operations {CAFO} and cash flow from operations after interest and income taxes (CFAIT] have been excluded

from Vivendi's CFFQ and CFAIT, as presented below.

{in milhans of euros}
Revenues
Operating expenses excluding depreciation and amortization

Restructuring charges paid
Content investments, net
of which film and television rights, net at Canal+ Group
Acquisition paid
Consumption

of which sports nghts, net at Canals Group
Acquisition pad
Consumption

of which payments to artists and repertorre owners, net at UMG.
Payments
Recoupment and other

Neutralization of change an provisions included in operating expenses

Other cash operating rtems

Other changes in net workmg capital

Nat cash provided by/used for} aperating activities before income tax paid
Dividends received from equity affiliates and unconsolidated companigs
Capital expenditures, net {capex, net}

Cash flow from operations (CFFQ)

Interest paid, net

Other cash items related to fmancial activities

Income tax {paid)/receivad, net

Cash flow from operations aiter interest and incoms tax paid (CFAIT}

na: not applicable.

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014 % Change
10,762 10,089 +£7%
{9,429} {8,646) 91%

1,333 1,443 77%
(84) (84} 05%
157 19 x83

{633/ {6047 47%
753 713 +56%
120 109 +107%
{719 {818} +121%
815 801 +1 7%
9% {17 na
{635) 554 -146%
675 513 +102%
40 59 31.4%
47) {154) +£69 9%
{9 {22) +52.9%
{226} {123) -335%
1,124 1879 +4.2%
14 7 x22
(246) {243) -12%
52 a3 5%
{30) (96} +68.7%
106 (608) na

{1.037} 280 na

{69} [va) na
Vivendi /19
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231 Changes in cash flow from operations (CFF0)

In 2015, cash flow from operations (CFFQ) generated by the business segments was £892 million {compared to €843 million n 2014), a
€49 million increase (+5.9%). This change mainly reflected Universal Music Group's favorable change (+£142 million), notably resulting from
improved operating performance, the receipt of a litigation settiement income 1n the United States (+€8Z million) and the appreciation of the
U.S. dollar {USD) and the British pound {GBP) against the euro (EUR) in 2015, partially offset by the phasing of advances received by UMG
from major digital platforms, as weil as the decline of Canal+ Group {-€59 million}, notably related to content investments. In addition,
restructuring charges (€84 million} and capital expenditures, net (€246 million) were stable.

232 Cash flow from operations (CFFO) by business segment

Year ended December 31,

tin millions of euros) 2015 2014 % Change
Cash flow from operations (CFFO)

Canal+ Group 472 531 -11.1%
Universal Music Group 567 425 +33.3%
Vivendi Village {10) {44) +186%
New Initiatives [22) -

Corporate {115) 169}

Total Vivendi 892 343 +5.9%

233 Cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid {CFAIT)

In 2015, cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid [CFAIT) represented a net outflow of -€63 million, compared to a net
€421 million inflow in 2014, a €490 millon decrease. Despite the increase in CFFQ {+£49 million), this change mainly reflected the
urfavorable change in cash flow related to income taxes [-€1,317 million} partially offset by the favorable change in net cash inflows from
financial activities (+£712 mitlion} and the decrease in interest paid, net (+£66 million}.

Cash flow related to income taxes represented a -€1,037 million outflow in 2015, compared to a €280 million inflow in 2014 n 2015, they
notably included the tax installment paid in France with respect to fiscal year 2015 (-€233 million), income taxes paid by Vivendi SA in Brazil
related to the capital gain on the sale of GVT on May 28, 2015 (€395 millicn), as well as the payment made in France on March 31, 2015 by
Vivendi SA {-€321 million), related to an ongeing hitigation with tax authorities for the final assessment of the income tax payable by Vivendi
SA with respect to fiscal year 2012 (please refer to Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015).
This payment was partially offset by the receipt on January 16, 2015 by Vivendi SA of moratorium interest (+£43 million], related to the
refund received on December 23, 2014 with respect to the 2011 Consolidated Global Profit Tax System {+£366 million). in addition, in 2015,
income tax paid included the 3% tax on dividends paid by Vivendi SA in April and June 2015 (-€82 million).

In 2015, financial activities generatad 2 net £106 milhon inflow, compared to a net -€606 million outflow in 2014. In 2015, they mainky
included cash inflows generated by foreign exchange risk hedging instruments {+€86 million), as well as the interest (+£26 million) received
between May 6 and August 19, 2015 from the €1,948 million receivable from Altice related to the deferred payment for the sale of a
10% interest in Numericable-SFR. In 2014, they mainly included the premium paid (-€642 mullion) with respect to early redemption of bonds
in December 2014 following the sale of SFR, partially offset by a net foreign exchange gain (+€47 million). In addition, net interest paid was
€30 million in 2015, compared to €36 million in 2014.

234 Reconciliation of CFAIT to net cash provided by/(used for) operating activities of continuing

operations

Year ended December 31,
(in millians of euros) 25 014
Cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid {CFAIT} {69 a
Adjustments
Capital expenditures, net (capex, net) 246 243
Dividends received from equity affiliates (14) n
Interest paid, net 30 %
Other cash items related to financial actwities {106} 606
Net cash provided by/{wsed for) operating activities of continuing operations (a} 87 1,359

a.  As presented in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.
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2.4 Analysis of investing and financing activities

241 Investing activities

Refer to Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Year ended

{in mitlions of euros) Statements December 31. 2015

Financial investments

Acquisitions of Telecom Italia comman shares 2 {2,008)
Acquisition of Dailymotion 2 {246)
Acquisitions of Unsoft shares 2 {351}
Acguisitions of Gameloft shares 2 {122)
Acquisition of Boulogne Studios 2 (40)
Acquisition of a 64% interest in Radionomy 2 24)
Acguisition of cash management financral assets 14 {584}
Cash deposits backing borrowings 12 {431)
Other {121}
Total financial investments {3,927)
Financiel divestments

Cash proceeds from the sale of GVT 2 4178

Cash proceeds from the sale of the 20% interest in Numericable-SFR 2 3,896

Proceeds from the sale of the 4% interest in Teleforuca Brasil ? 800

Cash proceeds from the sale of the interest in TVN 2 273

Addrtional price adjustment refated to the sale of SFR paid by Vivendi 2 {116}
Other {18}
Total financial divestments 9,013

Dividends received fram equity affiliates 14

Capital expenditeres, net 3 (246)
Investing activities {a) 4854

a.  As presented in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.
242 Financing activities
Refer to Notes to the Year anded

Consolidated Financial December 31, 2015

{in millions of euros) Statements

Transactions with shareowners

Distribution to Vivendi SA's shareowners 15 (2.727)
Sales/|purchases) of Vivendi SA's treasury shares 15 {492)
Acquisitron of SECP's non-cantrolling interests 2 {622)
Exercise of stock options by executive management and employees 18 202
Capital increase subscribed by employees as part of the Stock Purchase Plan 18 75
Other {62)
Total transactions with shareowners (3,526}
Transactions on borrowings and other financial liabilities

Interest paid, net 5 (30)
Other (8)
Total transactions on borrowings and other financial lishilities (38}
Financing activities (a) (3,564}

a. Aspresented in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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3 Outlook

Amid the ecanomic transition of our businesses, the group met its anrcunced 2015 outlook and, apart fram Canal+ channels® in France, the
resuits reflected the good operating performances of all businesses. Revenues increased 6.7% compared to 2014 (+1.4% at constant
currency and perimeter) to €10,762 million; the operating margin amounted to 10.2% at constant currency and perimeter, and adjusted net
income increased by 11.3% to €697 million.

For Universal Music Group, Vivendi continues to see a positive momentum in the business, driven by ongoing growth in streaming and
subscription and tempered by declines in download and physical sales, leading to a reasonable increase in results this year and enhanced
results from 2017 onwards.

For Canal+ Group, Vivendi needs to stop the losses of Canal+ channels in France which could lead to a significant decling in the gperating
results in 2018, by implementing a transformation plan with the objective, for the Canal+ channels in France, of reaching breakeven in 2018
and of achieving a leve! of profitability similar o that of the best European players in the sector in the medium term.

It will be proposed to the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting to be held on April 21, 2016, that an ordinary dividend of €3 per share be paid with
respect to 2015, representing a total of €4.0 billion distributed to shareholders and comprising a €0.20 distribution related to the group’s
business performance and a €2.80 return to sharehplders Two interim dividends of €1 each were paid on June 29, 2015 and Fehruary 3,
2018, and the balance will be paid on April 28, 2016 (coupon detachment on April 26, 2016).

In addition to these distributions, the group also repurchased shares amounting to €1,386 million {73 million shares) as of February 17, 2016
as part of the program appraved by the General Shareholders” Meeting of April 17, 2015. Vivend has committed to return an additional
€1.3 bilion to shareholders by mid-2017 at the latest. This should take the form of an ordinary dividend of €1 per share or share repurchases
depending on the overall economic environment.

4 Forward-Looking Statements

Cautionary note

This Financial Report, notably in Section 3, contains forward-ipoking statements with respect to Vivendi's financial condition, results of
operations, business, strategy, plans and outlook of Vivend:, including the impact of certain transactions and the payment of dwvidends and
distributions as well as share repurchases. Although Vivendi believes that such forward-looking statements are based on reasonable
assumptions, such statements are not guarantees of future performance, Actual results may differ materially from the forward-leoking
statements as a result of a number of risks and uncertainties, many of which are outside Vivendi's control, including, but not limited to, the
risks related to antitrust and other reguiatory approvals, and to any other approvals which may be required in connection with certain
transactions, as well as the risks described in the documents of the group filed by Vivendi with the Autorité des Marchés Financiers (the
"AMF"} {the French securities regulatorl, and in its press releases, if any, which are also available in English on Vivendi's website
(www vivendi.com). Accordingly. readers are cautioned against relying on such forward-looking staiements. These forward-looking
statements are made as of the date of this Financial Report. Vivendi disclaims any intention or obligation to provide, update or revise any
forward-loaking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

5 Other Disclaimers

Unsponsored ADRs

Vivendi does not sponsar an American Depositary Receipt {ADR) facility in respect of its shares. Any ADR facitity currently in existence is
“unsponsored” and has no ties whatsoever ta Vivendi. Vivendi disclaims any liability in respect of any such facility.

Translation

This Financial Report is an English transtation of the Franch version of the report and is provided solely for the convenience of English
speaking readers. This translation is qualified in its entirety by the French version, which is available on the company's website
{www.vivendi.com). in the avent of any inconsistencies between the French version of this Financial Report and the English translation, the
French version will prevail

* Relates to the six premium charnels: Canai+, Canal+ Cingma, Canalt Sport, Canal+ Séries, Canal+ Family and Canalr Décalé.
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II- Appendice to the Financial Report: Unaudited
supplementary financial data

1 Quarterly revenues, income from operations and EBITA by business segment

{in millions of euros}

Revenues

Canai+ Group

Universal Music Group

Vivendi Village

New Initiatives

Elimination of intersegment transactions
Total Vivendi

income from operations
Canak+ Group

Universal Music Group
Vivendi Village

New Intiatives

Corporate

Total Vivendi

EBITA

Canal+ Group
Universal Music Group
Vivendi Village

New Initiatives
Corporate

Total Viveadi

(in millions of euros)

Revenues

Canal+ Group

Universal Music Group

Vivend: Village

Elimination of intersegment transactions
Total Vivendi

Income from operations
Canal+ Group

Universal Music Group
Vivendi Village

Corporate

Total Vivendi

EBITA

Canal+ Group
Universal Music Group
Vivendi Village
Corporate

Total Vivendi

2015
Three months ended  Three months ended  Three months ended  Three months ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,

1,370 1,364 1,300 1479

1,097 1.214 1181 1,616

25 28 22 27

- 1 17 25

- (2} - -

2492 2,603 2520 kALY
154 214 186 (12

88 91 99 348

4 4 1 1
- (1} {9 (8
(28) {26} {20) {25)

218 282 257 304

— ] —

165 223 162 {96}

g2 g9 88 334

4 4 - 1

- {1} (9 (10}

{33) {17} (22) {22)

218 298 219 207

2014
Three months ended  Three monthsended  Three months ended  Three months ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,

1,317 1,350 1.300 1,489

984 1,019 1,094 1,460

2 25 23 27

(5) {5 (5] (5}
2317 2,389 2812 291 _

179 248 208 (15)

66 93 13 316

(20) (17) - 3

{21 (19) {15) (27}

204 303 324 m

176 245 206 (43)

56 97 121 291

{200 (67) - 8

(26 {5) (17) (22)
185 48 310 23_4
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lll - Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2015

Statutory Auditors’ report on the Consolidated Financial
Statements

To the Shareholders,

in compliance with the assignment entrusted to us by your annual general meetings, we hereby report to you for the year ended
December 31, 2015, on:

« the audit of the accompanying Cansolidated Financial Statements of Vivend;
« the justification of our assessments; and
« the specific verfication required by law.

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been approved by your Management Board. Our role is to express an opinion on these
Consclidated Financial Statements, based on our audit

i, Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France; those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance ahout whether the Consolidated Financial Statements are freg of material misstatement. An audit
involves performing procedures, using sampling techniques or other methods of selection, to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements. An audit also includes evaluating the appropnateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made, as well as the overall presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the assets and liabilities and of the financial position of the
group as at December 31, 2015 and of the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standaids as adopted by the European Union.

Il.  Justification of our assessments

In accordance with the requirements of article L.823-9 of the French commercial code {Code de commerce) relating to the justification of our
assessments, we bring to your attention the following matters:

« At each financial year end, your company systematically performs impairment tests on goodwill and assets with indefinite useful
lives, and also assesses whether there is any indication of impairment of other tangible and intangible assets, according to the
methods described in Note 1.3.5.7 to the Financial Statements. We examined the methods used to perform these impairment tests,
as well as the main assumptions and estimates, and ensured that Notes 1.3.5.7 and 9 to the Financial Statements provide
appropriate disclosures thereon

= Note 1.39 to the Financial Statements describes the accounting principles applicable to deferred tax and Note 1.3.8 describes the
methods used to assess and recognize provisions. We verified the correct application of these accounting principles and alse
examined the assumptions underlying the positions as at December 31, 2015. We ensured that Note 6 to the Financial Statements
gives appropriate information on tax assets and liabilities and on your company’s tax positions.

« Notes 1.3.8 and 23 to the Financial Statements describe the methods used to assess and recognize provisions for litigation. We
examined the methods used within the company to identify, calculate, and determing the accounting for such litigation. We also
examined the assumptions and data underlying the estimates made by the company. As stated in Note 13.1 to the Financial
Statements, some facts and circumstances may lead to changes in estimates and assumptions which could have an impact upon the
reported amount of provisions.

Our assessments ware made as part of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements taken as a whole, and therefore contributed to the
opinion we formed which 1s expressed in the first part of this report
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. Specific verification

As required by law we have also verified, in accordance with professional standard applicable in France, the information presented in the
group’s management report.

We have no matters to report as its fair presentation and its consistency with the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Paris-La Défense, february 18, 2016

The statutory auditors
French original signed by

KPMG Audit ERNST & YOUNG et Autres
Département de KPMG S.A.
Baudouin Griton Jacques Pierres
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Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Revenues
Cost of revenues
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Restructuring charges
Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations
Other income
Other charges
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT)
Income from equity affiliates
Interest
Income from investments
Other financial tncome
Other financial charges
Earnings from continuing operations before provision for income taxes
Proviston for income taxes
Earnings from continuing operations
Earnings from discontinued operations
Earnings
Of which
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners
of which earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivendi 5A sharsowners
earnings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners

Non-controfling interests
of which earnings from continuing operations
earnings from discontinued operations

Earnings from continuing operattons attributable to Vivendr SA shareowners per share - basic
Earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - diluted
Earnings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - basic
Earnings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - diluted

Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - basic
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - diluted

In milligns of euros, except per share amounts, in eures.

et Bt | B R )

Friday, February 19, 2018

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014

10,762 10,089
(6.,555) {6.121)
(3.571) £3,209)
102) {104)
{3) {92)

745 203
{45) (30)

1231 736
{10) {18)
(30} {96}

52 3

16 19
(73) {751)
1,186 (107
{441) {130)
745 (237)

1,233 5,262
1,978 5025

1932 4,744
{290)

1,233 5,034

46 281

46 53

. 228

051 {022
0.51 {0.22)

0.91 374

0.90 373

142 3.52

¥ 3.51

In compliance with IFRS 5 - Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, SFR and Maroc Telecom (sold in 2014), as well as

GVT (sold on May 28, 2015) have been reported as discontinued operations.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31,
(i miltions of euros) Note 2015 2014
Earnings 1978 5025
Actuarial gains/{losses) refated to employee defined benefit plans, net {21) {68)
Items not reclassified to profit or loss (21} {68)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 1513 778
Unrealized gains/(losses), net (371} 936
Other impatts, net 3N {24)
items to be suhsequently reclassified to profit or loss 11713 1.620
Charges and income directly recognized in equity 8 1,152 1,552
Total comprehensive income 3,130 6,577
Of which
Total comprehensive income attributable te Vivendi SA shareowners 3,089 6312
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controling interests 4 265

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Note

{in millions of euros)

ASSETS

Goodwill

Non-current content assets
Other intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in equity affiliates
Non-current financial assets
Deferred tax assets
Non-current assets

Inventories

Current tax receivables

Current content assets

Trade accounts receivable and other
Current financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets of discontinued businesses
Current assats

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital

Additional paid-in capital

Treasury shares

Retained earnings and other
Vivendi SA sharsowners’ equity
Non-contralling interests

Total equity

Neon-current provisions

Long-term borrowings and other financial liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Other non-current liabilities

Non-current lighilities

Current provisions

Short-term borrowings and other financial habilities
Trade accounts payable and other

Current tax payables

Liabilities associated with assets of discontinued businesses

Current liabilities
Total labilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND UABILITIES

9
10

M
12

10
13
12
14

15

16
19

16
19
13

Friday, February 19, 2016

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
10,177 8379
2,286 2,550
224 229
737 N7
3435 306
4,132 6,144
622 710
21,613 19,985
117 114
653 234
1,088 1,135
2,139 1,983
1111 49
8,225 6,845
13,333 10,360
- 5393
13333 15753
34,946 35,738
7526 7434
5343 5,160
{702) {1
8,687 10,013
20,854 22,606
232 382
21,086 22988
2,679 2,888
1,555 2,074
705 857
105 i1
5,044 5,740
363 290
1,383 2713
8,737 5306
333 47
8,816 5916
- 1,094
8,816 1010
13,860 12,750
34,946 35,738

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31,
{in mullions of euros) Note 2015 2014
Operating activities
EBIT 4 1,231 738
Adjustments 20 {38) 447
Content investments, net 157 19
Gross cash provided by operating activities hofore incoms tax paid 1350 1.202
Other changes m net working capital {226) (123}
Net cash provided by operating activities hefore income tax paid 1,124 1,079
Income tax (paid)/received, net 6.2 {1 ,Uﬂ 280
Nst cash provided by operating sctivities of continuing operations 87 1.359
Not cash provided by operating activities of discontinved operations 153 224
Net cash provided by operating activities 240 3593
Investing activities
Capital expenditures 3 247) {249)
Purchases of consofidated companies, after acquired cash 2 (359) {100}
Investments in equity affiliates 19 187)
Increase in financial assets 12 (3,549) {1,057
Investmants 4.174) {1.493)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets 3 1 [
Proceeds from sales of consolidated companies, after dwested cash 2 4,032 16,929
Disposal of equity affiliates 11 268 -
Decrease in financial assats 12 4713 878
Divestitures 9014 17,813
Dividends received from equity affiliates 5 4
Dividends received from unconsolidated companies 9 s
Net cash provided byflused ifor) investing activities of continuing operations 4254 16326
Net cash provided by/{used for) invasting activities of discontinued operations f262] (2,034}
Nat cash provided by/{used for) investing activities 4592 14292
Financing activities
Net proceeds from issuance of common shares in connection with Vivendi SA's share-based compansation plans 18 273 197
Sales/{purchases} of Vivendi SA's treasury shares 15 1492} [32)
Distributions to Vivendi SA's shareowners 15 {2,727} {1,348)
Other transactions with sharegwners 2 (534) (2)
Dividends paid by consohdated companies to their non-controlling interests {48 (34
Transactions with sharsowners (3.525) (1213
Setting up of long-term borrowings and increase in ether fong-term financial habilities 19 8 3
Principal payment on long-term borrowings and decrease in ather long-term financial liabilities i9 {2) (1,670}
Principal payment on short-term bomrowings 19 {126) (7,680}
Other changes in short-term berrowings and other financial liatulities 19 6 140
Interest paid, net 5 (30) {96}
Qther cash rtems ralated to financial actwvities 106 {606}
Transactions on borrowings and other financial liabilities (38) {9,909}
Net cash provided by/{used for) financing activitias of continuing operations {3.554) {11,128}
Not cash providad by/{used lor) finencing activities of discontinued operations 59 (756)
Nat cash provided by/{used for) financing activities {3.495) {11,884)
Foreign curency translation adjustments of continuing operations 3 10
Foreign currency translatron adjustments of discontinued operations _{_3_]_ 4)
Change in cash and cash equivalents 1,332 6.007
Reclassification of discontinued operations’ cash and cash equivalents 48 (23}.
Cash and cash equivalents
At beginning of the penod 14 6.845 1.041
- 3
At end of the period 14 8225 65,845

In compliance with IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, SFR and Maroc Telecom {soid in 2014), as well as
GVT {sold on May 28, 2015) have been reported as discontinued operations.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

Year ended December 31, 2015

{in milhong of wuros, sxcept numbar of shares)
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Common shaves

Additienal

Nomber of sharss Sham pawd-n
Note{ {in thousands) el nal

Subtotal

LANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31 3814 (] TR ) M izsm | twen W3S § b
Ateributable 1o Vivendi SA sh 1351801 T 5N L] 123 e (i) nns Z6%
| Asriiutobis ko vos-veatraiiing imterists _ - - - A » ] » £ 3
SalesApurchasas) of treasury shares 154 - - pvd] 702 - - - {13
Distnbutn to shareownars 15} - {4,044 4,084) 4.044)
Ddend pad on Apeil 23, 2615 wath respoct to 2014 fiscal year (81 pex shave) - 1.363) 1363} 1.363)
Fiest antenam dradend pard on Juna 28 2015 with respect o 2015 frecal yeor (1 per share) - f1.364) 1.354) 11364
Second wterm: dividend pasd on Fabruary 3. 2016 with respect to 2015 fiscal yaar (€7 per sharal - - - - - .38 i1.318) 1.a18!
Capeta! incraass relatad ta share-hased compensation plans 16,722 9 183 1 m n - i .1
of whath Vivend: Fnployps Stack Purchase Plavs [ July 16, 2015/ 19 3914 2 53 - 75 - 3
Breise of Stock-0phons by axacutive " and ampk 10,887 B 140 06 - 200
Changes = Vivendi $A" ip imtecest in - that da not racult m n less of caatrsl - - - - - & ] - -] -]
O which aoquismon of SECFs non-contralling enerests 25 - - - - (375 1375 815
CHARGES IR EOURYY ATTRBGTABLE Y0 vivE F I1] TRIZZ [ 3 (1] () [ WAET |
Toniribetiom PyidRiTontion 4o sen-cosrabiag Wisieets B - T T T ) T i T
Dradends paid by subsi 10 nor liing nterests - - i 1 1}
Changes in seu-cepirelling jaterests thet da nel resali in 2 guinfless} of csntrel - - - - (1584 {158} {158}
cquisition of SECP olfing 295 - {1904 150} {150
ENIELE - - - - W e L1
Eamings - Va7 - T T
Charges nd incoma hrect! nizad 0 9 3 AF] 1,152 1,152
e A TC) B - - - - ] Ak F5E] F1E]
TOTAL CRANGES OVEN THE PERIOD f13/7] 3 2 631} W | e L] [0
1t Vivend: SA sharsowners 18722 2 183 701 425) (2, 448) 1120 {1,326} {17521
Attnbytabla tc ron-controling itamsts - - - - {151 i 1456} {1507
%E‘”—__OF DECEMBER 37,2975 D | TN ] W W (£} o AN | niem
Asrihutably b Vivendi SA sharsovmers (X1 15 [ [i] 14167 M 23 L ) 85
Airibwinble io ton-osntreling interests : - - - : -] [ £ 4 =]

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended December 31, 2014
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Caphal Ratained sa and other
Common shares Addittonal Other
Number of shares | Share padn T::“"" ool | eI ensne | Suwna [ O SR
(i millions of exros, except rumber of shares) i thousands) | | o8 samings Neome
(AL AREE 73 OF DECEMBEN YL, T3 F T L] T M S [ 7 R I
Abtrivuindie te Viveadi SA sharsewners 1399618 1368 [T 7] 15708 1587 [1.08¢) 1.708 12057
| Anribuiabls ts woa“coutrolling Interests - - - - - .83 {58) 1573 157 |
= Th ckarsowners e ] % ez - (3L0) (] - TR | o
Salas/fpurchases) of treasury shares - . - ) 133 - - 132)
Allocation of 2013 result - {2.004) - (2004 2004 7,004 -
Distrbution 1 shavexran3 (€1 pur sharg) . {1,348} - {1,348} - - 1,348}
Cagriai merese related (0 share-based compentayen pians ngn ] 131 k4 2} {18 Jil:] m
of which axercise pf STOCk ophions by axacutive management snd employses 11284 &2 135 - 97 - - - 197
In Vivend 24’8 Inntest b ite subsidiaries that do not resul in & koss of conral - - - - - & - % &
ﬁmmwﬁﬁmi SA SHARECWRERS A} 1987 L B2 - [y 1392 - |
Wmmmﬂh.m - - - - T o - L2 Y
Dradends pad by subsl 1 mierBats . - - . - fan - o7 (£47)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vivendi is a limited liability company {société anonyme} incorporated under French law and subject to French commercial company law
ncluding the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce). Vivendi was incorporated on December 18, 1987, for a term of 99 years expiring
on December 17, 2086, except in the event of an early dissolution or unless its term is extended Its registered office is located at 42 avenue
de Friedland - 75008 Paris {France) Vivendi is listed on Euronext Paris {Compartment A},

Vivendi is an integrated media and content group. The company operates businesses throughout the media value chain, from talent discovery
to the creation, production and distribution of content Canal+ Group is engaged in pay-TV in France, as well as in Africa, Poland and
Vietnam. Its subsidiary Studiccanal is a leading European player in preduction, sales and distribution of cinema films and TV series. Universal
Music Group is engaged in recorded music, music publishing and merchandising. It owns more than 50 labels covering all music genres.
Vivendi Village brings together Vivendi Ticketing {ticketing in the United Kingdom, the United States and France), MyBestPro {expert
counseling), Watchever (subscription video-on-demand} and L'Olympia {the Pans-based music hall). Within New lnitiatives, Dailymotion is
one of the biggest video-content aggregation and distribution platforms in the werld.

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the financial and accounting situation of Vivendi and its subsidiaries (the “group”) together
with interests in equity affiliates. Amounts are reported in euros and all values are rounded to the nearest million.

On February 10, 2018, at a meeting held at the headquarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Financial Report and the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015. They were reviewed by the Audit Committee at its meeting held
on February 11, 2016 and the Supervisory Board, at its meeting held on February 18, 2016.

On April 21, 2016, the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 will be submitted for approval at Vivendi's
Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting.

Note 1 Accounting policies and valuation methods

11 Compliance with accounting standards

The 2015 Consolidated Financial Statements of Vivendi SA have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as endorsed by the European Union (EY), and in accordance with IFRS published by the Internaticnal Accounting Standards
Board {IASB} with mandatory application as of December 31, 2015,

In addition and as a reminder, Vivendi applied, from January 1, 2014, IFRIC 21 interpretation — Levies, which clarifies 1AS 37 — Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, and specifically addresses the accounting for a liability to pay a levy imposed by public
authorities on entities in accordance with laws or regulations, except for income tax and value-added taxes. Thus, its application has led to
changes, where applicable, in the analysis of the obligating event triggering recognition of the liability. This interpretation, which
mandatorily applies to accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014, and retrospectively as from January 1, 2013, did not have
any material impact on Vivendi's Financial Statements.

12 Presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
121 Consolidated Statement of Earnings

The main line items presented in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earnings are revenues, income from equity affiliates, interest,
provision for income taxes, eamings from discontinued or held for sale operations, and earnings. The Consolidated Statement of Eamings
presents a subtotal of Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT) equal to the difference between charges and income (excluding those
financing activities, equity affiliates, discortinued or held for sale operations, and income taxes).

The charges and income related to financing activities consist of interest, income from investments, as well as other financial charges and
income as defined in paragraph 1.2.3 and presented in Note 5.
122  Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities 1s calculated using the indirect method based on EBIT. EBIT is adjusted for non-cash items and
changes in net working capital. Net cash provided by operating activities excludes the cash impact of financial charges and income and net
changes in working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets.
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Net cash used for investing activities

Net cash used for investing activities includes changes in net working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
as well as cash from investments (particularly dividends received from equity affiliates). It also includes any cash flows arising from the gain
or loss of control of subsidiaries.

Net cash used for financing activities

Net cash used for financing activities includes net interest paid on borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts, as well as the
cash impact of other items related to financing activities such as premiums from the early redemption of borrowings and the settlement of
derivative instruments. it also includes cash flows from changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
{including increases in ownership interests).

123  Operating performance of each operating segment and the group

Vivendi considers Adjusted Earnings Before Interest and Tax {EBITA), income from operations, Adjusted net income {ANI), and Cash Flow
From Operations (CFFO), non-GAAP measures, to be relevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance.

EBITA

Vivendi considers EBITA,  non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the performance of its operating segments as reported in
the segment data. It enables Vivendi to compare the operating performance of operating segments regardless of whether their performance
is driven by the operating segment's organic growth or by acquisitions. Te calculate EBITA, the accounting impact of the following elements
is excluded from the income from EBIT.
s the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations;
o impairment losses on goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations; and
» other income and charges related to transactions with shareowners and to financial investing transactions, which include gains and
losses recognized in business combinations, capital gains or losses related to divestitures, or the depreciation of equity affiliates and
other financial investments, as well as gains or losses incurred from the gain or foss of control in a business.

income from operations

Vivendi considers income from operations, @ non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the performance of its operating
segments as reported in the segment data. As defined by Vivendi, income from operations is calculated as EBITA, before share-based
compensation costs related to equity-settled plans, and special items due to their unusual nature or particular significance.

Adjusted net income

Vivendi considers adjusted net income, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group’s operating and financial
performance. Vivendi Management uses adjusted net income because it provides a better illustration of the underlying performance of
continuing operations by excluding most non-recurring and non-operating items. Adjusted net income includes the following items:
e EBITA (™*}
income from equity affiliates (*),
interest (*), equal to interest expense on borrowings net of interast income earned on ¢ash and cash equivalents;
income from investments (¥}, including dividends and interest received from unconsolidated companies; and
taxes and non-controlling interests related to these items.

It does not include the following items.

o amortization of intangibles acquired through business combinations (**} as well as impairment losses ¢n goodwill and other
intangibles acquired through business combinations (*) (**);

o other income and charges related to financial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners {*), as defined above;

o other financial charges and income (*}, equal to the profit and loss related to the change in value of financial assets and the
termination or change in value of financial liabilities, which primarily include changes in the fair value of derivative instruments,
premiums from the early redemption of borrowings, the early unwinding of derivative instruments, the cost of issuing or cancelling
credit facilities, the cash impact of foreign exchange transactions (other than those related to cperating activities, included in the
EBIT), as well as the effect of undiscounting assets and liabilities, and the financial components of employee benefits {interest cost
and expected return on plan assets);

¢ earnings from discontinued operations {*); and

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 Vivendi /34




Friday, February 19, 2016

e provisions for income taxes and adjustments attnbutable to non-controlling interests and non-recurring tax items {notably the
changes 1n deferred tax assets pursuant to Vivendi SA’s tax group and the Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems, and the reversal
of tax liabilities reiating to risks extinguished over the period).

{*} ltems as presented in the Consofidated Staternent of Eamings, {**! ltems as reported by each operating segment as reported in the segment data.

Cash Flow From Cperations (CFFD)

Vivendi considers cash flow from operations (CFFO), a non-GAAP measure, 1o be a retevant measure to assess the group's operating and
financial performance. The CFFO includes net cash provided by operating activities, before income tax paid, as presented in the Statement of
Cash Flows, as well as dividends received from equity affiliates and unconsolidated companies. It alse includes capital expenditures, net that
relate to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

The difference between CFFO and net cash provided by operating activities, before income tax, consists of dividends received fram equity
affiliates and unconsolidated companies and capital expenditures, net, which are included in net cash used for investing activities and of
income tax paid, net, which are excluded from CFFQ.

1.24 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Assets and liabilities that are expected to be realized, or intended for sale or consumption, within the entity's normal operating cycle
{generally 12 months), are recorded as current assets or liabilities. If their maturity exceeds this period, they are recorded as non-current
assets or liabilities. Moreover, certain reclassifications have been made to the 2014 and 2013 Consolidated Financial Statements to conform
to the presentation of the 2015 and 2014 Consolidated Financiat Statements.

1.3 Principles governing the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Pursuant to IFRS principles, notably IFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement relating to measurement and disclosures, the Consalidated Financial
Statements have been prepared on a histoncal cost basis, with the exception of certain assets and habilities detailed below.

The Consolidated Financial Staterents include the financial statements of Vivendi and its subsidiaries after eliminating intragroup items and
transactions. Vivendi has a December 31 year-end. Subsidianes that do not have a December 31 year-end prepare interim financial
statements at that date, except when their year-end falls within the three months prior to December 31.

Acquired subsidiaries are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the group as of the date of acguisition.
131  Use of estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in compliance with IFRS requires the group’s management to make certain estmates
and assumptions that they consider reasonable and realistic. Although these estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed by Vivendi
Management, based in particular on past or anticipated achievements, facts and circumstances may lead to changes in these estimates and
assumptions which could have an impact on the reparted amount of group assets, liabilities, equity or earnings.

The main estimates and assumptions relate to the measurement of:

« revenue: estimates of provisions for returns and price guarantees (please refer to Note 1.3.4);

= provisions: risk estimates, performed on an individual basis, noting that the occurrence of events during the course of procedures may
lead to a risk reassessment at any time (please refer to Notes 1.3.8 and 16);

* employee benefits: assumptions are updated annually, such as the probability of employees remaining within the group until
retirement, expected changes in future compensation, the discount rate and inflation rate {please refer to Notes 1.3.8 and 17);

« share-based compensation: assumptions are updated annually, such as the estimated term, volatlity and the estimated dividend
yield {please refer to Notes 1.3.10 and 18};

+ deferred taxes: estimates congerning the recognition of deferred tax assets are updated annually with factors such as expected tax
rates and future tax results of the group {please refer to Notes 1.3.9 and 6};

+ goodwill and other intangible assets: valuation methods adopted for the identification of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations {please refer to Notes 1.3.5.2);

+ goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and assets in progress: assumptions are updated annually refating to
impairment tests perfarmed on each of the group’s cash-generating units (CGUs), future cash flows and discount rates (please refer
to Notes 1.3.5.7 and 9);

¢ UMG content assets: estimates of the future performance of beneficiaries who were granted advances are recognized in the
Statement of Financial Position (please refer to Notes 1.3 5 3 and 10), and

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financigl Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 Vivendi /35



Friday, February 18, 2016

e certain financial instruments: valuation method at fair value defined according to the three following classification levels (please
refer to Notes 1.3.5.8,1.3.7, 12, 14 and 19}
- Level 1: fair value measurement based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
- Level Z: fair value measurement based on observable market data {other than quoted prices included within Level 1); and
- Level 3: fair value measurement based on valuation techniques that use inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data.

The fair value of trade accounts receivable and other, cash and cash equivalents, and trade accounts payable is 2 reasonable
approximaticn of fair value, due to the short maturity of these instruments.

132  Principles of consolidation
A list of Vivendi‘s major subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated entities is presented in Note 24.

Consolidation

All companies in which Vivendi has a controlling interest, namely those in which it has the power to govern financial and operational policies
in erder to obtain benefits from their operations, are futly consolidated.

The Control defined by IFRS 10 1s based on the follewing three criteria to be fulfifled simultaneousty to conclude that the parent company
exercises controk:

s 2 parent company has power over a subsidiary when the parent company has existing rights that give it the curent ability to direct
the relevant activities of the subsidiary, i.e., the activities that significantly affect the subsidiary’s returns. Power may arise from
existing or potential voting rights, or contractual arrangements, Voting rights must be substantial, i.e., they shall be exercisable at
any time without limitation, particularly during decision making related to significant activities. The assessment of the exercise of
power depends on the nature of the subsidiary's relevant activities, the internal decision-making process, and the allocation of rights
among the subsidiary's other shareowners;

» the parent company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary which may vary as a result
of the subsidiary's performance. The concept of retuns is broadly defined and includes, among other things, dividends and other
economic benefit distributions, changes in the value of the investment in the subsidiary, economies of scale, and business synergies;
and

+ the parent company has the ability to use its power to affect the returns. Exercising power without having any impact on retumns does
not qualify as control.

Consolidated Financial Statements of a group are presented as if the group was a single economic entity with two categories of owners:
{i} the owners of the parent company (Vivendi SA shareowners) and (i) the cwners of non-controlling interests {minority shareholders of the
subsidiaries). A non-controlling interest is defined as the interest in a subsidiary that is not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent. As
a result, changes to a parent company's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a foss of control anly impact equity, as control
does not change within the economic entity. Hence, in the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a consolidated entity after
January 1, 2009, Yivend: recognizes the difference between the acquisition price and the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquired
as a change in equity attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners Conversely, any acquisition of control achieved in stages or a loss of control
gives rise to profit or loss in the statement of eamings.

Accounting for joint arrangements
IFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements establishes principles for financial reporting by parties to a joint arrangement.

In a joint arrangement, parties are bound by a contractual arrangement, giving these parties joint control of the arrangement. An entity that
i a party to an arrangement shall assess whether the contractual arrangement gives all the parties or a group of the parties, control of the
arrangement collectively. Once 1t has been established that all the parties or a group of the parties cotlectively control the arrangement, joint
control exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties that collectively control the
arrangement.

Joint arrangements are classified into two categories:

» joint operations: these are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Those parties are called joint operators. A joint operater shall
recognize 100% of wholly-owned assets/liabilities, expenses/revenues of the joint operation, and its share of any of those items held
jointly; and

s joint ventures: these are joint amangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights fo the net
assets of the arrangement. Those parties are calied joint venturers. Each joint venturer shall recognize its interest in a joint venture
as an investment, and shall account for that investment using the equity method in accordance with IAS 28 [plaase refer below).
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Equity accounting
Entities over which Vivendi exercises significant influence as well as joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method.

Significant influence is presumed to exist when Vivendi holds, directly or indirectly, at least 20% of the voting rights in an entity unless it can
be clearly demonstrated that Vivendi does not exercise a significant influence. Significant influence can be evidenced through other criteria,
such as representation on the board of directors or the entity’s equivalent governing body, participation in policy-making of financial and
operational processes, material transactions with the entity or the interchange of managerial personnel.

133  Foreign currency translation

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in millions of euros. The functional currency of Vivendi SA and the presentation
currency of the group 1§ the euro.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are initfally recorded in the functional currency of the entity at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction. At the closing date, foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the entity’s functional currency at the
exchange rate prevailing on that date. All foreign curvency differences are expensed, with the exception of differences resulting from
borrowings in foreign currencies which constitute a hedge of the net investment in a foreign entity. These differences are allocated directly
to charges and income directly recognized in equity until the divestiture of the net investment.

Financial statements denominated in a foreign currency

Except in cases of significant exchange rate fluctuation, financial statements of subsidiaries, joint ventures or other associated entities for
which the functional currency is not the euro are translated into euros as follows: the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position is
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the period, and the Consolidated Statement of Earnings and the Consclidated Statement of
Cash Flows are translated using average monthly exchange rates for the period. The resulting translation gains and losses are recorded as
fareign currency translation differences in charges and income directly recognized in equity. In accordance with IFRS 1, Vivendi elected to
reverse the accumulated foreign currency translation differences against retained earnings as of January 1, 2004. These foreign currency
translation differences resulted from the transtation into euros of the financial statements of subsidiaries that use foreign currencies as their
functional currencies. Consequently, these adjustments are not applied to earnings on the subsequent divestiture of subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associates whose functional currency is not the euro.

134  Revenues from operations and associated costs

Revenues from operations are recorded when it is probable that future economic benefits will be obtained by the group and when they can
be reliably measured. Revenues are reported net of discounts.

1.341 Canal+ Group

Pay and free-to-air television

Revenues from television subscription services for terrestrial, satellite or cable pay-television platforms are recognized over the service
period, net of graturties granted. Revenues from advertising are recognized over the period during which the advertising commercials are
broadcast. Revenues from ancillary services [such as interactive or video-on-demand services) are recognized when the service is rendered.
Subscriber management and acquisition costs, as well as television distribution costs, are included in selling, general and administrative
EXpenses.

Equipment rentals
{FRIC 4 - Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease, applies to equipment for which a right of use is granted. Equipment |ease
revenues are generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease agreement

Film and television programming

Theatrical revenues are recognized as the films arg screened. Revenues from film distribution and from video and free-to-air or pay tetevision
licensing agreements are recognized when the films and television programs are available for telecast and all other conditions of sale have
been met. Home video product revenues, less a provision for estimated retums (please refer to Note 1.3.4.3) and rebates, are recognized
upon shipment and availability of the product for retail sale. Amortization of capitalized film and television production and acquisition gosts,
theatrical print costs, homs video inventory costs and television and home video marketing costs are included in costs of revenues.
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1342 Universal Music Group (UMG)

Recorded music

Revenues from the physical sale of recorded music, net of a provision for estimated returns (please refer to Note 1.3.4.3) and rebates, are
recognized upon shipment to third parties, at the shipping point for products sold free on board (FOB) and on delivery for products sold free
on destination.

Revenues from the digital sale of recorded music, for which UMG has sufficient, accurate, and reliable data from certain distributors, are
recognized based on their estimate at the end of the month in which those sales were made to the final customer. In the absence of such
data, revenues are recognized upan notification by the distnbution platform {on-line or mobile music distributor) to UMG of a sale to the final
customer

Music publishing

Revenues from third-party use of copyright on musical compositions owned or administered by UMG are recognized when royalty statements
are received and collectability is assured.

Casts of raveniues

Costs of revenues include manufacturing and distribution costs, royalty and copyright expenses, artists’ costs, recording costs, and direct
overheads. Seffing, general and administrative expenses primarily include marketing and advertising expenses, selling costs, provisions for
doubtful receivables and indirect overheads

1343 Other

Provisions for estimated returns and price guaramess are deducted from sales of products 1o customers through distributors, The
provisions are estimated based on past sales statistics and take into account the economic environment and product sales forecast to final
customers.

Selling, general and administrative expenses primarily include salanes and employee benefits, rent, consulting and service fees,
instrance costs, travel and entertainment expenses, administrative department costs, provisions for receivables and other operating
expenses.

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred

Slotting fees and cooperative advertising expenses are recorded as a reduction in revenues. However, cooperative advertising at UMG
is treated as a marketing expense and expensed when its expected benefit is individualized and can be estimated.

135  Assets

1351 Capitalized financial interest

When appropriate, Vivendi capitalizes financial interest incurred during the construction and acquisition peried of intangible assets, and
property, plant and equipment, these interests being included in the cost of qualifying assets.

1352 Goodwill and business combinations

Business combinations from January 1, 2009

Business combinations are recorded using the acquisition method. Under this method, upon the initial consolidation of an entity over which
the group has acquired exclusive control

+ the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair value on the acquisition date; and
+ non-controlling interests are measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net identifiable assets. This option is available on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

On the acquisition date, goodwill is initially measured as the difference between:
{i) the fair value of the consideration transferred, pius the amount of non-controlling interests in the acquiree and, in a business
combination achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair vaiue of the previously held equity interest in the acquiree; and
(i1) the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities assumed on the acquisition date.
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The measurement of non-controlling interests at fair value results in an increase in goodwill up to the extent attributable to these interests,
thereby leading to the recognition of a “full goodwill”. The purchase price allocation shall be performed within 12 months after the
acquisition date. If goodwill is negative, it is recognized in the Statement of Eamings. Subseguent to the acquisition date, goodwill is
measured at its initial amount less recorded accumulated impairment losses {please refer to Note 1.3.5.7 below).

In addition, the following principles are applied to business combinations:

¢ on the acquisition date, to the extent possible, goodwill is allocated to each cash-generating unit likely to benefit from the business
combination;

« contingent consideration in a business combination is recorded at fair value on the acquisition date, and any subsequent adjustment
occurring after the purchase price allocation period is recognized in the Statements of Earnings;
acquisition-related costs are recognized as expenses when incurred;
in the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a subsidiary, Vivendi recognizes the difference between the acquisition
price and the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquired as a change in equity attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners; and

¢ goodwill is not amortized.

Business combinations prior to January 1, 2009

Pursuant to IFRS 1, Vivendi elected not to restate business combinations that occurred prior to January 1, 2004 [FRS 3, as published by the
IASB in March 2004, retained the acquisition method. However, 1ts provisions differed from those of its revised standard in respect of the
main following items:
s mingrity interests were measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets as there was no option for
measurement at fair value;
« contingent consideration was recognized in the cost of acquisition only if the payment was likely to occur and the amounts could be
reliably measured;
transaction costs that were directly attributable to the acquisition formed part of acquisition costs; and
in the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a subsidiary, the difference between the acquisition cost and the carrying
value of minority interests acquired was recognized as goodwill

1353 Content assets

Canal+ Group
Film, television or sports hroadcasting rights

When entering into contracts for the acquisition of film, television or sports broadcasting rights, the nghts acquired are classified as
contractual commitments. They are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position and classified as content assets as follows:
+ film and television broadcasting rights are recognized at their acquisition cost when the program is available for screening and are
expensed over their broadcasting period;
s sports broadeasting rights are recognized at their acquisition cost at the opening of the broadcasting period of the related sports
season or upon the first payment and are expensed as they are broadcast; and
« expensing of film, television or sports broadcasting rights is included in cost of revenues.

Theatrical films and television rights produced or acquired to he sold to third parties

Theatrical films and television rights produced or acquired before their initial exhibition to be sold to third parties, are recorded as a content
asset at capitalized cost (mainly direct production and overhead costs) or at their acquisition cost. The cost of theatrical films and television
rights are amortized, and other related costs are expensed, pursuant to the estimated revenue method {i.e., based on the ratio of the cument
period’s gross revenues to estimated total gross revenues from all sources on an individual production basis). Vivendi considers that
amortization pursuant to the estimated revenue method reflects the rate at which the entity plans to consume the future economic benefits
related to the asset

Where appropriate, estimated losses in value are provided in full against earnings for the peried in which the losses are estimated, on an
individual product basis.

Film and television rights catalogs

Catalogs comprise film rights acquired for a second television screening, or produced or acquired film and television rights that are sold to
third parties after their first television screening {1.e., after their first broadcast on a free terrestrial channel). They are recognized as an asset
at their acquisition or transfer cost and amortized as groups of films, or individually, based respectively on the estimated revenue method.
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Music rights and catalogs include music catalogs, artists’ contracts and music publishing rights, acquired through business combinations,
amortized in salling, general and administrative expenses over a period not exceeding 15 years.

Royalty advances te artists, songwriters, and co-publishers are capitalized as an asset when their current popularity and past performances
provide a reasonable basis to conclude that the probabie future recoupment of such royalty advances against eamnings otherwise payable to
them is reasonably assured Royalty advances are recognized as an expense as subsequent royalties are earned by the artist, songwriter ar
co-publisher. Any portion of capitalized royalty advances not deemed to be recaverable aganst future royalties 1s expensed during the period
in which the loss becomes evident. These expenses are recorded in cost of revenues.

Royalties eamed by artists, songwriters, and co-publishers are recognized as an expense in the period during which the sale of the product
occurs, less a provision for estimated returns.

1.354 Research and development costs

Reseaich costs are expensed when incurred. Development expenses are capitalized when the feasibility and, in particutar, profitability of the
project can reasonably be considered certain.

Cost of internal use software

Direct internal and external costs incurred for the development of computer software for internal use, including website development costs,
are capitalized during the application development stage. Application development stage costs generaily include software configuration,
coding, installation and testing. Costs of significant upgrades and enhancements resulting in additional functionality are also capitalized.
These capitalized costs are amortized over 5 to 10 years. Maintenance, minor upgrade, and enhancement costs are expensed as incurred.

1.355 Other intangible assets

Intangible assets separately acquired are racorded at cost, and intangible assets acquired in connection with a business commnation are
recorded at their fair value at the acquisition date. The historical cost model is applied to intangible assets after they have been recognized.
Assets with an indefinite useful life are not amortized but are subject to an annual impawment test. Amortization is accrued for assets witha
finite useful life. Useful life is reviewed at the end of each reporting peniod.

(Other intangible assets include trade names, customer bases and licenses. By contrast, music catalogs, trade names, subscribers’ bases and
market shares generated internally are not recognized as intangible assets.

1356 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes the acquisition cost or production cost, costs directly attributable to transperting an asset to its physical location and preparing it for
its operational use, the estimated costs relating to the demohtion and the collection of property, plant and equipment, and the rehabilitation
of the physical location resulting from the incurred obligation,

When praperty, plant and equipment include significant components with different useful lives, they are recorded and amortized separately.
Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful life of the assets. Useful lives of the main
components are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are as follows:

¢ huildings: 5 to 40 years;

e  equipment and machinery 3 to 8 years;

*  set-top boxes: 5 to 7 years; and

* other: 2 to 10 years.

Assets financed by finance lease contracts are capitalized at the lower of the fair value of future lease payments and of the market value and
the related debt is recorded as “Borrowings and other financial liabilities”. In general, these assets are amortized on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful life, corresponding to the duration applicabie to property, plant and equipment from the same category
Amortization expenses on assets acquired under such leases ars included in amortization expenses.

After initial recognition, the cost model is applied to property, plant and equipment.

Vivendi has elected not to apply the option available under IFRS 1, involving the remeasurement of certain property, plant and equipment at
their fair value as of January 1, 2004.
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On January 1, 2004, in accordance with IFRS 1, Vivendi decided to apply IFRIC Interpretation 4 - Determining whether an amangement
contains a lease, which mainly applies to commercial supply agreements for the Canal+ Group satellite capacity, which are commercial
service agreements that, in general, do not convey a right to use a specific asset. Contract costs under these agreements are conseguently
expensed as operational costs for the period.

1357 Assetimpairment

Each time events or changes in the economic environment indicate a risk of impairment of goodwill, other intangible assets, property, plant
and equipment, and assets In progress, Vivendi re-examines the value of these assets In addition, in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards, goodwill, other intangible assets with an indefinite useful life, and intangible assets in progress are all subject to an
annual impairment test undertaken in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year. This impairment test is performed to compare the recoverable
amount of each Cash Generating Unit (CGLY or, if necessary, groups of CGU to the camying value of the corresponding assets (including
goodwitt), A CGL is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets. The Vivendi group operates through different communication businesses. Each business offers
different products and services that are marketed through varous channels. CGUs are independently defined at each business level,
corresponding to the group operating segments. Vivendi CGUs and groups of CGUs are presented in Note 9.

The recoverable amount is determined as the higher of: {i} the value n use; or {1i) the fair value (less costs to sell} as described hereafter, for
each individual asset. If the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of other assats or groups of assets, the
recoverable amount 1s determined for the group of assets. In particutar, an impairment test of goodwil! is performed by Vivendi for each CGU
or group of CBUs, depending on the level at which Vivendi Management measures return on operations.

The value in use of each asset or group of assets is determined as the discounted value of future cash flows (Discounted Cash How method
(DCF) by using cash flow projections consistent with the budget of the following year and the most recent forecasts prepared by the
operating segments.

Applisd discount rates are determined by reference to available external sources of information, usually based on financial institutions’
benchmarks, and reflect the current assessment by Vivendi of the time value of money and risks specific to each asset or group of assets.

Perpetual growth rates used for the evaluation of CGUs are those used to prepare budgets for each CGU or group of CGUSs, and beyond the
period covered, are consistent with growth rates estimated by the business by extrapolating growth rates used in the budgets, without
exceeding the long-term average growth rate for the markets in which the group operates.

The fair value (less costs to sell) 1s the price that would be received from the sale of an asset or group of assets in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, less costs to sell. These values are determined on the basis of market data {stock
market prices or comparison with similar listed companies, with the value attributed to similar assets or companies in recent transactions)
or, in the absence of such data, on the basis of discontinued cash flows.

if the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying value of an asset or group of assets, an impairment loss equal to the difference is
recognized in EBIT. In the case of a group of assets, this impairment loss is first recorded against goodwill.

The impairment losses recognized in respect of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets {other than goodwill} may be reversed in
a later peried If the recoverable amount becomes greater than the carrying value, within the limit of impairment losses previously recognized.
Impairment losses recognized in respect of goodwill cannot be reversed at a 1ater date

1358 Financial assets

Financial assets consist of financial assets measured at fair value and financial assets recognized at amortized cost. Financial assets are
initially recognized at fair vaiue corresponding, in general, to the consideration paid, which is best evidenced by the acquisition cost
{including associated acquisition costs, if any).

Financial assets at fair value

Financial assets at fair value include available-for-sale securities, derivative financial instruments with a positive value {please refer to
Note 1.3.7) and other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss. Most of these financial assets are actively traded in
organized public markets, their fair value being calculated by reference to the published market price at period end. Fair value is estimated
for financial assets which do not have a published market price on an active market. As a last resort, when a reliable estimate of fair vatue
cannot be made using valuation techniques n the absence of an active market, the group values financial assets at historical cost, less any
impairment losses.

Available-for-sale securities consist of unconsolidated interests and other securities that cannot be classified in the other financial asset
categories described befow. Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are recognized in charges and income directly
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recognized in equity unti! the financial asset is sold, collected or removed from the Statement of Financial Position in another way, ar until
there is objective evidence that the investment is impaired, at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously reported in charges and
income directly recognized in equity is expensed in other financial charges and income.

Other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss mainly consist of assets held for trading which Vivendi intends to sell in
the near future {primarily marketable securities). Unrealized gains and losses on these assets are recognized in other financial charges and
income.

Financial agsets at amartized cost

Financial assets at amorhzed cost consist of leans and receivables {primarily loans to affiliates and associates, current account advances to
equity affiliates and unconsolidated interests, cash deposits, securitized loans and receivables, and other loans and receivables, and debtors)
and held-to-maturity investments {financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity). At the end of each period, these
assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of this loss, measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying value and its recoverable amount {equal
1o the present value of estimated future cash ftows discounted at the financial asset's initiaf effective interest rate), is recognized in profit or
loss. Impairment losses may be reversed if the recoverable amount of the asset subsequently increases in the future.

1359 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost comprises purchase costs, production costs and other supply and
packaging costs. They are usually calculated using the weighted average cost method Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the normal course of business, less estimated completion costs and selling costs.

13510 Trade accounts receivahle

Trade accounts receivable are initially recognized at fair value, which is generally equal to their nomina} value. Provisions for the impairment
of receivables are specifically valued in each business unit, generally using a default percentage based on the unpaid amounts during one
reference period. For the group’s businesses which have an economic model based partly or fully on subscription {Canal+ Group), the
depreciation rate of trade account receivables is assessed on the basis of historical account receivables from former customers, primarily on
a statistical basis. In addition, account receivables from customers subject to insolvency proceedings or custamers with whom Vivend! is
involved in litigation or a dispute are generally impaired in full.

1.3511 Cash and cash equivalents

The “cash and cash equivalents” category, defined in accordance with IAS 7, consists of cash in banks, monetary UCITS, which satisfy AMF
position No. 2011-13, and other highly liquid investments with initial matunties of generally three months or Jess. Investments in securities,
investments with initia! maturities of more than three months without the possibility of early termination and bank accounts subject to
restrictions (blocked accounts), other than restrictions due to regulations specific to a country or activity sector {e.g., exchange controls), are
not classified as cash equivalents but as financial assets. Moreover, the historical performances of the investments are monitored regularly
to confirm their cash equivalents accounting classification.

136  Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

A non-current asset or a group of assets and liabilities is held for sale when its carrying value may be recovered principally through its
divestiture and not by its continued utilization. To meet this definition, the asset must be available for immediate sale and the divestiture
must be highly probable. These assets and liabilities are recognized as assets held for sale and liabilities associated with assets held for
sale, without offset. The related assets recorded as assets held for sale are valued at the lowest value between the fair value (net of
divestiture fees) and the carrying value, or cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment fosses and are no longer depreciated.

An operation is qualified as discontinued when it represents a separate major line of business and the criteria for classification as an asset
held for sale have been met or when Vivendi has sold the asset. Discontinued operations are reported on a single line of the Statement of
Earnings for the periods reported, comprising the earnings after tax of discontinued aperations until divestiture and the gain or loss after tax
on sale or fair value measurement, less costs to divest the assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations In addition, cash flows
generated by discontinued operations are reported on a separate line of the Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows for the refevant periods.
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137 Financial liabilities

Long-term and short-term borrowings and other financial habilities include:
» bonds and credit facilities, as well as various other borrowings (including commercial paper and debt related to finance leases) and
refated accrued interest;
obligations arising out of commitments to purchase non-controlling interests;
bank overdrafts; and
the negative value of other derivative financial instruments. Derivatives with positive values are recorded as financial assets in the
Statement of Financial Position.

All borrowings are imhally accounted for at fair value net of transaction costs directly attributable to the barrowing. Borrowings bearing
interest are subsequently valued at amortized cost, applying the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the internal yield
rate that discounts future cash flows over the term of the borrowing. In addition, where the borrowing comprises an embedded dernvative
{e.g., an exchangeable bond) or an equity instrument (e.g., a convertible bond), the amortized cost is calculated for the debt component only,
after separation of the embedded derivative or equity instrument. In the event of a change in expected future cash flows {e.g., redemption
occurs earlier than initially expected), the amortized cost is adjusted against earnings to reflect the value of the new expected cash flows,
discounted at the initia! effective interest rate.

Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests

Vivendi has committed to purchase the non-cantrolling interests of some of the minority shareowners of its fully consolidated subsidiaries.
These purchase commitments may be optional {e.g., put options) or mandatory (e.g., forward purchase contracts).

The following accounting treatment has been applied in respect of commitments made on or after January 1, 2009

e upon initial recognition, the commitment to purchase non-controlling interests is recognized as a financial liability for the present
value of the purchase price under the put option or forward purchase contract, mainly offset by the book value of non-controlling
interests and the remaining balance through equity attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners;

o subsequent changes to the value of the commitment are recognized as a financial liability through an adjustment to equity
attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners; and

= upon maturity of the commitment, if the non-controlling interests are not purchased, the previously recognized entries are reversed; if
the non-controlling intergsts are purchased, the amount recognized in financial liabilities is reversed, offset by the cash outflow
relating to the purchase of the non-controlling interests.

Derivative financial instruments

Vivendi uses derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, and foreign currency
exchange rates. All instruments are either listed on organized markets or traded over-the-counter with highly-rated counterparties. These
instruments include interest rate and currency swaps, and forward exchange contracts. All these derivative financial instruments are used for
hedging purposes.

When these contracts qualify as hedges for accounting purposes, gains and losses arising on these contracts are offset in earnings against
the gains and losses refating to the hedged item. When the derivative financial instrument hedges exposures to fluctuations in the fair value
of an asset or & hability recognized in the Statement of Financial Position or of a firm commitment which is not recognized in the Statement
of Financial Position, it is a fair value hedge. The instrument is remeasured at fair value in earnings, with the gains or losses arising on
remeasurement of the hedged portion of the hedged item offset on the same line of the Statement of Eamings, or, as part of a forecasted
transaction relating to a non-financial asset or liability, at the initial cost of the asset or liability. When the derivative financial instrument
hedges cash flows, 1t is & cash flow hedge. The hedging instrument is remeasured at fair value and the pertion of the gain or loss that is
determined to be an effective hedge is recognized through charges and income directly recognized in equity, whereas its ineffective portion
is recognized in earnings, or, as part of a forecasted transaction on a non-financial asset or liability, they are recognized at the initial cost of
the asset or liability. When the hedged tem 1s realized, accumulated gains and losses recognized in equity are released to the Statement of
Earnings and recorded on the same line as the hedged item When the derivative financial instrument hedges a net investment in a foreign
operation, it is recognized in the same way as a cash flow hedge. Derivative financial instruments which do not qualify as a hedge for
accounting purpeses are remeasured at fair value and resulting gains and losses are recognized directly in eamings, without remeasurement
of the underlying instrument.

Furthermore, income and expenses relating to foreign currency nstruments used to hedge highly probable budget exposures and firm
commitments contracted pursuant to the acquisition of editorial content rights {including sports, audiovisual and film rights) are recognized in
EBIT. In all other cases, gains and losses arising on the fair value remeasurement of instruments are recognized in other financial charges
and income.
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1.3.8  Other liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when, at the end of the reporting pericd, Vivendi has a legal obligatian (legal, regulatory or contractual) or a
constructive obligation, as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obiigation and the obligation can be reliably estimated. Where the effect of the time value of money is material,
pravisions are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money. If the amount of the obligation cannot be reliably estimated, no provision is recorded and a disclosure is made in the Notes 1o the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Employee benefit plans

In accordance with the lews and practices of each country in which it cperates, Vivendi participates in, or maintains, employee benefit plans
providing retirement pensions, post-retirement health care, ife insurance and post-employment benefits to eligible employees, former
employees, retirees and such of their beneficiaries who meet the required conditions. Retirement pensions are provided for substantially all
employees through defined contribution plans, which are integrated with local social security and mufti-employer plans, or defined benefit
plans, which are generally managed via group pension plans. The plan funding policy implemented by the group is consistent with applicable
government funding requirements and regulations.

Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution and multi-employer plans are expensed during the year.
Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit pfans may be funded by investments in various instruments such as insurance contracts or equity and debt investment
securities, excluding Vivendi shares or debt instruments.

Pension expenses and defined benefit abligations are calculated by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. This
method is based on annually updated assumptions, which include the probahility of employees remaining with Vivendi until retirement,
expected changes in future compensation and an appropriate discount rate for each country in which Vivendi maintains a pension plan The
assumptions adopted in 2014 and 2015, and the means of determining these assumptions, are presented in Note 17. A provision is recorded
in the Statement of Financial Position equal to the difference between the actuarial value of the related benefits (actuarial liability) and the
fair value of any associated plan assets, and includes past service cost and actuarial gains and losses.

The cost of defined benefit plans consists of three components recognized as follows:

+ the service cost is included in sefling, general and administrative expenses. It comprises current service cost, past sefvice cost
resufting from a plan amendment or a curtaiiment, immediately recognized in profit and loss, and gains and losses on settlement;

» the financial component, recorded in other financial charges and income, consists of the undiscounting of the obligation, less the
expected retum on plan assets determined using the distount rate retained for the valuation of the benefit obligation; and

+ the remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset), recognized in items of other comprehensive income not reclassified to
profit and loss, mainiy consist of actuarial gains and losses, i.e., changes in the present value of the defined benefit abligation and
plan assets resulting from changes in actuarial assumptions and experience adjustments {representing the differences between the
expected effect of some actuarial assumptions applied to previous valuations and the effective impact).

Where the value of plan assets exceeds benefit obligations, a financial asset is recognized up 1o the present value of future refunds and the
expected reduction in future contributions.

Some other past-emplayment benefits, such as life insurance and medical coverage (mainly in the United States} are subject ta provisions
which are assessed through an actuarial calculation comparable to the methed used for pension provisions.

On January 1, 2064, 1n accordange with IFRS 1, Vivend! decided to record unrecognized actuarial gains and losses against consohidated
equity.
139 Deferred taxes

Differences existing at closing between the tax base value of assets and liabitities and their carrying value in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Pesition give rise to temporary differences Pursuant to the liability method, these temporary differences result in the accounting of;
» deferred tax assets, when the tax base value is greater than the carrying value {expected future tax saving); and
o deferred tax hizhilities, when the tax base value is lower than the camying value (expected future tax expense).
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the expected tax rates for the year during which the asset will be realized or the liahility
settied, based on tax rates {and tax regulations) enacted or substantially enacted by the closing date. They are reviewed at the end of each
year, in line with any changes in applicable tax rates

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, tax loss camy-forwards and unused tax credits, insofar as it is
probable that a taxable profit will be available, or when a current tax liability exists to make use of those deductible temporary differences,
tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, except where the deferred tax asset associated with the deductible temporary difference is
generated by initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date,
does not impact earnings, nor tax income or foss.

For deductible temporary differences resulting from investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
assets are recorded to the extent that it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and that a taxable
orofit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each closing date, and revalued or reduced te the extent that it is more or less
probable that a taxable profit will be available to allow the deferred tax asset to be utilized. When assessing the probability of a taxable
profit being available, account is taken, primarily, of prior years’ results, forecasted future results, non-recurring items unlikely to occur in the
future and the tax strategy. As such, the assessment of the group’s ability to utilize tax losses carried forward is to a large extent judgment-
based. If the future taxable results of the group proved to differ significantly fram those expected, the group would be required to increase or
decrease the carrying value of deferred tax assets with a potentially material impact on the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of
Earnings of the group.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable tempaorary differences, except where the deferred tax liability results from goodwill or
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date, does not
impact earnings, tax income or loss.

for taxable temporary differences resulting from investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
hiabilities are recorded except to the extent that both of the following conditions are satisfied: the parent, investor or venturer is able to
cantrol the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probabie that the temporary difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Current tax and deferred tax shall be charged or credited directly to equity, and not earnings, if the tax relates to items that are credited or
charged directly to equity.

1.3.10 Share-based compensation

With the aim of aligning the interests of its executive management and employees with its shareholders” interests by providing them with an
additional incentive to improve the company's performance and increase its share price on a long-term basis, Vivendi maintains several
share-based compensation plans {share purchase plans, performance share plans and bonus share plans) or other equity instruments based
on the value of the Vivendi share price {stock options), which are settled either in equity instruments or in cash. Grants under these plans are
approved by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board. In addition, the definitive grant of stock options and performance shares is
contingent upon the achievement of specific performance objectives set by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board. Moreover, all
granted plans are conditional upon active employment at the vesting date.

In addition, Universal Music Group maintained Equity Long-Term Incentive Plans. Under these plans, certain key executives were awarded
equity units, which were settled in cash. These equity units were phantom stock units whose value is intended to reflect the value of
Universal Music Group.

Please refer to Note 18 for details of the features of these plans.

Share-based compensation is recognized as a personnel cost at the fair value of the equity instruments granted. This expense is spread over
the vesting period, i.e., three years for stock option plans and for performance share plans {two years for performance shares granted before
June 24, 2014}, and two years for Vivendi’s bonus share plans, other than in specific cases.

Vivendi use a binomial model to assess the fair value of such instruments. This method relies on assumptions updated at the valuation date
such as the calculated volatility of the relevant shares, the discount rate corresponding te the risk-free interest rate, the expected dividend
yield, and the probability of relevant managers and employees remaining employed within the group until the exercise of their rights.

However, depending on whether the instruments granted are equity-settled or cash-settled, the valuation and recognition of the expense will
differ:
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Equity-settled instruments:
e the expected term of the option granted is deemed to be the mid-point between the vesting date and the end of the contractual term,
« the value of the instruments granted is estimated and fixed at grant date; and
s the expense is recognized with a corresponding increase in equity.

Cash-settied instruments:

= the expected term of the instruments granted is deemed to be equal to one-half of the residual contractual term of the instrument for
vested rights, and to the average of the residual vesting period at the remeasurement date and the residual contractual term of the
instrument for unvested rights;

s the value of instruments granted is initially estimated at grant date and is then re-estimated at each reporting date until the payment
date and the expense is adjusted pro rata taking into account the vested rights at each such reporting date;

s the expense is recognized as a provision; and

«  moreover, as plans settled in cash are primarily denominated in US dollars, the value fluctuates based on the EUR/USD exchange
rate.

Share-based compensation cost is allocated to each operating segment, pro rata to the number of equity instruments or equivalent
instruments granted to their managers and employees.

The dilutive effect of stack options and performance shares settled in equity through the issuance of Vivendi shares which are in the process
of vesting is reflected in the calculation of diluted earnings per share.

In accordance with IFRS 1, Vivendi elected to retrospectively apply IFRS 2 as of January 1, 2004 Consequently, all share-based
compensation plans for which nights remained to be vested as of January 1, 2004 were accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2.

1.4 Related parties

Group-refated parties are those companies over which the group exercises exclusive control, joint control or significant influence,
sharehoiders exercising joint control over group joint ventures, non-controlling interests exercising significant influence over group
subsidiaries, corporate officers, group management and directors and companies over which the [atter exercise exclusive control, jaint
control, or significant influence.

The transactions realized with subsidiaries over which the group exercises control are not included in the intersegment operations {a list of
the group's major consolidated entities is presented in Note 24). Moreover, commercial relationships among subsidianes of the group,
aggregated in operating segments, are conducted on an arm’s-length basis on terms and conditions similar to those which would be offered
by third parties. The operating costs of Vivendi SA’s headquarters, after the allocation of a portion of these costs to each of the group’s
businesses, are included in the Corporate operating segment.

15 Contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities

Once a year, Vivendi and its subsidiaries prepare detailed reports on all material contractual obligations, commercial and financial
commitments and contingent obligations, for which they are |ointly and severally liable. These detailed reports are updated by the relevant
departments and reviewed by senior management on a regular basis. To ensure completeness, accuracy and consistency of these reports,
some dedicated internal control procedures are carried out, including (but not limited to) the review of-
e minutes of meetings of the shareholders, Management Board, Supervisory Board and committees of the Supervisory Board in respect
of matters such as contracts, litigation, and authorization of asset acquisitions or divestitures;
pledges and guarantees with banks and financial institutions;
pending litigation, claims (in dispute} and environmental matters as well as related assessments for unrecorded contingencies with
internal and/or external legal counsels;
tax examiner's reports and, If applicable, notices of reassessments and tax expense analyses for prior years;
¢ insurance coverage for unrecorded contingencies with the risk management department and insurance agents and brokers with
whom the group contracted;
s related-party transactions for guarantees and other given or received cemmitments; and more generally
s major contracts and agreements.
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16 New IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have been published but are not yet effective

Among IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations issued by the IASB/IFRS IC as of the date of approval of these Consolidated Financial
Statements, but which are not yet effective, and for which Vivendi has not elected for an eartier application, the main standards which may
have an impact on Vivendi are the following:

s The amendments to IAS 38 — Intangible Assets, related to clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortization,
which apply mandatorily from January 1, 2016 and endorsed in the EU. Vivendi expects no significant impact deriving from the
application of these amendments Indeed, within its film production and television rights activities, Vivendi considers that the
amortization method based on revenue generated by these activities (according to the estimated revenue method described in Note
1353} is appropriate because revenue is hughly comelated with the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in the
intangible assets.

« [FRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which applies mandatorily from January 1, 2018, and is still to be endorsed in the
EU Vivendi is currently assessing the potential impact on the Statement of Earnings, the aggregate comprehensive income, the
Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash Flows, and the content of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in applying this standard.
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Note2  Major changes in the consolidation scope and the equity portfolio

21 Acquisition of a 90% interest in Dailymotion

On June 30, 2015, Vivendi completed the acquisition of an 80% interest in Dailymotion from Orange for a cash consideration of €217 mullion,
based on a full enterprise value of €265 million. Limited representations and warranties, customary for this type of transaction, were granted
by Orange.

On July 30, 2015, Vivendi purchased an additional 10% interest in Dallymetion from Orange for a cash cansideration of €28.7 mitlion. In
addition, Orange was granted a put option on its remaining 10% interest, exercisable within twe months following the General Shareholders’
Meeting held to approve Dailymation's Financial Statements far the year ended December 31, 2016. At the end of this period, Vivendi will
have a call option, exercisable within two months,

As from June 30, 2015, Vivend has consolidated Dailymetion under the full goodwill methed and performed a preliminary allocation of the
purchase price for 100% of Dailymotion. The allocation of the purchase price will be finalized within the 12-month period following the
acquisition date, as required by accounting standards. The provisional goodwill amoynted to £262 million. The fing! amount of goodwill may
differ from the amount initially recorded

22  Acquisition of an interest in Telecom ltalia

On June 24, 2015, Vivendi announced that it had become the largest shareholder of Telecom ltalia, holding 14.9% of Telecom [talia common
shares. As of December 31, 2015, Vivend held 21.4% of Telecom Htalia common shares and 14.8% of the diluted capital, pursuant to the
following transactions:

» onJune 24, 2015, pursuant to the agreement entered into with Telefonica for the sale of GVT, Vivendi swapped a 4.5% interest in
Telefonica Brasil with Telefonica in exchange for a block of 1,110 shares, representing 8.24% of Telecom italia common shares;

¢ between June 10 and June 18, 2015, Vivendi acquired 1.90% of Telecom Italia common shares directly on the stock market
{256 million shares) and, on June 22, 2015, Vivendi acquired a block of 642 million shares representing 4.76% of Telecom italia
common shares from a financial institution; and

* during the second heff of 2015, Vivendi acquired 880 miltion Telecom }ialia common shares directly on the stock market.

On June 22, 2015, Vivend entered into a hedge transaction involving 5.6% of Telecom Itaha common shares, through a three-year
zero-premium collar {consisting of a put option acquired by Vivendi and a call option sold by Vivendi]. On June 30, 2015, to benefit from
favorable market conditions, Vivendi unwound this ¢ollar in cash and entered into a three-month cash-settled swap on 4.7% of Telecom
Iltalia common shares, pursuant to which Vivendi would have to pay the positive difference hetween the Telecom Italia stock market price
and the share price at the unwinding cof the collar, if applicable. At the end of August 2015, Vivendi unwound this swap for a net payment of
approximately €26 million given the evolution of the Telecom Italia stock market price.

Accounting for the investment in Telecom ltalia

©n December 15, 2015, Telecom italia’s Extraordinary General Sharehoiders' Meeting appointed Mr. Amaud de Puyfontaine, chairman of
Vivendi's Management Board, as well as Mr. Hervé Philippe and Mr. Stéphane Roussel, members of Vivendi's Management Board, as
members of Telecom Italia’s Board of Directors. As from that date, Vivendi has the power to participate the financial and operating policy
decisions of Telecom ltalia, according to IAS 28, and, consequently, it considers exercising a significant influence over Telecom Halia.

* Between June 24 and December 14, 2015, Vivendi's investment in Telecom Italia was accounted for as “ava:lable-for-sale
securities”, revalued at the stock market price and the change in value was recognized as “charges and income d:rectly recognized in
equity”, in accordance with 1AS 39,

+  Ags from Becember 15, 2015, the interest in Telecom Italia has been accounted for under the eguity method, in accordance with
IAS 28. On that date, this interest was revalued at the stock market price and the change in value was a gain of €30 million recycled
1o the Statement of Earnings, as "Other income”.

»  As of December 31, 2015, Vivend! held 2,888 mitlion (21 4%) Telecom Italia common shares {14.8% of the diluted capital), valued at
€3,319 million given the share purchases since December 15, 2015, This amount included €2,008 million paid in cash. The average
purchase price amounted to €1 14 per share. The market value of this interest amounted to €3,393 million.

*  As of February 10, 2016, the date of Vivendi's Management Board that approved the Cansolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2015, Telecom Italia’s Consolidated Financiaf Statements were not gublicly reported, which prevented Vivendi in
215 to mest the requirements set forth in IFRS 12 regarding the financial information related to Telecom Itahia In 2016, Vivendi will
rely on Telecom italia's public financial information to account for its interest in Telecom italia under the equity method.
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23 Divestment of Telefonica Brasil and entry into Telefonica’'s share capital

On July 29, 2015, Vivendi sold a 4.0% interest in Telefonica Brasil on the stock market, for a consideration of US$877 miilion
(i.e.. €800 million). This transaction was carried out after the preferred shares were converted into American Depositary Receipts (ADR).

On July 29, 2015, Vivendi entered into an agreement with Telefonica to swap a 3.5% interest in Telefonica Brasil in exchange for a
0.95% interest in Telefonica (46 million shares). After obtaining the approval of the Brazilian competition authority (CADE), this swap
transaction was completed on September 16, 2015, and the value of the interest amounted to €538 million as of this date. In December
2015, Vivendi received 1.4 mitlion additional Telefonica shares with respect to the dividend in shares, representing a value of €16 miltion.

As of December 31, 2015, Vivendi held 47.4 million Telefonica shares {a 0.95% interest). This interest was accounted for as “available-for-
sate securities” in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and, in accordance with IAS 39, is revalued at the stock market
price at each reporting date, as the unrealized capital gains or losses are directly recognized in equity. On that date, the interest in Telefonica
was valued at €485 million, representing an unrealized capital loss of €70 million.

24 Acquisition of interests in Ubisoft and Gameloft

Uhisoft

As of December 31, 2015, Vivendi held 15.7 million Ubisoft Entertainment {"Ubisoft”) shares, i.e , 13.98% of the share capitai and 12.35% of
the voting rights, representing acquisitions on the stock market for £351 miflion.

On October 26, 2015, Vivendi made the following declaration of intent,

Vivendi's acquisitions were financed using its avallable cash. Vivendi is not acting in concert with any third party in connection with its
investments in Ubisoft and has not entered into a temporary sale agreement for Ubisoft shares or voting rights. it does not hold instruments
and is not a party to agreements such as those referred to in paragraphs 4° and 4° bis of Article L.233-9 of the French Commercial Code
{Code de commerce).

The group contemplates continuing the acquisition of shares depending on market conditions. These acquisitions were not specifically
designed as a preparatory step for a plan to takeover Ubisoft; nonetheless, over the six coming months, Vivendi cannot rule out the
possibility of considering such a plan. Vivendi plans to request, in due time, to be represented on the company’s Board of Directors.

Vivendi's investment in Ubisoft’s business sector is part of a strategic vision of operational convergence between, Vivend!'s contents and
platforms, and Ubisoft's productions in video games. Since this strategy does not require any modification to Ubisoft's legal or financial
organization, Vivendi does not contemplate implementing any of the transactions referred to in Article 223-17, |, 6° of the AMF Aéglement
Général {General Regulations).

As of Decernber 31, 2015, this interest was accounted for as "available-for-sale securities™ in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position and, in accordance with IAS 39, is revalued at the stock market price at each reporting date, as the unrealized capital gains or losses
are directly recognized in equity.

As of February 10, 2016, the date of Vivendi's Management Board that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended
December 31, 2015, Vivendi held 16.7 million Ubisoft Entertainment shares, i.e., 14.89% of the share capital and 13 15% of the voting rights.

Gameloft

As of December 31, 2015, Vivendi heid 24.5 million Gameloft SE {“Gameloft”) shares, i.e., 28.65% of the share capital and 25.50% of the
voting rights, representing acquisitions on the stock market for €122 million. This interest was accounted for as “available-for-sale
securities” in Vivend’s Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of Decernber 31, 2015, in accordance with I1AS 39, and is revalued at
the stock market price at each reporting date, as the unrealized capital gains or losses are directly recognized in equity.

As of February 10, 2018, the date of Vivendi's Management Board that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2015, Vivendi held 25.4 millien Gameloft shares, i.e., 29.75% of the share capital and 26.49% of the voting rights. At this
meeting, Vivendi’s Management Board decided to submit to the Supervisory Board, at its meeting to be held on February 18, 2016, the
project of public tender offer for all Gameloft shares.
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25  Vivendi's public tender offer for the shares of Société d'Edition de Canal Plus {SECP)

On May 12, 2015, Vivendi announced its intention to file a public tender offer (“"the offer”} with the Autorité des marchés financiers (the
French securities regulator) for the shares of SECP, 48.5% of which were owned by Canal+ Group SA, 2 wholly-owned subsidiary of Vivendi.

The offer periods lasted from July 9 until August 12, 2015, and from August 31 until September 11, 2015, at a price of €800 per share
{compared to the £7.60 price initially anngunced). Following completion cf the offer, Vivendi directly and indirectly held 122,982,460 SECP
shares, representing 97.07% of the share capital and voting rights of SECP.

In accordance with applicable laws and reguiations, Vivendi launched a squeeze-out procedure for the SECP shares not directly or indirectly
held by Vivendi. On September 28, 2015, the squeeze-out for the 3,708,308 SECP shares not held by Vivendi, representing a 2.93% interest,
was made at the same price as the tender offer price.

Upon completion of these transactions, Vivendi acquired a 51.5% interest in SECF, at a price of €8.00 per share (€522 mdlion), and SECP is
now wholly-cwned, directly and indirectly, by Vivendi. In accordance with IFRS standards, the difference between the acquisition price paid
and the camying valug of the acquired non-controlling interest was recorded as a deduction from equity atiributable to Vivendi SA
sharegwners for £375 milkion.

2.6 Other acquisitions

Radionomy

On December 17, 2015, Vivendi purchased a 64.4% interest in Badionomy Group for a €24 million cash consideration, based on a full
enterprise vatue of €40 million. In addition, Vivendi and the minority shareholders were granted call options and put options, respectively, on
the interest held by the minority shareholders. The call options are exercisable by Vivendi in June 2018. At the end of this period, the
minarity sharehalders will have put options, exercisable the following month.

As from December 17, 2015, Vivendi has consolidated Radionomy under the full goodwill methed. The purchase price and its aliocation wilt
be finalized within the 12-month period following the acquisition date, as required by accounting standards. The provisional goodwill
amounted to €41 million. The final amount of goodwill may differ from the amount initially recorded.

Boulogne Studios
On September 9, 2015, Vivend: acquired a company called Boulogne Studios for €40 million

2.7 Acquisition in progress of an interest in Banijay Zodiak

Vivendi's project to invest in the future Banijay Zodiak group ("BZ”), which will be born out of the combinaticn between Banijay Group and
Zodiak Media, two of the largest audiovisual production companies in Europe, is expected to be completed before the end of the first quarier
of 2016, subject to the satisfaction of several conditions precedent. In this respect, all approvals by the relevant competition authorities (and
notably the European Commission) were granted. There are three components to this investment:

1, a €100 million investment to obtain a 26.2% interest in the future combined entity BZ;

ii.  the subscription to a €100 million bond (*ORAN1") redeemable in shares or cash issued by BZ. Upon maturity of ORAN1, BZ would
have the option of either redeeming the bond in cash or converting it into a number of BZ shares which, in addition to the shares
already held by Vivendi, would bring Vivendi's interest in the company to a maximum of 49.9%; and

fii the subscription to a €90 miilion bond {*ORAN2"} redeemable in shares or cash issued by Lov-Banijay, a holding company
controlted by Financigre Lov. Upon maturity of ORANZ, Lov Banijay would have the aption of either redeeming the bond in cash or
converting it into 2 number of shares that would give Vivendi a 25% interest in Lov Banijay.

Both bonds have a 7-year maturity.

Vivendl would have the right to appoint two representatives to BZ's Board of Directors, and would be granted certain veto and
tag-along rights.
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28 Sale of the 20% interest in Numericable-SFR

As a reminder, on November 27, 2014, Vivendi completed the combination between SFR ard Numericable. Pursuant to this transaction,
Vivendi received net cash proceeds of €13,050 million, which takes into account the €250 million final price adjustment {including an
additional €116 million paid by Vivendi on May 6, 2015}, as well as Vivendi's €200 million contribution to the financing of the acquisition of
Virgin Mobile by Numericable-SFR. In addition to the cash proceeds, Vivendi received a 20% interest in the new entity Numericable-SFR as
well as an earn-out right of €750 million contingent upen Numericable-SFR's operating performance. Vivendi granted specific guarantees to
Numericable-SFR which are limited in amount, and issued certain undertakings to the French Competition Authority.

On February 27, 2015, after review by the Management Board, Vivendi's Supervisory Board unanimously decided to accept the offer received
on February 17, 2015 from Numericable-SFR and Altice, to purchase the Numericable-SFR shares held by Vivendi, which represented 20% of
the share capital of Numericable-SFR. The purchase offer was as follows:

a.  Repurchase by Numericable-SFR of 10% of its own shares:

In accordance with the Share Repurchase Agreement signed on February 27, 2015, at Numericable-SFR General Shareholders’
Mesting held on April 28, 2015, the shareholders approved the repurchase of 48,693,922 of the company’s own shares held by
Vivendi {i.e , a 10% interest) at a purchase price of £40 per share, for an aggregate consideration of €1,348 million, paid on May 6,
2015.

b. Purchase by Altice of a 10% interest in Numericable-SFR:

On May B, 2015, the closing date of the share repurchase, Altice acquired 48,693,923 shares at a price of €40 per share, for an
aggregate consideration of £1,948 million, payable no later than April 7, 2016, with an early payment option for the full amount.
Payment was received by Vivend) on August 18, 2015 for £1,974 million.

The capital gain on the sale of the 20% interest in Numericable-SFR amounted to €651 million {before taxes), classified as "other income” in
EBIT.

This transaction permitted Vivendi to complete its divestment of SFR under financial conditions which resulted in it receiving, with respect to
this minority interest, a 20% premium over the closing price of Numericable-SFR shares on November 27, 2014. The low liguidity level of
Numericable-SFR shares made an exit under optimal conditions uncertain, In total, net proceeds received by Vivendi from the sale of SFR
amounted to approximately €17 billion, in line with the valuation projected by Vivendi in April 2014

The completion of these transactions resulted in the termination of: (i} the agreements pursuant to which Vivendi was entitled to receive a
potential earn-out payment of €750 miltion and a specific guarantee given by Vivendi; (i) the shareholders’ agreement including in particular
a non-compete provision relating to Canal+ Group in specific sectors and territories; and (iii} discussions over a sale price adjustment of SFR
based on its level of debt at the closing date, which resulted in the payment by Vivendi of €116 million.

In addition, Vivendi was informed that the tax authorities are challenging the validity of the merger completed in December 2011 between
SFR and Vivendi Telecom International {VT1) and, consequently, intend to contest the inclusion of SFR within the Vivendi tax group in respect
of fiscal year 2011. The tax authorities plan to require that SFR be carved-out from Vivendi's tax group for that fiscal year and to make a
ciaim against SFR for a total amount of £1,374 millien, representing a principal tax amount of €711 million plus default interest and penalties
of €663 million.

As part of the agreement entered into on February 27, 2015 among Vivendi, Altice and Numericable-SFR, Vivendi agreed to return to SFR, if
applicable, taxes and contributions that could be borne by SFR for fiscal year 2011 and that SFR would have already paid at that time to
Vivendi, up to a maximum amount of €711 million (including €154 million corresponding to the use by SR of VTI's tax losses in 2011 or 2012)
covering the entire period within which SFR belonged to the Vivend: tax group, if the 2011 merger of SFR and VT! were to be ultimately
invalidated for tax purposes. Vivendi and Altice/Numericable-SFR have agreed to cooperate in order to challenge the position of the tax
authorities.

Vivendi Management believes that it has solid legal grounds on which to defend the inclusion of SFR within the Vivendi tax group in respect
of fiscal year 2011 or, failing that, its consofidation by applying the Consolidated Globat Profit Tax System in respect of such fiscal year.
Therefore, Vivendi believes that the agreement entered into on February 27, 2015 between Vivendi and Altice/Numericable-SFR should not
have a materially adverse impact on the financial position or liquidity of the company.
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29  Sale of GVT

On May 28, 2015, pursuant to the agreements entered into on September 18, 2014, Vivendi sold 100% of GVT, its Brazilian
telecommunications subsidiary, to Telefonica for an enterpnise value of €7.5 billion {based on the stock market value and foreign exchange
rates on that date). The main terms of this transaction are described below.

Cash proceeds £€4,178 million {befare taxes), corresponding to a contractual gross amount of €4,663 million in
cash, net of the sale price adjustments (€485 million). including, among other things.
exceptional changes in net working capital, GVT's bank debt at the clesing date, as well as
certain restatements as contractually defined by the parties.

After taxes paid in Brazil (€395 million), the net cash proceeds received by Vivendi amounted
to €3,783 million. This amount will be further decreased by the income tax payable in France,
estimated at approximately €237 million, which will bring the net sale proceeds to
approximately €3.6 billion.

Consideration shares 12% interest in Telefonica Brasil. Pursuant to the agreements entered into with Telefonica,
Vivendi subsequently swapped a 4.5% interest in Telefonica Brasil in exchange for 8 24% of
Telecom Italia common shares {please refer to Note 2.2 ahove).

Commitments given Representations and warranties, limited to specifically identified tax matters, capped at
BAL180 million.
Vivendi gave a commitment to CADE to progressively exit from Telefonica Brasil

Liquidity With respect to Vivendi's interest in Telefonica Brasii:

- lock-up period until July 28, 2015; and
- tag-along rights.
Govemance No specific governance rights in Telefonica Brasil nor in Telecom Italia.

Decensolidation of GVT as from May 28, 2015

As from the third quarter of 2014, GVT had been presented in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Eamings, Statement of Cash Flows and
Statement of Financial Position as a discontinued operation. On May 28, 2015, Vivendi sold 100% of GVT to Telefonica and received
£4,178 million in cash {before taxes) and a 12% interest in Telefonica Brasil. On that date, Vivendi deconsolidated GVT.

The capital gain on the sale of GVT amounted to €1,818 million, before taxes amounting to €634 million {of which €335 mitfion paid n Brazil},
and was recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Eamings under the line “Eamings from discontinued operations”. Bxluding the
discontinuation' of amortization since the third quarter of 2014, in accordance with iFRS 5, the capital gain after taxes on the sale of GVT
would have amounted to €1,453 million.

On July 28, 2015, Vivendi divested its entire 7.5% interest in Telefonica Brasil {please refer to Note 2.3 above).

210 Sale of the interastin TVN in Poland

On July 1, 2015, Canal+ Group and [Tl Group sold their controlling interest in TVN {Potand’s free-to-air TV) to Southbank Media Ltd., a
London-based subsidiary of Scripps Networks Interactive inc Group.

Pursuant to the terms of the transaction, N-Vision B.V., which held a 52.7% controlling interest in TVN, was acquired by Southbank Media Ltd.
for an aggregate cash consideration of £584 million {i.e., €273 million for Canak Group).
SouthBank Media Ltd. took over the bond 1ssued by Polish Television Holding B.V. (€300 million nominal value).

! Wen an operation is discontinued, IFRS 5 requires the discontinuation of the amortization of the operation’s tangible and intangible assets Therefore, for GVT, Vivend:
discontiived the amortization of tangible and intangible assets as from the third quarter of 2014, resulting i a positive impact of €269 million on earmings from discontinued
operations from September 1, 2014 to May 28, 2015,
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In compliance with [FRS 5, the line "Eamings from discontinued operations” presented in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Eamnings
includes, until their respective sale dates, GVT {soid on May 28, 2015), SFR (sold on November 27, 2014), Maroc Telecom group (sold on
May 14, 2014}, as well as the capital gains realized upon completion of the divestitures of these operations.

{in mitlions of euros)
Revenues
EBITDA
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA)
EBITA after discontinuation of amortization {a)
Eamings before interest and income taxes (EBIT)
Eamings before prowision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Earnings
Capital gain on the divestiture of GVT
Taxes patd in Branl related to the divestiture of GVT
Capital loss on the divestiture of Teleforica Brasil
Other
Earnings from discontinued operations

Of which attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners

nan-controlling interests

(in millions of euros)
Revenues
EBITDA
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA)
EBITA after discontinuation of amortization {a)
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT)
Earnings hefora provision for income taxes
Prowision for income taxes
Earnings
Capital gains on completed divestitures
Other
Earnings from discontinued operations

Qf which attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners

non-controlling interests

na' not applicable.

2015 year contributions
GVT Other Total
738 138
292 292
138 138
291 291
289 289
1% 195
{16} (16)
179 - 19
1818 1,818
{395} (395)
- (294 (284}
- {75) 1oy (75)
1,602 {369) 1233
- -]
1,602 (369} 1,233
2014 year contributions
VT SR Maroc Telecom Other Total
Group
1,765 8,981 969 1,75
702 21728 530 - 3.361
367 699 360 - 1416
478 1,732 531 - 274
457 1,676 531 2,664
393 1,487 527 2,407
(89} {188} {120) (397)
304 1,299 407 - 2010
na 2,378 786 84 (o) 3248
2} - - ] 4
302 3,671 1,193 90 5262
302 3663 879 90 5,034
- 14 214 - 2728

a. In compliance with IFRS 5, Vivendi discontinued the amortization of tangible and intangible assets of GVT as from September 1, 2014,
SFR as from April 1, 2014 and Maroc Telecom group as from July 1, 2013.

b Included the €69 million remaining impact related to the sale of an 80% interest in SFR to Numericable, notably the final sale price

adjustment

¢ Included the capital gain on the divestiture of 41.5 million Activision Blizzard shares on May 22, 2014.
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Note3d  Segmentdata

31

Operating segment data

Vivendi Management evaluates the performance of its business segments and allocates necessary resources to them based on certain
operating performance indicators {segment earnings and cash flow from operations). Income from operations and EBITA reflect the eamnings
of each business segment.

The operating segments presented hereunder are strictly identical to the information given to Vivendi's Management Board.

Vivendi's main businesses are aggregated within the following operating segments:

Canal+ Group: publishing and distribution of premum and thematic pay-TV channels, as well as free-to-air channels in France,
Poland, Africa and Vietnam, as well as production, sales and distribution of cinema films and TV series.

Universal Music Group: sale of recorded music (physical and digital media), exploitation of music publishing rights, as well as
artist services and merchandising.

Vivendi Village: Vivendi Ticketing (with See Tickets and Digitick). MyBestPro (formerly Wengo, expert counseling), Watchever
{subscription video-on-demand), L'Olympia (the Paris-based music hall), Radionomy (acquired on December 17, 2015), as well as
CanalOlympia {business in the process of being developed in Africal.

New Initiatives: Dailymotion {acquired on June 30, 2015, please refer to Note 2.1}, Vivendi Contents’ businesses {created in
February 2015, bringing together notably Flab Prod and Studio+), Boulogne Studios, as weil as Group Vivendi Africa {business in the
process of being developed).

Corporate: central services

Intersegment commercial operations are conducted on an arm's-length basis, on terms and conditions similar to those which would be
offered by third parties
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Main aggregates of the Statement of Eamings

Year ended December 31,

(in miltions of euros) 2015 2014
Revenues
Canal+ Group 5513 5,456
Universal Music Group 5,108 4,557
Vivendi Village 100 96
New Initiatives 43 -
Elimination of intersegment transactions {2} {20)
10,762 10,089
Income from operations
Canal+ Group 542 618
Universal Music Group 626 606
Vivend Viliage 10 {34)
New Inihatives {18} -
Corporate {99) {62)
1,061 1,108
Restructuring charges
Canah Group {47) -
Universal Music Group {51) {50}
Vivendi Village (1 {44)
New Initiatives - -
Corporate {3} {10}
(102} (104)
Charges related to equity-settled share-based compensation plans
Canal+ Group (3 {3
Universal Music Group {5) (2}
Vivendi Village - {1}
New Initiatives - -
Corporate (8} {3)
{16) {9)
Other non-current operating charges and income
Canak+ Group {38) {32)
Universal Music Group 23 n
Vivendi Village - -
New Initiatives {2 -
Corporate 16 25
{1) 4
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA)
Canal+ Group 454 583
Universal Music Group 593 565
Vivendi Village g {79)
New initiatives {20) -
Corporate (94) {70}
942 999

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 Vivendi /55



Reconciliation of EBIT to EBITA and to income from operations

{in millions of euros)
EBIT (a)
Adjustments

Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations

Fricay, February 19, 2016

Year ended December 31,

impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations (a)

Other income {a}

Other charges (a)

EBITA

Adjustments

Restructuring chargss {a)

Charges related to equity-settled share-based compensation plans
Other non-current aperating charges and income

Income from operations

a. As reported in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

{in millions of euros) December 31,2015 December 31, 2014
Segment assets (a)
Canal+ Group 7,575 1829
Universal Music Group 9242 8677
Vivendi Village 216 154
New Initiatives 387 -
Corporate 8,026 5,896
25446 22,556
Segment liabilities (b)
Canal+ Group 2615 2,809
Universal Music Group 3,562 3,463
Vivendi Village 17 129
New Initiatives 50 .
Corporate 3,550 2404
0,884 8,605

2015 2014
1.8 736
408 344
3 92
{745) (203}
15 30
942 999
102 104
16 9
1 {4)
1,061 1,108

3. Segment assets include goodwill, content assets, other intangible assets, property, ptant and equipment, investments in equity affiliates,
financial assets, inventories and trade accounts receivable, and other

b. Segment liabilities include provisions, other non-current liabilities, and trade accounts payable and ather

Additional operating segment data is presented in the following Notes: Note 9 “Goodwill” and Note 10 “Content assets and commitments”
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Depreciations and amortizations

Year ended December 31,
{in ritiions of euros) 2015 2014
Capital expenditures, net {capex net} (a}
Canal+ Group 181 190
Universal Music Group 53 46
Vivendi Village 1 7
New Initiatives 4 -
Corporate 1 -
246 243
increase in tangible and imangible assets
Canal+ Group 175 205
Universal Music Group 83 47
Vivendi Village 7 7
New Initiatives 5 -
Corporate 1 -
FL]] 259
Depreciation of tangible assets
Canal+ Group 163 170
Universal Music Group 67 58
Vivendi Village 2 3
New Initiatives 2 -
Corporate - 1
234 232
Amortization of intangible assets excluding those acquired through business combinations
Canal+ Group 10 72
Universal Music Group -
Vivendi Village - 3
New Initiatives 1 -
Corporate - -
n 75
Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations
Canal+ Group 8 8
Universal Music Group 398 334
Vivendi Village 2 2
New Initiatives - -
Corporate - -
408 344
Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations
Canal+ Group 1
Universal Music Group 2 1
Vivend Village - a1
New Initiatives - -
Corporate - -
3 92

a. Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets.
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32 Geographic informaticn

Revenues are broken down by customer location

Year ended December 31,
{in millions of euros} 2015 2014
Revenuss
France 4464 42% 4482 44%
Rest of Europe 2.567 24% 2,505 25%
United States 2,191 20% 1,748 17%
Rest of the world 1,540 14% 1,354 14%
0,762 100% 10,089 106%
. ]
{in millions of euros} Becember 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Segment assets
France 9,568 38% 11,774 52%
Rest of Europe 6,109 24% 2519 He%
United States 9,078 5% 7.660 H%
Rest of the world 631 2% 603 3%
25,446 00% 22,55 00%
Note 4 EBIT

Breakdown of revenues and cost of revenues

Year ended Decembar 31,

{in millions of euros) 2015 2014
Product sales, net 5,269 4,701
Services revenues 5437 5322
Other ﬁ 66
Revenues 10,762 10,089
Cost of products sold, net {2,658) {2,365}
Cost of servige revenues {3.897) (3,7489)
Other - 8)
Cost of revenues (6.555) (6,121}
Personnel costs and average employee numbers

Year ended December 31,
{in milhons of euros) Note 2015 2014
Salaries 1,138 1,005
Social secunity and other employment charges 310 276
Capitalized personnel costs _‘@ __i3_}
Wages and axpenses 1,445 1,278
Share-based compensation plans 18 19 (8) ta)
Employes benefit plans 17 40 10
Other 4 42
Personnel costs 1,545 1322
Annuaf average number of full-time equivalent employees (in thousands) 166 5.7

a  Notably included a €19 million reversal of reserve related to the departure of a key executive from Universal Music Group {please refer
to Note 18.2}.

Additional information on operating expenses

Advertising costs amounted to €348 million in 2019 {compared to €407 millon in 2014).

Expenses recorded in the Statement of Earnings, with respect to service contracts related ta satellite transponders amounted to £120 million
in 2015 {compared to £115 miltion in 2014)

Net expense recorded in the Statement of Carmings, with respect to operating leases amounted to €113 million in 2015 {compared to
€104 miltion in 2014).
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Taxes on production

Taxes on production amounted to €179 million in 2015 (compared to €173 million in 2014), of which €38 million related to taxes on television
services {compared to £102 miilion in 2014) and €22 million related to the territorial economic contribution {unchanged compared to 2014).

Other income and other charges

Year ended December 31,
{in milhons of evros} 2015 2014
Capital gain on financial investments 745 {a) 194 ity
Qther - 9
Other income 745 203
Downside adjustment on financial investments {7) (17)
QOther {38) (13)
Other charges {45) {30}
Net total 700 173

a. Included the capital gain on the sale of the 20% interest in Numericable-SFR (€651 million, before taxes) and the reversal of the
£54 million impairment reserve related ta Canal+ Group’s interest in TVN in Poland {please refer to Note Z 10).

t. Included the capital gain of the sale of Universal Music Group's interest in Beats (€179 million).

Note 5 Financial charges and income

interest
Year ended December 31,
(in millions of euros) Note 2015 2014
{Charge)/Income
Interest expense on borrowings 19 (65) {283)
interest income on SFR's loans na 159
Interest mcome on GVT's loans 4 13
Interest expense net of borrowings (61} (t11)
Interest income from cash, cash equivalents and investments 31 15
Interest from continuing operations {30} (96)
Premium paid and other costs related to the early redemptions of bonds (4) @ a)
{34} (794}
Other financial income and charges
Year ended December 31,
(in milions of euros} Note 2015 2014
Expected retum on plan assets related to employee benefit plans 172 12 12
Foreign exchange gain 4 7
Other financial income 16 19
Premium paid and other costs related to the early redemptions of bonds {4} {638) {a)
Effect of undiscounting habilities (b) (9} {8)
Interest cost related to employee benefit plans 172 (29 {31)
Foreign exchange loss {7 (8)
Change in value of derivative nstruments (17 -
Other {7 {6)
Other financial charges (73) (751)
Net tatal &) (732)

a Included net premium paid for €642 million related to the earfy redemption of bonds following completion of the sale of SFR in
Navember 2014

b.  In accordance with applicable accounting standards, when the effect of the time vatue of money is material, assets and liabilities are
initially recorded on the Statement of Financial Position in an amount carresponding to the present value of the expected revenses and
expenses. At the end of each subsequent pericd, the present value of such assets and liabilities is adjusted to account for the passage
of time. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, these adjustments only applied to liabilities (mainly trade accounts payable and provisions).
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Note 6 Income taxes

6.1

French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems

Vivendi SA bensfits from the French Tax Group System and considers that it benefited, untit December 31, 2011 inclusive, from the
Consolidated Global Profit Tax System, as authorized under Article 209 quinguies of the French Tax Code. Since January 1, 2012, Vivendi only
benefits from the French Tax Group System.

Under the French Tax Group System, Vivendi is entitied to consolidate its own tax profits and losses with the tax profits and losses
of subsidiaries that are at least 95% owned directly or indirectly by it, and that are located in France: for 2015, this mainly appiied
to Universal Music in France and Canal+ Group.

Until December 31, 2011, the Consolidated Glabal Profit Tax System entitled Vivendi to consolidate its own tax profits and losses
with the tax profits and losses of subsidiaries that were at least 50% owned directly or indirectly by it, and located in France or
abroad, i.e., other than the French companies that were at least 95% owned directly or indirectly by Vivendi. Activision Blizzard,
Universal Music Group, Maroc Tetecom, GVT, Canal+ France and its subsidiaries, as well as Société d'Edition de Canal Plus {SECP}.
As a reminder, on May 19, 2008, Vivendi lodged a raquest with the French Ministry of Finance to renew its authorization o use the
Consolidated Global Profit Tax System and an authorization was granted by an order dated March 13, 2009, for a three-vear period
beginning with fiscal year 2009 and ending with fiscal year 2011.

In addition, as a rerinder, on July B, 2011, Vivendi lodged a request with the French Ministry of Finance to renew its authorization
to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System for a three-year period, from January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2014

The changes in French Tax Law in 2011 terminated the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System as of September 6, 2011 and capped
the deduction for tax losses carried forward at 50% of taxable income. Since 2012, the deduction for tax losses carried forward has
been capped at 50% of taxable income and the deductibility of interest limited te 85% of financial charges, net (75% as from
January 1, 2014)

The impact of the French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems on the valuation of Vivendi's tax attributes (tax losses and
tax credits carmed forward) are as follows:

As Vivend considers that its entitlement to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System was effective until the end of the
authorization granted by the French Ministry of Finance, including fiscal year ending December 31, 2011, on November 30, 2012,
Vivendi filed a request for a refund of €366 millien with respect ta the tax saving for fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, As this
request was denied by the tax authonties, Vivendi accrued a €366 million provision for the associated risk in its Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 201Z. On October 8, 2014, the Administrative Court of Montreui! ruled in favor of
Vivendi Pursuant to this ruling, on December 23, 2014, Vivendi received a €366 million refund and moratorium interest of
£43 million, which was received on January 16, 2015 On December 2, 2014, the tax authorities appealed this ruling. As a result, in
its Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, Vivendi maintained the provision related to the €366 million
principal refund and increased it by €43 million to take into account the moratorium interest, for a total amount of €409 million,
which remained unchanged as of December 31, 2015 (please refer to Note 6.5).

Moreover, considering that the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System permitted tax credits to be carried forward upon the end of
the authorization on December 31, 2011, Vivendi requested a refund of taxes due, under the French Tax Group System for the year
ended December 31, 2012, i.e., €208 million, increasad to €221 million in 2013 at the time of the tax return filing with respect to
fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, On May 8, 2013, Vivendi received a €201 million refund related to the tax instaliment paid in
2012. This position was challenged by the tax authorities in the context of an audit and Vivendi provisioned the associated risk for
a principal amount of €208 million in its Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, Z01Z, increased to €221 miflion as
of December 31, 2013. In its Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, Vivendi maintained the €221 million
principal refund and increased it by additional default interest of €11 million, for a total amount of £232 milion as of December 31,
2014, decreased to €228 million as of December 31, 2015 after deduction of ordinary tax credits. As part of this process, Vivendi
made a payment of €321 million or March 31, 2015, comprising the payment of taxes for £221 millicn due under the French Tax
Group System for the year ended December 31, 2012, £11 million in default interest and additional penalties of €89 million. The
audit being terminated, on June 29, 2015, Vivendi submitted a claim requesting a refund of the principal tax amount, the default
interest, as well as penalties, for which no provision has been accrued, following the recommendation of the company’s advisors.

In the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015, the tax results of the subsidiaries within the scope of Vivendi
SA's French Tax Group System were estimated, and as a result, the amount of tax attributes as of December 31, 2015 could not be
reliably determined. Taking into account the impact of the estimated 2015 tax results and before the effects of the ongoing tax
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audits {please refer to Note 6.5) on the amount of tax attributes, Vivendi SA may achieve €809 mdlion in tax savings from tax
attributes (based on the income tax rate applicable as from January 1, 2016, 1.e., 34.43%])

e  As of December 31, 2015, Vivendi SA valued its tax attributes under the French Tax Group System on the basis of one year's
forecasted results, taken from the following year's budget. On this basis, Vivendi may achieve tax savings from the French Tax
Group System in an amount of €84 million (based on the income tax rate applicable as from January 1, 2018, i.e., 34.43%}.

6.2 Provision for income taxes and income tax paid by geographic area

{in melkons of euros) Year ended December 37,
{Charge)/income 2015 2014
Current
France (339) {44)
Rest of Europe (28) {12)
United States - 9
Rest of the world (25) {43)
{392) (94)
Defervad
France {(100) {81}
Rest of Europe 34 {8
United States 130) {59)
Rest of the world 47 ]l
{49} {36)
Provision for income taxes (441) (130}
Incoms tax (paidi/collact
France 813} 327
Rest of Europe (8) {1
United States (9} {5}
Rest of the world (407} 1a) (31)
Incoms tax (paid)/collected {1,037} 280

a. Included taxes paid in Brazil related to the sale of GVT for €395 million recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Eamings under the
tine “Earnings from discontinued operations”.

6.3 Effective tax rate

Year ended December 31,
{in millions of euros, except %) 2015 2014
Earnings (before non-controlling interests} 1978 5025
Eliminations
Income from equity affiliates 10 18
Earnings from discontinued operations {1,233} (5.262)
Pravision for income taxes a1 130
Earnings from continuing operations before pravision for income taxes 1,19 (89)
French statutory tax rate 38.00% 38.00%
Theoretical provision for income taxes based on French statutory tax rate {A54) H
B :
Earnings tax rate differences 39 35
Impacts of the changes in tax rates {25} -
Use of tax losses 2 112
Depreciation of tax losses {112) (178)
Changes in deferred tax assets related to Vivends SA’s French Tax Group and the Consolidated Global
Profit Tax Systems 142) 37)
Adjustments to tax expense from previous years 64 (33)
Capital gain or loss on the divestiture of or downside adjustrents on financial mvestments or businesses 2t {35}
3% tax on Vivend: SA’s dividends {122) -
Other (41) (31
Provision for income taxes {841) !1:!!!
Etfective tax rate 36.9% -146.1%
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6.4 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Changes in deferred tax assets/{liahilities), net

Year ended December 31,

{in milhons of euros) 2015 2014
Opening balance of deferred tax assets/{liahilities), net 5 53
Provision for income taxes (49} {53)
Charges and ncome directly recorded in equity {67} 54
Busminess combinations - g
Dvestitures in progress or completed - {20)
Changes in fareign currency franstation adjustments and other (20} 10
Closing balance of deferred tax assets/{liabilities), net {83} 53

a Included in 2014 income/icharges) related to taxes from discontinued operations: in accordance with {IFRS 5, these amounts were
reclassified to the line “Eamings from discontinued operations™ in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings.

Components of deferred tax assets and liabilities

{in mithons of euros) Dacember 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Dofarred tax assots
Recognizable deferred taxes
Tax attnbutes - Vivendi SA - French Tax Group System {a) (b} 809 1,400
Tax attributes - US Tax Group {a) (c} 445 419
Tax attnbutes - Other {a} 573 656
QOther 609 542
Of which non-deductible provisions 107 17
employee benefits 193 185
net working caprtal 136 105
Total gross deferred taxes 2436 3017
Deferred taxes, unrecognized
Tax attrbutes - Vivendi SA - French Tax Group System (a} {b) (725) {1.274)
Tax attributes - US Tax Group {a} {c) {445) {419)
Tax attnbutes - Gther {a) {476) {462
Other {168) (152)
Total deterred tax assets, unrecognized e .37
Racorded deferred tax assets 622 70
D lighiliti
Asset revaluations {d) {422) (484}
Other {283 {173)
Recorded deferred tax linbilities (7u8) IGSE
Deferred tax assets/{iabilities), net [63) )

a. The amounts of tax attributes, as reported in this table, were estimated at the end of the relevant fiscal years. In jurisdictions which are
significant to Vivends, mainly France and the United States, tax returns are filed on May 1% and September 15" of the followng year at
the latest, respectively, The amounts of tax attributes reported in this table and the amounts reported to the tax authorities may
therefore differ, and if necessary, may need to be adjusted at the end of the following year in the table.

b Related to defered tax assets recognizable in respect of tax attributes by Vivendi SA as head of the French Tax Group, representing
€809 million as of December 31, 2015 {please refer to Note 6.1), related only to tax losses, taking into account the estimated impact
{-€507 million) of 2015 transactions (taxable income and use or expiration of tax credits) and the change in income tax rate in France
which decreased from 38% to 34.43% as from January 1, 2016 {-€84 miliion), but before taking into account the effects of ongoing tax
audits {please refer to Note 6.5). In France, tax fosses can be carried forward indefinitely and Vivend: considers that tax credits can be
camied forward for a minimum period of five years upon exit from the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System. In this respect,
£285 million tax credits matured as of December 31, 2015.

¢ Related to deferred tax assets recognizable in respect of tax attributes by Universal Music Group, Inc. in the United States as head of
the US Tax Group, representing $486 million as of December 31, 2015, taking into account the estimated impact (-§23 million} of 2015
transactions (taxable income, capital fosses, and tax credits that expired, capital losses and tax credits generated, but before taking into
account the final outcome of ongoing tax audits (please refer to Note 6.5). In the United States, tax losses can be carried forward for a
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peniod of up to 20-years and tax credits can be carried forward for a penod of up to 10-years. No tax credit will mature prios to
December 31, 2022 and $16 million tax credits matured in 2015

d. These tax liabilities, generated by asset revaluations following purchase allocations were terminated upon the amortization or
divestiture of the underlying asset and generated no current tax charge.

65 Tax audits

The fiscal year ended on December 31, 2015 and prior years are open to tax audits by the respective tax authorities in the jurisdictions in
which Vivendi has or had operations. Various tax authorities have proposed adjustments to the taxable income reported for prior years. It is
not possible, at this stage of the current tax audits, to accurately assess the impact that could result from an unfavorable outcome of these
audits. Vivendi Management believes that these tax audits should not have a material unfavorable impact on the financial position or
liquidity of the group.

Regarding Vivendi SA, in respect of the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System, the tax audit for fiscal years 2006, 2007 and 2008 is stili
engoing and, likewise, the tax audits for fiscal years 2009 and 2010 are still ongoing. Finally, the audit of Vivendi SA’s Tax Group System for
fiscal years 2011 and 2012 began i July 2013. As of December 31, 2015, all of these tax audits were ongoing. Vivendi Management
believes that it has solid legal grounds to defend its positions for determining the taxable income for the fiscal years under audit in any
event, Vivendi has accrued a provision for the impact of the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System in 2011 (€409 million), notwithstanding
the decision of the Administrative Court of Montreuil of October 6, 2014, subject to the appeal filed by the Tax Authorities (please refer to
Note 6.1), as well as a pravision for the impact in relation to the use of tax credits in 2012 (€228 million).

In respect of the US Tax Group, the fiscal years 2008, 2009 and 2010 are under audit and the final outcome has not materially impacted the
amount of tax attributes reported. In June 2014, the US tax authorities began a tax audit for fiscal years 2011 and 2012, and in December
2014, they undertook a tax audit for fiscal year 2013. As of December 31, 2015, these audits were ongoing. Vivendi Management believes
that it has solid legal grounds to defend its positions for determining the taxable income for the fiscal years under audit.

Note 7  Eamings per share

Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

Earnings {in millions of euros)

Earnings from continuing operations attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners 699 699 {290) (290}
Eamings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 1,233 1,233 5,034 5,034
Earmings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 1,932 1,932 4744 4744
Numbher of shares (in millions}

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (a) 13618 1,361.9 1,345.8 1,345.8
Potential dilutive effects related to share-based compensation (b} - 53 - 55
Adjustad weighted average number of shares 13615 1,366.8 13458 13513
Earnings per share (in euros)

Eamings from continuing operations attributable to Vivendh SA shareowners per share 051 051 {022) (0.22)
Earnings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share 091 0.90 374 373
Eamnings attnbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share 1.42 141 352 35

a. Net of the average number of treasury shares: 1.6 million shares in 2015, compared to 0 4 million in 2014 {please refer to Note 15)

b. Do not include accretive instruments, which could be potentially dilutive; the overall balance of common shares in connection with
Vivendi SA’s share-based compensation plans is presented in Note 18 1.
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Charges and income directly recognized in equity

Details of changes in equity related to other comprehensive income

Unrealzed gainsflosses)

Actuarial gaws/flosses) Coreign
) Other

related to employee Available-for- Hedging currency comprehensive

defined benefit plans sale nstruments Tatal transtation ncome
{m milions of euros) (a) securities {b) {c} adjustments
Balance as of Decombar 31, 2013 {85) 164 2 184 2011} {1.912)
Charges and income directly recognized in equity {93) 912 {50) 862 706 1.475
ltemns to be reclassified to profit or loss na {95) @) 9 {86} 72 (18
Tax effect 25 3 {2) 29 - 54
Other 7 132 - 132 42 181
Balance a3 of December 31, 2014 {146} 1,134 {23) 1124 {1.191) {216}
Charges and income directly recognized 1n eguity (16} 461 {69) 392 580 956
Items to be reclassified to profit or loss na {682} fe} nn {692) 933 P43l
Tax affect {51 {63} 1 (62) - (67)
(Other - {8) {1 {9 - _B
Balsnce es of December 31, 2015 {167 {162 ™ 322 €05

na: not applicable.

a. Please refer to Note 17

b  Please refer to Note 12.

¢ Please refer to Note 19,

d  Related to the gain realized on the saie of the interest in Beats by UMG in August 2014.

¢ Included €651 miltion related to the gain realized on the sale of the 20% interest in Numericable-SFR in May 2015 (please refer to

Note 2.8).

f.  Attributable to the foreign currency translation EUR/BRL related to GVT, sold in May 2015 {please refer to Note 2.9).

Note 9 Goodwill
{in milhons of euros) December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Goodwill, gross 24384 22,622
Impairment losses {14,207} [13,293)
Goodwill 10177 9329
91  Changes in goodwill
December 31, Impairment losses Business D'::f;:g::;f'n f::f:{?;st'rr;::::t'ﬂ:. December 31,
! 2014 inati
{tn mifhions of euros) 0 combinations completed adjustents and other 2015
Canal+ Group 4573 - 3 - ] 4,582
Universal Music Group 4,656 - 3 513 fa) 5,172
Vivend Village 100 - 41 b 19 160
New Initiatives - - 263 (o) - - 263
Total 9,329 - E1l1 - 538 10,177
December 31, Impairment | Business Divestitures in Changestirn foiretign December 31,
o 2013 pairment losses combinations progress or c!.lrfency anslation 2014
{in millions of euros) completed adjustments and other
Canal+ Group 4,064 - 110 () n 4573
Universal Music Group 4,100 - 6 550 (a) 4,656
Vivendh Village 185 [91) e} - - 6 100
GVT 1676 - - (1,676} -
SFR B,722 - 7 {6,799) - -
Total 12,147 31 193 (8475} 555 9329
Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 Vivendi /64



Friday, February 19, 2016

w

Primarily attributable to foreign currency translation (EUR/USD) for €525 million in 2015 and €549 million in 2014

(=

Related to the provisional goodwill attributable to Radionomy {please refer to Note 2.6)
Included the provisional goodwill attributable to Dailymotion for £262 million (please refer to Note 2.1,

d  Notably included goodwill attributable to Mediaserv and Thema, acquired by Canal+ Overseas on February 13, 2014 and Cctober 28,
2014, respectively.

e. Related to full impairment losses on the goodwilt of Digitick and MyBestPro, formerly Wengo (€43 million and €48 million, respectively).

92  Goodwill impairment test

In 2015, Vivendi tested the value of goodwill allocated to its Cash-Generating Units (CGUs) or groups of CGU applying valuation methods
consistent with previous years. Vivend! ensured that the recoverable amount of CGU or groups of CGU exceeded their carrying value
{including goodwill). The recoverable amount is determined as the higher of the value in use determined by the discounted value of future
cash flows (Discounted Cash Flow method {DCF)} and the fair value {less costs to sell), determined on the basis of market data (stock market
prices, comparable listed companies, comparison with the value attributed to similar assets or companies in recent transactions). For a
description of the methods used for the impairment test, please refer to Note 1.3.5.7.

Presentation of CGU or groups of CGUs tested

Oporating Segments Cash Generating Units (CGU) CGU or groups of CGU tested
Canal+ Group Pay-TV in Mainland France
Canal+ Overseas {a} Pay-TV and free-to-air TV in France, Potand,
nc+ {Poland) Africa and Vietnam (b}
Free-to-air TV
Studiocanal Studiocanal
Universal Music Group Recorded music
Artist services and merchandising Universal Music Group
Music publishing
Vivendi Village See Tickets See Tickets
Digitick Digitick [c)
MyBestPro MyBestPro {c)
Radhonomy Radionomy (d}
L'Olympia L'Olympia
CanalOlympia CanalQlympia
New Instiatives Dailymotion Datlymotion {d)
Vivendi Contents Vivendi Contents
Group Vivendi Africa Group Vivendi Africa

a Related to pay-TV in France overseas, Africa and Vietnam,

b The process of integrating free-to-air TV operations {D8/D17 channels acquired on September 27, 2012} with pay-TV operations in
maintand France, as well as the development of pay-TV in Poland and Vietnam reflects the further convergence of pay-TV and free-to-air
TV operations in countries in which Canal+ Group operates. As a result, as of December 31, 2015, Vivendi performed a goodwill
impairment test related to pay-TV and free-to-air TV operations in France, Poland, Africa and Vietnam by aggregating the CGU of pay-TV
in Mainland France, Canal+ Overseas, nc+ and free-to-air TV, which corresponds to the level of monitoring the return on such
investrments.

c. Goodwill attnbutable to Digitick and MyBestPro (formerly Wengo) were fully impaired as of December 31, 2014,

d. As of December 31, 2015, no goodwill impairment test attributable to Dailymotion and Radionomy were undertaken given that the
acquisition dates of Dailymotion and Badionomy {June 30, 2015 and December 17, 2015, respectively) were close to the closing date.

During the fourth quarter of 2015, Vivendi performed a goodwil! impairment test an each CGU or groups of CGU, on the basis of valuations of
recoverable amounts determined with the assistance of third-party appraisers, for pay-TV and free-to-air TV in France, Africa and Vietnam as
well as Universal Music Group and internal valuations for nc+ in Poland, Studiocanal and See Tickets. As a result, Vivendi Management
concluded that, as of December 31, 2015, the recoverable amount for each CGU or groups of CGU tested exceeded their carrying value.
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The value in use of each CGU or groups of CGU 1s determined as the discounted value of future cash flows by using cash flow projections
consistent with the 2016 budget and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating segments. These forecasts are prepared for each
operating segment, on the basis of financial targets as well as the following main key assumptions: discount rate, perpetual growth rate and
EBITA as defined in Note 1.2.3, capital expenditures, the competitive and regulatory environments, technological developments and level of
commercial expenses. The recoverable amount for each CGU or groups of CGU was determined based on its value in use in accordance with

the main key assumptions set out below.

Valuation Method Discount Rate {a) Parpetual Growth Rate
QOperating sagments CGU or groups of CGU tested 2M5 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Canak+ Group Pay-TV and fres-20-air TV in France, DEF DCF
Poland, Africa and Vietnam & comparables model (b) & comparables modef (b) fc) {c) {c) fc)
Studiocanal DCF DCF 9 25% 9.75% 0.50% 1.00%
Unversal Music Group Universal Music Group DCF & comparables model  DCF & comparables moded 8.50% B8.90% 1125% 1.00%
Vivend Village Saa Tickets DCF DCF 11.00%  H1.50% 2 00% 2.00%

OCF: Discourted Cash Flows.

a. The determination of recoverable amounts using a post-tax discount rate applied to post-tax cash flows provides recoverable amounts
consistent with the ones that would have been obtained using a pre-tax discount rate applied to pre-tax cash flows.

b.  Except for nc+ in Poland: comparables model i 2015 and DCF in 2014.

c. Discount rates and perpetual growth rates applied to test this group of UGT were the following;

Discount rate Perpetual growth rate
2015 2014 2015 2014
Pay-Tv
Mainland France 756% 8.04% 120% 1.50%
France overseas 8 80% 904% 120% 150%
Poland na 975% na 300%
Africa 980% 1004% 3.00% 314%
Vigtnam 10 30% 10 88% 300% 450%
Free-to-air TV - Mainland france 826% 9.50% 150% 200%
na: not applicable.
Sensitivity of recoverable amounts
December 31, 2015
Discount rate Perpetual growth rate Discounted cash flows

Increase in the discount rate

Decreasa in the perpetual growth rate

Decrease in the disceunted cash flows

Apphed In greer for the recoverable amount Applied in grder for the recoverable amount tn order for the recoverable amount
rate to be equal to the carrying amount rate to be equal to the carrying amount 10 be equal to the carrying amount
{in %) {in number of points) {in %) {in number of points) (1n %)
Canal+ Group
Pay-TV and Free-to-aar TV in France,
Poland, Afnica and Vietnam [a) +1 16t {al 211pts 1%
Studiocanal 925% +1.97 pt 050% -281pts 21%
Universal Music Group 850% +1.25pt 1125% -155pt -15%
December 31, 2014
Discount rate Perpetual growth rate Discounted cash flows
Increase in the discount rate Decrease in the perpetual growth rate Decrease in the discounted cash flows
Applied in order for the recoverable amount Applied - order for the recoverable amount in order for the recoverabla amount
rate 1o be equat to the camying ameunt rate to be equal to the carrying amount to be equal to the carrying amount
{in %] [in number of points) {in %) {in number of paints) {in %)
Canal+ Qroup
Pay-TV and Free-to-air TV in France,
Afnica and Vistnam (@) +028pt {a) 0.39pt 4%
nes 9.75% 4631 pts 300% -10 25 pts -49%
Studiocanal 975% +1 66 pt 1 00% 257 pis -18%
Universal Music Group 890% +62 pt 1 00% D77t %
a.  For apresentation of the applied rates, please refer to the table in reference c. above.
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December 31, 2015

c Accumulated
ontent assets, o
{in milfions of euros) gross I::Ezinrrlnzz:f :L:::s ot s
Film and television costs 6.145 (5.483) 662
Sports rights 415 - 15
Music catalogs and publishing rights 8,756 {7.076} 1,680
Advances to artists and repertoire owners 611 - 611
Merchandising contracts and artists services 7 (23) 4
Other 6 (4 i
Content assets 15,968 {12 586} 3,374
Deduction of current content assets (1.102} 14 (1,088)
Non-current content assets 14,858 {12572) 2,286
Decemnber 31, 2014

Content assets, Acc[Jmulated
{in millions of euros) gross _ﬁgirrt:::f ::J:SS i
Film and television costs 6,003 {5.244) 759
Sports rights LAY - 41
Music catalogs and publishing nghts 7.897 {6,031} 1,866
Advances to artists and repertoire owners 642 - 642
Merchandising contracts and artists services 27 (20) 7
Content assets ‘ﬁ';. {1 1@ 3
Deduction of current content assets {1,155) 20 (1,135)
Non-current content assets 13,825 {11,275) 2550

Changes in content assets

{in mitlions of euros}
Opeaing balance

Amortization of content assets excluding those acquired through busingss combinations
Amortization of content assets acquired through business combinations
Impairment 10ssas on content assets acquired through business combinations

Increase
Decrease
Business combmations

Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments and other
Closing balance
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Year ended December 31,

2015 2014

3,585 3972
21 (14)

{398) (334)

(2) .

2,354 2,339
(2.465) (2.352)

4 27

217 247
3314 3685
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Commitments given recorded in the Statement of Financial Position: content liabilities

Content liabilities are mainly part of “Trade accounts payable and other” or part of “Other non-current liabilities” whether they are current or

non-current, as applicable.

Minimum future payments as of December 31, 2615

Tatal minimum future

Due in paymants as of
{in millions of euros) Total 2016 2017-2020 After 2020 December 31, 2014
Ftlm and tglevision rights (a} 19 196 - - 193
Sports nghts 455 455 406
Music royalties to artists and repertoire owners 1,848 1822 26 - 1,721
Creative talent, empioyment agreements and others 90 43 43 4 113
Content liabilities 2,589 4,516 9 A 2433
Off balance sheet commitments given/{received)
Minimum future payments as of December 31, 2015 Total minimum future
Due in payments as of
{in millions of euros) Total 2016 2017-2020 Atter 2020 December 21, 2014
Film and television rights {a) 3,080 1,292 1727 61 2,443
Sports rights 2,965 b 783 2182 - 3,087
Creative talent, employment agreements and others {c} 790 354 413 23 807
Given commitments 6,835 2429 4322 # 6337
Film and television rights (a) {174} (74) {74) (26} (199)
Sparts rights {39} 1oy (29) - @3
Creative talent, employment agreements and others [c) not availgble
Recaived commitments {213} {84) {103} (26) (202)
Total net 6822 2,345 lﬁg 58 6,135

Mainly included contracts valid over several years for the broadcast of cinema films and TV productions (mainly exclusivity contracts
with major US studios), for the pre-purchases relating to the French cinema industry, for Studiocanal films production and co-production
commitrents (given and received), and for broadcasting rights of Canalsat and nc+ multichanne| digital TV packages. They are recorded
as content assets when the broadcast is avallable for initial release or after the initial significant payment. As of December 31, 2015,
provisions recorded relating to these commitments amounted to €45 million (compared to €73 million as of December 31, 2014).

In addition, these amounts do not include commitments n relation to contracts of channgl diffusion rights, ISP (Internet Service
Provider) royalties and non-exclusive distribution of channels, under which Canal+ Group did not grant or receive minimum guarantees.
The variable amount of these commitments cannot be reliably determined and is not reported in either the Statement of Financial
Position or in the commitments and is instead recorded as an expense for the period in which it was incurred. Based on the estimation
of the future subscriber base at Canak+ Group, the commitments would have increased by a net amount of €203 million as of
December 31, 2015, compared to €342 million as of December 31, 2014.

Moreover, on May 7, 2015, Société d'Edition de Canal Plus (SECP) renewed its agreement with afl the cinema professional
organizations {(ARP, BLIC, BLOC, UPF). This five-year agreement {2015/2019) confirmed the historical and strong partnership between
Canal+ and the French cinema Pursuant to this agreement, SECP is required to invest every year 12.5% of its annual revenues in the
financing of European cinematographic works. With respect to audiovisual, in accordance with the agreements entered into with
producers’ and authors’ organizations in France, Canal+ Group is required to invest 3 6% of its total net annual revenue in the financing
of heritage works every year Only films for which an agreement has been given in principle to producers are accounted for in the off-
balance sheet commitments, as it is not possible to reliably determine a future and total estimate of commitments under agreements
with cinema professional organizations and with producers’ and authors” erganizations.

Notably included broadcasting rights held by Canal+ Group for the following sport events:

o the French professionat Soccer League 1, for the four seasons 2016/2017 to 2019/2020, awarded on April 4, 2014 for the two
premium lots (€2,160 million);

* the National French Rugby Champicnship's “TOP 14" matches, for the seasons 2016/2017 to 2018/2019 which include all seven
games on each match day, piay-off games, as well as the Jour de Rugby show, awarded on January 19, 2015, and

e the Soccer Champions League, for the seasons 2016/2017 and 2017/2018, awarded on April 11, 2014 for one lot.

These commitments will be accounted for in the Statement of Financial Position either upon the start of every season or upon an initial
significant payment.
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c.  Primanly relates to UMG which routingly commits to pay agreed amounts to artists and other parties upon delivery of content or other
products {"Creative talent and employment agreements”). Until the artist or the other party has defivered his or her content or the
repayment of an advance, UMG discloses its obligation as an off-balance sheet given commitment. While the artist or the other party is
obligated to deliver a content or other product to UMG {these arrangements are generally exclusive), this counterpart cannot be reliably
determined and, thus, 1s not reported in received commitments.

Note 11  Investments in equity affiliates

Voting interast Value of equity affiliates
{in mithions of euros} December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 December 31,2015 December 31, 2014
Telecom ltalia (a) 21 4% - 3318 -
VEVD 49% 48% 76 il
N-Vision (b} na 49% - 213
Other na na 40 2
3435 306

na: not applicable.
a. Telecom Malia is accounted for under the equity method as from December 15, 2015 (please refer to Note 2.2},
b.  OnJuly 1, 2015, Canal+ Group sold its interest in N-Vision B.V. {please refer to note 2 9).

Note 12 Financial assets

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
{in millions of euros) Tatal Current Non-current Totat Curent Non-current
Financial agsets at fair value
Term deposits, interest-bearing current accounts, and MTN (a} 266 266 -
Level 1
Bond funds (a) 35 315 - - - -
Listed equity securities 2520 - 2,520 4676 - 4676
Other financial assets (b) 979 5 974 980 5 g75
Level 2
Unlisted equity securities IN - kx| 162 - 162
Derivative financial instruments (¢} 15 47 68 139 0 a9
Level 3
Other financial assets il 1 70 51 - 51
Financial assets at amortizad cost {d} 546 477 169 185 4 181
Financial assets 5243 1,11 4132 6,193 49 6,143

a Related to cash management financial assets, included in the cash position: please refer to Note 14,
b Included a cash deposit of €374 million as part of the appeal against the Liberty Media judgment {please refer to Note 19.3).

c. These derivative financial instruments primarily comprised interest rate and foreign currency hedging instruments, as described in
Note 18,

d.  As of December 31, 2015, these financial assets mainiy inciuded the following cash deposits;
o $480 million (€439 million as of December 31, 2015) related to the hedge of Activision Blizzard shares. This deposit was recovered
foitowing the unwinding of the hedge in January 2018 {please refer below), and
o 355 million (€50 miltion as of December 31, 2015) as part of the partial judgment entered in the secunties class action {please refer
to Note 23)
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Quoted equity portfolio

December 31, 2015
Cumutated Change in Cumulate of
!: Tg‘::;r::; histonical 0:::;220 Stock market C:;rlxr;:g value in the unrealized capital
Note value {a} period (b} gainy/loss (b)
{in thousands} {&/share) {in mithons of euros)

Sensitivity at
+/-10 pts (b

Activision Bhzzard 41,500 416 57% 3541 1,470 (o) 781 [ 1.054 {o) (5]
Telefonica 23 47353 554 095% 1024 485 {10 {70} +49/-49
Ubisoft 24 15,659 352 1398% 2667 118 65 65 +42/-42
Gameloft 24 24,489 122 2865% 606 148 26 26 +15/-15

Total 2,520 803 1076 +106/-106

December 31, 2014

Cumuiated Change In Cumutate of

h i . .
Number of fustorical Dmers P Stock market Carrying value on unrealized capital
held shares interest value

Note value (a) period {b) gain/loss (h)
(in thousands) (&/share) (in milhions of euros)

Sensitivity at
+-10 pts b

Activision Blizzard 41,500 416 57% 1660 689 73 273 el
Numencable-SFR 28 87,3808 3244 200% 4094 3.987 743 743 (d
Total 4,616 1.m6 1016

a
b

d

These amounts include acguisition fees and taxes.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, in accordance with IAS 39, these amounts, before taxes, were accounted for as charges and income
directly recognized in equity, except for the remeasurement of the underlying instrument offsetting the intrinsic value of the hedge of
Activision Blizzard shares (€467 million as of December 31, 2015, please refer to reference c. below).

These shares were subject to a lock-up periad, which expired on January 7, 2015.

On June 11, 2015, Vivendi entered into an agreement to hedge 100% of the value of these shares denominated in USD, through an
18-month zero premium collar {consisting of a put option acguired by Vivendi and a call option sold by Vivendi), enabling Vivendi to
secure an unrealized capital gain between $427 million and $532 million during this period. In the Consolidated Financial Statements for
the year ended December 31, 2015, this collar was accounted for as a fair value hedge, in accordance with IAS 39. As of December 31,
2015, pursuant to the credit support agreement related to the collar hedge, Vivendi established a cash deposit in favor of the
counterparty, for $480 mitiion, i.e., €439 million, corresponding to the fair market value of the coilar hedge as of this date, net of a
$50 million deductibte. Given the appreciation of Activision Blizzard stock market price, the unfavorable change in time value of the
collar hedge amounted to €16 million, classified as "other financial charges™ in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings. On January 13,
2016, Vivendi entirely unwound this instrument and sold the shares that it held. The cash proceeds from these transactions amounted to
$1,063 miltion {i.e., €976 mullion). The unwinding of these transactions afso enabled Vivendi to recover the cash deposit of €433 milion.

Not applicable, as the Numericable-SFR shares were sold in May 2015.

Equity market value risks

In 2015, as part of a sustainable investing strategy, Vivendi created an equity portfolio comprising listed and non-listed French and European
companies in the telecommunication and med:a sectors, which are leaders in the production and distribution of contents. As of December 31,
2015, this portfelio was mainky comprised of minority interests in Telecom Italia, Telefonica, Ubisoft, Gameloft and Activision Blizzard, and it
represented an aggregate market value of approximately €6 biltion (before taxes). Except for the remaining interest in Activision Blizzard sold
on January 13, 2016 {please refer above), Vivendi 1s exposed to the risk of fluctuation in the value of these interests: as of December 31,
2015, the net unrealized gain with respect to the interests in Telecom Italia (please refer to Note 11), Telefonica, Ubisoft and Gameloft
amounted to €95 million (before taxes}. A uniform decrease of 10% in the value of all of these shares would have a cumulative negative
impact of €370 million on Vivendi's financial position; & uniform decrease of 20% in the value of all of these shares would have a cumulative
negative impact of €815 million on Vivendi's financial position.
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Note 13  Net working capital

Trade accounts receivable and other

{in mithons of euros) December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Trade accounts recevable 1,308 1272
Trade accounts receivable write-offs {153) {2728)
Trade accounts receivable, net 1,155 1,044
Other 884 839
Trade accounts receivable and other 2139 1,983

Vivendi does not consider there to be a significant risk of non-recovery of trade accounts receivables for its business segments. the large
individual customer base, the broad variety of customers and markets, as well as the geographic diversity of its business segments {mainly
Canal+ Group and Universal Music Group), enable to minimize the risk of credit concentration related to trade accounts receivable.

Trade accounts payabte and other

(n milfions of euros) Note December 31,2015 December 31, 2014
Trade accounts payable 2,224 2215
Music royalties te artists and repertoire owners 102 1,822 1,699
Other 2691 (a) 1392
Trada accounts payable and cther 6,731 5,306

a  Notably included the second interim dividend, paid on February 3, 20186, for £1,318 million {please refer to Note 15).

Note 14  Cash position

Vivendi's cash position comprises cash and cash equivalents, as well as cash management financial assets classified as current financial
assets. As defined by Vivendi, cash management financial assets relate to investments which do not meet the cntenia for classification as
cash equivalents set out in IAS 7, and, with respect to money market funds, the criteria set forth in AMF position No. 2011-13.

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

. Carrying Fair value Levet Carrying fairvalue Level
{in millions of euros) value value
Term deposits, interest-beanng cusrent accounts, and MTN 266 na na -
Bond funds 315 315 1 -
Cash management financial assets 581 -
Cash 256 na na 240 na na
Term deposits, interest-bearing current accounts, and MTN 249 na na 1,891 na na
Money market funds 5,550 5,550 1 4,754 4754 1
Gash and cash equivalents 8,225 6,845
Cash position 8.806 6,845

na: not applicabie.
In 2015, the average interest rate on Vivendi's investments was 0.35%.

Investment risk and counterparty risk

As of December 31, 2015, the group’s cash position amounted to €8,806 million, of which £8,508 million was held by Vivendi SA. Vivend: SA
centralizes daily cash surpluses (cash pooling) of all controlled entities {a) which are not subject to local regulations restricting the transfer of
financial assets, or (b) which are not subject to other contractual agreements.

Vivendi's investment policy mainly aims to minimize its exposure to counterparty risk. Consequently, Vivendi allocates a portion of the
amounts available within (i) mutual funds with a low risk class (1 or 2} as defined by the European Securities and Markets Authority's (ESMA)
synthetic risk and reward indicator (SRR} which comprises seven risk classes, and {ii} highly rated commercial banks (at least A-). Moreover,
Vivendi allocates investments among selected banks and limits the amount of each such investment.
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Liquidity risk

As of February 10, 2016, Vivendi considers that its Net Cash Position, the cash flows generated by its operating activitias, as well as the
amounts available through its current bank credit facility will be sufficient to cover its operating expenses and capital expenditures, service
its debt {including redemption of bonds), pay its income taxes, dividends and share repurchases, if any, as well as to fund its investment
projects, if any, for the next 12 months.

Note 15  Equity

Share capital of Vivendi SA

{in thousands) December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Common shares outstanding (nominal value: 5.5 per share) 1,368,323 1,351,601
Treasury shares (25,985) {50)
Voting rights 1,342,338 1,351,551

During the fourth quarter of 2015, Vivendi’s Management Board implemented the share repurchase program, authorized by the General
Shareholders’ Meeting on April 17, 2015: Vivend: purchased 25,978 thousand of its own shares at an average price of £€19.56 per share, for
an aggregate amount of €508 milfion. As of December 31, 2015, the 26 million shares owned by Vivendi were allocated as follows.

*  B,719 shares to cover performance share plans; and

s 25978245 shares acquired with the intent to cancel them.

Between the closing date and February 10, 2016 (the date of the Management Board meeting that approved Vivendi’s Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2015), Vivendi purchased 38,644 thousand treasury shares at an average price of €18.7 per share,
representing an aggregate payment of €725 million, of which €193 million was accounted for in the Statement of Financial Position as of
December 31, 2015 {please refer to Note 19). As of February 10, 2016, Vivendi held 64.6 million treasury shares, representing an aggregate
payment of €1,233 million.

In addition, as of December 31, 2015, approximately 31.3 million stock aptions and 2.5 million performance shares werg outstanding,
representing a potential maximum nominal share capital increase of €188 million {1.e., 2.48%).

Shareholders’ dividend distribution policy

On Aprit 17, 2015, Vivendi’s Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting notably approved the payment of an ordinary dividend of €1 per share
with respect to fiscal year 2014, comprising a distribution of €0.20 based on the group’s business performance and an €0.80 return to
shareholders as a result of asset disposals This dividend was paid in cash on April 23, 2015, following the coupon detachment on
April 21, 2015, for an aggregate amount of £1,383 million.

The closing of the sales of GVT on May 28, 2015 and of the 20% interest in Numericable-SFR on May 6, 2015 enabled Vivendi's
Management Board to approve the distribution of two interim ordinary dividends of €1 each with respect to fiscal year 2015:

« the first interim dividend of €1 per share, paid out of retained earnings available on May 31, 2015, was paid on June 29, 2015
{following the coupon detachment on Jdune 25, 2015), for an aggregate amount of €1,364 million; and

e the second interim dividend, taken from the distributable income resulting from the positive eamings generated by the divestitures of
GVT and SFR, was paid on February 3, 2018 {following the coupon detachment on February 1, 2018), for an aggregate amount of
£1,318 million.

On February 10, 2016, the date of Vivendi's Management Board meeting that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements as of
December 31, 2015 and the appropriation of earnings for the fiscal year then ended, the Management Board decided to propose to
shareholdars an ordinary dividend of €3 per share, representing a total distribution of €4.0 billion, compnising a €0.20 distribution related to
the group’s business performance and a €2.80 return to shareholders. Given the interim dividends already distributed, the balance will be
paid on April 28, 2016 (following the coupon detachment on April 26, 2016). This proposal was prasented to, and approved by, Vivendi's
Supervisory Board at its meeting held on February 18, 2016, and will be submitted to approval by the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting
to be held on April 21, 2016.
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Note 16  Provisions

{in millrons of euros) Note  December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Employee benefits {a) 574 654
Restructuring costs {b) 74 72
Litigations {c) 23 1222 1,206
Losses on onerous contracts N 124
Contingent liabilities due to disposal {d) 18 17
Other (e} 963 1,105
Provisions 3.042 3178
Deduction of current provisions {363} (290)
Non-current provisions 2619 2,968

a. Included deferred employee compensation as well as provisions for defined employee benefit plans (€646 million as of
December 31, 2015 and €608 million as of December 31, 2014; please refer to Note 17}, but excluded employee termination reserves
recorded under restructuring costs.

b.  As of December 31, 2015, mainly included provisions for restructuring at Canal+ Group (€24 milion) and at UMG (€38 million). As of
December 31, 2014, mainly related to provisions for restructuring at UMG (€38 million).

¢ Notably included the reserve accrual in relation to the Liberty Media Corporation litigation and securities class action in the United
States for €345 miltion and €100 million, respectively {please refer to Note 23).

d. Certain commitments given in relation to divestitures are the subject of provisions. These provisions are not significant and the amount
is not disclosed because such disclosure could be prejudicial to Vivendi.

e. Notably included the provisions with respect to the 2011 Consolidated Global Profit Tax System and to the 2012 French Tax Group
System (€409 million and £228 mitlion, respectively, as of December 31, 2015; please refer to Note 6.1}, as well as litigation provisions
for which the amount and nature are not detailed because such disclosure could be prejudicial to Vivend,

Changes in provisions

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) 2015 2014
Opening balance 3178 3523
Addition 309 538
Utidization (426) {387}
Reversal (azn {163}
Business combinations 6 8
Divestitures, changes in foreign eurrency wansiation adjustments and other 102 {341}
Closing balance 3042 3178
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Note 17  Employee bhenefits

17.1  Analysis of expenses related to employee benefit plans

The table below provides information about the cost of employee benefit plans excluding its financial component. The total cost of defined
benefit plans 1s set forth in Note 17.2.2 below.

Year ended December 31,
{tn mtlions of guros) Note 2015 2014
Emptoyee defined contribution plans 22 20
Employee defined benefit plans 1722 18 {10)
Empiloyee benefit plans 40 10

172  Employee defined benefit plans
17.21  Assumptions used in the evaluation and sensitivity analysis

Discount rate, expected retumn on plan assets, and rate of compensation increase

The assumptions underlying the valuation of defined benefit plans were made in compliance with the accounting policies presented in
Note 1.3.8 and have been applied consistently for several years. Demographic assumptions {including notably the rate of compensation
increase) are company specific. Financial assumptions (notably the discount rate) are determined by independent actuaries and other
independeant advisors and reviewed by Vivendi's Finance department. The discount rate is therefore determined for each country by reference
to yields on notes issued by investment grade companias having a credit rating of AA and maturities identical to that of the valued plans,
generally based on relevant rate indices. The discount rates selected are therefore used, at year-end, to determine a best estimate by
Vivendi's Finance department of expected trends in future payments from the first benefit payments.

In aceordance with amended 1AS 19, the expected return on plan assets is estimated using the discount rate used to value the obligations of
the previous year.

In weighted average
Pension benefits Post-retirement benefits
2015 2014 2015 2014
Discount rate (a} 28% 2.9% 3.9% 3.8%
Rate of compensation increase 18% 20% 3.1% 30%
Duration of the benefit obligation (in years) 14.1 147 101 108

a. A 50 basis point increase {or a 50 basis point decrease, respectively) to the 2015 discount rate would have led to a decrease of
€1 million in pre-tax expense {or an increase of €1 million, respectively) and would have led to a decrease in the obligations of pension
and post-retirement benefits of €70 million (or an increase of €75 million, respectivaly).

Assumptions used in accounting for pension benefits, by country

United States United Kingdom Germany France
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Discount rate 400% 375% 375% 375% 175% 200% 175% 200%
Rate of compensation increase (weighted average) na na 375% 500% 175% 200% 350% 343%

na: not applicable,
Assumptions used in accounting for post-retirement benefits, by country

tnited States Canada
2015 2014 2015 2014
Discount rate 4.00% 3.75% 3.50% 3.75%
Rate of compensation increase na na na na

na: not applicable.
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Allocation of pension plan assets

December 31, 2015 {a} December 31, 2014 (a)
Equity securities 3% 3%
Debt securities 35% 45%
Diversified funds 47% 36%
insurance contracts 3% 4%
Real estate 1% 1%
Cash and other 1% 1%
Total 100% 100%

a.  Pension plan assets are mainly financial assets actively traded in organized financial markets.

Pension plan assets which were not transferred have a limited exposure to stock market fluctuations. These assets do net include occupied
buildings or assets used by the group nor shares or debt instruments of Vivendi.

Cost evolution of post-retirement benefits

For the purpose of measuring post-retirement benefits, Vivendi assumed the annual growth in the per capita cost of covered health care
benefits would slow down from 7.3% for the under 65 years of age and 65 years of age and older categories in 2015, to 4.5% in 2023 for
these categories. |n 2015, a ohe-percentage-point increase in the assumed cost evolution rates would have increased post-retirement benefit
obligations by €8 million and the pre-tax expense by €1 million. Conversely, a one-percentage-point decrease in the assumed cost evolution
rates would have decreased post-retirement benefit obligations by €7 milfion and the pre-tax expanse by €1 million.

17.22  Analysis of the expense recorded and of the amount of hanefits paid

Pension benefits Past-retirement benefits Total

{in milhons of euros) 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Current service cost 14 14 - - 14 14
Past service cost 1 (25) la) 1 - - (25)
{Gains)/losses on settlements - - - - - -
Other 4 1 - - 4 1
impact on selling, administrative and general expenses 17 {10) 1 - 18 {10}
Interest cost 23 25 B 6 29 31
Expected return on pian assets 112 {12 - - {12 (12
Impact on other financial charges and income 11 13 6 1] 17 19
Net benefit cost recognized In profit and loss 22 3 7 [ » g

a. felated to the change in part of the group’s management team since June 2012,

In 2015, benefits paid amounted to (i) €40 million with respect to pensions (€45 milhion in 2014}, of which €15 million paid by pension funds
(€18 miillion in 2014}, and (11} €12 million paid with respect to past-retirement benefits (€3 million in 2014).
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1223  Analysis of net benefit obligations with respect to pensions and post-retirement benefits

Changes in value of benefit obligations, fair value of plan assets, and funded status

{in mullions of euros) Note
Opening balence
Current service cost
Past service cost
|Gains) losses on settiements
Other
impact on selling, administrative and general expenses
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Impact on othar financisl charges and income
Net benefit cost recognized in profit and loss
Experience gains/losses) (a)
Actuanal gams/llosses) related to changes 1n demographic assumptions
Actuanal gains/{losses) related to changes in financial assumptions
Adjustment related to asset celling
Actuarial gainsflosses) recognized in other comprehensive income
Contributions by plan participants
Contributions by employers
Benefits paid by the fund
Benefits paid by the employer
Business combinations
Divestitures of businesses
Transfers
Other {of which foreign cumency translation adjustments)
Closing balsnce
of which whally or partly funded benefits
| wholly unfunded benefits (b}
of which assets related to employee benefit plans
provisions for employee benefit pians (c) 16

Friday, February 19, 2016

Emplovee defined benefit plans
Year ended December 31, 2015
Benefit obligation  Fair value of plan Net {provisionj/asset
assels recorded in the
statement of financial
posrtion

W o @ BHA

1,005 404 (601}

14 (14)

k| 1} (4)

{18)

9 [29)

12 12

17

{35)

29 19 {10)

(8} 8

15 {15}

{17)

1 t -

43 a3

{15) {15 -

@7 (37} -

49 27 (22)

1,005 =3 {627)
645
440

19

1646)
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Employee defined benefit plans
Year ended December 31, 2014
Benefit gbligation  Fair value of plan Net (provision)/asset

assets recorded in the
statement of financial
position
(in mullions of euros) Note {A) 8] {BHA}
Opening balance 966 356 (510)
Current service cost 20 {20
Past service cost {26) 26
{Gains)/losses on settlements - (1 (1
Other - -
impact on selling, administrative and goneral axpsnses 5
Interest cost 33 {33
Expected return on plan assets 12 12
impact on other financial charges and income {21)
Net benafit cost recognized in profit and loss {16}
Expenence gains/losses) (a} - 24 24
Actuanal gains/{losses) related to changes in demographic assumptions 1l 7
Actuarial gains/{fosses) related ta changes in financial assumptions 122 (122}
Adjustment related to asset celfing - - -
Actuarial gains/{losses) recognized in other comprehensive income %)
Contributions by plan participants 1 1 -
Contributions by employers 43 43
Benefits paid by the fund 18) {18 -
Benefits paid by the employer {36) {36) -
Business combinations 1 . )]
Divestrtures of businesses {d) (102) - 162
Transfers - - .
Other {of which foreign currency translation adjustments) 51 23 (28)
Giosing balance 1,15- 404 {601}
of which whofly or partly funded benefits 558
whelly unfunded benefits by 47
of which assets related to employee benefit plans 7
provisions for employee benefit pians (¢) 16 {608

a.  Included the impact on the benefit obligation resulting from the difference between actuarial assumptions at the previous year-end and
effective benefits during the year, and the difference between the expected return on plan assets at the previous year-end and the
actual return on plan assets during the year.

b. In accordance with local laws and practices, certain plans are not covered by plan assets. As of December 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014, such plans principally comprised supplementary pension plans in the United States, pension plans in Germany and
post-retirement bengfit plans in the United States.

¢ Included a current $abitity of €62 million as of December 31, 2015 {compared to €48 million as of December 31, 2014},
d Related to the impact of the sale of SFR on November 27, 2014.
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Pension benefits (a) Post-retirement benefits (b) Total

December 31, December 31, December 31,
{in millions of euros} 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Benefit obligation
US companies 133 125 130 136 263 261
UK companies 330 296 1 1 3 297
German companies 208 209 - - 208 209
French companies 202 157 - - 202 157
Other 66 3 15 16 B! 81

9 >3 1% 153 1.085 1006

Fair value of plan assets
US companies 59 57 59 57
UK companies 298 252 298 52
German companies 3 3 3 3
French companies 55 54 55 54
Other 43 38 43 38

[T 04 - - A58 %04
Underfunded obligation
US companies 74} 168] {130) {136} {204} {204}
UK companies 32 (44} m M {33) (45}
German companies {205) {206) - - 1205) (206)
French companies {147 (103) - - (147} 1103}
Gther 23 {7 %) __t6) {38) a3

(481) {448) (146) (153) {627) (60t}

a.  No emplovee defined benefit plan individually exceeded 10% of the aggregate value of the obiigations and of the underfunded

obligation of these plans.

b.  Primarily related to medical coverage (hospitalization, surgery, doctor visits and drug prescriptions), post-retirement and life insurance
benefits for certain employees and retirees in the Umited States. In accordance with the current regulation in relation to the funding
policy of this type of plan, the plan is not funded. The main nsks for the group related to changes in discount rates as well as the
increase in the cost of benefits {please refer to the sensitivity analysis described in Note 17.2.1).

17.24 Benefits estimation and future payments

For 2016, hedge fund contributions and benefit payments by Vivend: to retirees are estimated to be €53 million in respect of pensions, of
which €34 million relates to pension funds and €9 million relates to post-retirement benefits.
Estimates of future benefit payments to beneficiaries by the relevant pension funds or by Vivend: {in nominal value for the following

10 years) are as follows:

. y Post-reti it
Pension benefits ost-retiveme

{in millions of euros) benefits

2016 83 1
2017 7 10
2018 L 0
2019 32 10
2020 36 10
2021-2025 185 43
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Note 18  Share-based compensation plans

181  Plans granted by Vivendi

18.1.1  Equity-settied instruments

Transactions on outstanding instruments, which have occurred since January 1, 2014 were as follows:

Friday, February 13, 2016

Stock options Performance shares
Number of outstanding Wenghted average strike Number of putstanding
stock options price of outsjcandmg stock performance shares
options
(in thousands) (in euros) (in thousands)
Balance as of December 31, 2013 52,835 19.7 5344
Granted - na 380
Exercised (11,264} ta) 175 {1,600)
Forfeited (117 175 na
Cancelled (b} {571} 13.7 {440}
Adijusted (c} 2,439 19.1 183
Balance as of December 31, 2014 42,712 193 3.867
Granted - na 1,566
Exercised {10,882} (a) 184 {1,968)
Forfeited {481) 19.0 na
Cancelled {28} 1.8 {920} tb}
Balance as of December 31, 2015 NN o 19.7 2,545 (o)
Exercisable as of Dacember 31, 2015 31,331 19.7 -
Acquired as of December 31, 2015 31331 19.7 650

na: not applicable

a. As of the stock option exercise dates, the weighted average price for Vivendi shares was €22.14 (compared to €19.68 for stock options

exercised in 2014).

b Atits meeting held on February 27, 2015, after review by the Governance, Nominating and Human Resources Committee, the Supervisory
Board approved the level of satisfaction of objectives set for the cumulative fiscal years 2013 and 2014 for performance share plans
granted in 2013 It confirmed that not all the criteria had been met for fiscal year 2014. The final grant of the 2013 performance share
plans represents, depending on the subsidiaries of the group, between 62% and 80% of the initial grant. Consequentty, BZ8,127 rights to
performance shares granted in 2013 were cancelled. In 2014, the Supervisory Board confirmed a final grant at 88% of the 2012 plans.
Consequently, among the instruments cancelled in 2014 were 335,784 stock options and 239,207 performance shares granted in 2012.

¢. Inaccordance with legal requirements, the number and strike price of stock options, as well as the number of performance shares were
adjusted to take into account the impact for the beneficiaries of the distribution on Juns 30, 2014 of an ordinary distribution of €1 per
share from additional paid-in capital. This adjustment had no impact on share-based compensation expenses related to the relevant

stock option and performance share plans.
d.  The total intrinsic value of outstanding stock options was €57 million.

e. The weighted-average remaining period before detivering performance shares was 2.2 years.

Please refer to Note 15 for the potential impact on the share capital of Vivendi SA of the outstanding stock options and performance shares.

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015

Vivend: /79



Friday, February 19, 2016

Outstanding stock options as of December 31, 2015

] - .
Range of strike prices Number Weighted average strike Weighted average

price remaining contractual e
{in thousands} {in euros) (in years)

Under €15 2216 18 6.3
€15-€17 8,483 16.0 38
€17-€18 2378 17.2 53
€19-821 5,662 202 23
£21-€23 5017 229 03
£23-€25 6,577 247 13
€25 and more - - -
31331 19.7 26

Performance share pians

On February 27, 2015, Vivendi granted 1,449 thousand performance shares to its officers and employees. In 2014, due to changes in the
scope which had been imp!emented, Vivendi did not grant an annual plan to its employees and only granted 380,000 performance shares to a
member of the Management Board and certain executive officers of its subsidiaries.

Dn February 27, 2015, the share price was £21.74 and the expected dividend yield was 4.60%. These shares will vest at the end of a thrpe-
year period and the compensation cost 1s therefore recognized on a straight-line basis over this vesting period. They will then remain
unavailable during an additional two-year period. After taking into account a discount for non-transferability of 9.0% of the share price as of
February 27, 2015, the fair value of each granted performance share amounted to €16.98, corresponding to an aggregate fair value of
€25 million. The accounting methods applied to value and recognize these granted plans are described in Note 1.3.10.

The objectives relating to the performance conditions are assessed over a three-year period in line with what was proposed to, and adopted
by, the General Shareholders’ Meeting held on June 24, 2014.

The definitive grant is effective upon the satisfaction of the following performance conditions:
» internal indicators {with a weighting of 80%), measured as of December 31, 2017 on a cumulative basis including the 2015, 2016
and 2017 fiscal years:
the EBITA margin rate {40%], for each subsidiary, and the group’s EBITA margin for the corporate headguarters;
the group’s EBITA growth rate (10%);
- the group’s earnings per share (30%}; and
+ external indicators (with a weighting of 20%] tied to changes tn Vivendi's share price between January 1, 2015 and December 31,
2017 compared to the STOXX® Europe 600 Media index {15%) and to the CAC 40 (5%).

As the shares granted are ordinary shares of the same class as existing shares making up the share capital of Vivendi SA, employee
shareholders are entitled to the dividends and voting nghts attached to these shares from the end of the three-year vesting period. The
recognized compensation cost corresponds 1o the value of the equity instruments received by the beneficiary, and is equaf to the difference
between the fair value of the shares to be received and the discounted value of dividends that were not received over the vesting period.

In 2015, the charge recognized with respect to equity settled instruments amounted to €11 million, compared to €9 million in 2014,
18.1.2  Employee stock purchase and leveraged plans

On July 16, 2015, Vivendi undertook a capital increase reserved for employees (stock purchase and leveraged plans) which allowed the
majority of its employees and retirees to subscribe for Vivendi shares.

These shares, which are subject to certain sale or transfer restrictions, may be subscribed by employees for @ maximum discount of 15% on
the average opening market price for Vivendi shares during the 20 trading days preceding the date of approval of the share capital increase
by the Management Board and the subscription price of new shares to be issued. The difference between the subscription price of the
shares and the share price on that date represents the benefit granted to the beneficiaries. Furthermore, Vivendi applied a discount for non-
transferability in respect of the restrictions on the sale or transfer of the shares during a five-year period, which is deducted from the benefit
granted to the employees. The value of the subscribed shares is estimated and fixed at the date of the subscriptien price for new shares to
issue.
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The applied valuation assumptions were as follows:

2015
Grant date June 18
Data at grant date:
Share price (in euros) 2349
Expected dividend yreld 4726%
Risk-free interest rate 0.36%
B-year interest rate in fine 4.69%
Repo rate 0.36%
Discount for non-transferability per share 16 69%

Under the employee stock purchase ptan, 636 thousand shares were subscribed for in 2015 at £18.39 per share.

Under the leveraged plan, 3,218 thousand shares were subscribed for in 2015 at €19.21 per share. The leveraged plan entitles virtually all
employees and retirees of Vivendi and its French and foreign subsidiaries to subscribe for Vivendi shares through a reserved share capital
increase, while obtaining a discounted subscription price, and to ultimately receive the capital gain (calculated pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the plan) corresponding to 10 shares for one subscribed share. A financial institution mandated by Vivendi hedges this
transaction.

ln 2015, the charge recognized with respect to employee stock purchase and leveraged plans amounted to €5 million.

Stock purchase and leveraged plans resulted in a capital increase {including 1ssue premium) having an aggregate value of €75 million on
July 16, 2015

In 2014, no capital increase, reserved for employees of participating group companies that have joined an employee stock purchase and
teveraged plans, was put into place by Vivendi.

18.1.3 Cash-settled instruments

Stock appreciation right (SAR) plans

Under a SAR plan, the beneficiaries will receive a cash payment upon exercise of their rights based on the Vivendi share price equal to the
difference between the Vivend: share price upon exercise of the SAR and their strike price as set at the grant date. SAR expire at the end of
a ten-year period, 1.e., 2016 and 2017.

As of December 31, 2015, the outstanding SAR was 2,878 thousand {compared to 4,427 thousand as of December 31, 2014). In 2015,
1,268 thousand SAR were exercised and 261 thousand have expired. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the amount accrued for these
instruments was non-significant.

182 UMG long-term incentive plan

Effective from January 1, 2010, UMG implemented long-term incentive arrangements under which certain key executives of UMG were
awarded phantom equity units and phantom stock appreciation rights whose value was intended to reflect the value of UMG. These units
were simply account units and did not represent an actual ownership interest in either UMG or Vivendi. The equity units were notional grants
of equity that were payable in cash upon settlsment in 2015 at the latest, or in certain cases, on an earlier date. The stock appreciation
rights were essentially options on those notional shares that provided additional compensation tied to any increase in value of UMG over the
term.

During the third quarter of 2014, one executive, who benefited from the plan, ended his employment contract. The phantom equity units and
phantom stock appreciation nghts that were awarded to him were therefore cancelled and the amount previously accrued for these rights
was reversed {€19 million). In July 2015, following the renewal of the employment contract of one executive who benefited from the plan,
the remaining rights under the plan vested, and an amount of €16 million was paid as final settlement to the executive.

In 2015, the charge recognized with respect to this plan amounted to €3 million, compared to an income of €17 miflion in 2014 As of
Dacember 31, 2015, no further amounts were accrued for (€12 million as of December 31, 2014},
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183 Dailymotion’s long-term incentive plan

in 2015, Vivendi implemented a long-term incentive plan for a five-year period with certain key executives of Vivendi, including
Mr. Dominique Delport, a member of Vivendi's Supervisory Board. This plan is linked to the growth of Daitymotion's enterprise value
compared to its acquisition value, as it will stand as of June 30, 2020, based upon a third party expertise. In case of an increase in
Dailymotion's value, the amount of the compensation with respect to the incentive plan is capped at a percentage, depending on the
beneficiary, of this increase. Within the six months following June 30, 2020, the plan will be settled by a payment in cash, if any.

In accordance with IFRS 2, a compensation expense has to be estimated and accounted for at each reporting date until the payment date, As
of December 31, 2015, given that the acquisition date {June 30, 2015} was close to the closing date, no increase in Dalymotion’s value was
recorded and, as a result, ne charges were accounted for with respect to Dailymetion's long-term incentive plan.

Note 19  Borrowings and other financial liabilities

Note December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

lin mthions of euras) Total Long-term  Short-term Total Long-term  Short-term
Bonds 192 1,950 1,450 500 1,950 1,950 -
Bark overdrafts 53 - 53 168 - 168
Accrued interest to be paid 27 - 27 27 - 7
Other 89 14 55 o4 & 49
Bank credit facilities (drawn confumed) 183 - - - - - -
Nomina| value of borrowings 2,099 1,464 835 2199 1,955 244
Cumulative effect of amortized cast and revaluation due to

hedge accounting 193 14 (3) 17 28 28 -
Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests 793 83 210 (a) 87 79 8
Denvative financial instruments 197 532 1 521 (b 33 12 21
Borrowings and other financial liabilities 2938 1,555 1383 2347 2074 3

a. Included the firm commitment of €193 million related to the share repurchase program in place as of December 31, 2015 (please refer to
Note 15},

b. Included the collar hedge (€483 million} denomimated in USD on Vivendi's interest in Activision Blizzard; this instrument was unwound on
January 13, 2016 {please refer to Note 12).

19.1  Fair market value of borrowings and other financial liabilities

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
. Carrying  Far market Level Carrying  Faiw market Level
{in milhons of euros} value value value value
Nominal value of borrowings 2008 2,199
Cumulatyve effect of amortized cost and revaluation due to hedge
accounting 14 28
Borrowings at amortized cost 213 2,212 na 2227 2483 na
Derivative financial instruments 532 532 2 13 33 2
Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests 293 293 {a)1-3 87 87 3
Borrowings end other financial liabilites 2,938 3,097 2,347 2,603

na: not applicabie

a Included the firm commitment of €193 million related to the shara repurchase program in place as of December 31, 2015, classified in Level 1
{please refer to Note 15}
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192 Bonds
- Interest rate (%) Maturity December 31,2015 December 31, 2014
{in millions of euros) nominal effective
€750 milhon (March 2010) 4 000% 415% Mar-17 750 750
€700 million {December 2008) 4875% 4.95% Dec-19 700 700
€500 million (Decamber 2009) 4.250% 4.39% Dec-16 500 500
Nominal value of bonds 1,950 1950

Bonds denominated in suros are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

Bonds issued by Vivendi SA contain customary prowvisions related to events of default, negative pledge and rights of payment {pari-passu
ranking). In addition, bonds issued by Vivendi SA contain an early redemption clause in case of a change in control if, as & result of any such
vent, the long-term rating of Vivendi SA is downgraded below investment grade status {(Baa3/BBB-}.

19.3 Bank credit facilities

Vivendi SA has a €2 billion bank credit facility, undrawn as of December 31, 2015. On Cctober 30, 2015, the maturity of this credit facility
was extended for one year, to October 2020

This bank credit facility contains customary provisions relating to events of default and covenants relating to negative pledge, divestiture and
merger transactions. In addition, at the end of each half year, Vivendi SA is required to comply with a Proportionate Financiaf Net Debt” to
EBITDA? financial covenant over a 12-month roliing period not exceeding 2 for the duration of the toan. Non-compliance with this covenant
could result in the early redemption of the facility if it were drawn, or its cancellation. As of December 31, 2015, Vivendi SA was in
compliance with its financial covenant.

The renewal of Vivend: SA's confirmed bank credit faeility when it is drawn is contingent upon the issuer reiterating certain representations
regarding its ability to comply with its financial cbligations with respect to loan contracts.

In addition, on March 4, 2013, a [etter of credit for €975 mitlion, maturing in March 2016, was issued in connection with Vivendi's appeal
against the Liberty Medta judgment (please refer to Note 23}, In July 2015, its maturity date was extended to February 28, 2018, This letter of
credit is guaranteed by a syndicate of intemational banks with which Vivendi signed a Reimbursement Agreement that inciudes an undertaking
by Vivendi to reimburse the banks for any amounts paid out under the letter of credit. On July 16, 2014, Vivendi strengthened the guarantees
given to the banks that are parties to the Reimbursement Agreement by placing a cash deposit of €375 million in an escrow account. This
cash deposit could be used in prionty against a claim made against Vivendi, if any, and i the banks were called with respect to the letter of
credit.

194 Borrowings by maturity

{in millions of euros) December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Maturity

< 1 year (g} 635 30% 244 11%
Between 1 and Z years 762 6% 505 23%
Between 2 and 3 years 2 - 750 34%
Between 3 and 4 vears 700 34% - -
Between 4 and 5 years - - 700 2%
> S years - - - -
Nominal value of horrowings 2,099 100% 2198 100%

a  As of December 31, 2015, short-term borrowings {with a matunty period of fess than one year) mainly included Vivendi SA’s bonds for
£500 million, maturing in December 2016, as well as bank overdrafts for €53 million. As of December 31, 2014, they mainly included bank
overdrafts for £168 million.

As of December 31, 2015, the average “economic” term of the group’s financial debt, pursuant to which all undrawn amounts on available medium
term credit fines may be used to redeem group borrowings with the shortest term was 4.6 years {compared to 4.9 years at year-end 2014).

£ Relates to Financial Net Debt as defined by Vivendi.
3 Relates to EBITDA as defined by Vivendi, plus dividends received from unconsolidated companies.
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As of December 31, 2015, the future undiscounted cash flows related to borrowings and other financial liabilities amounted to €3,145 million
{compared to a carrying value of €2,938 million) and are presented in Note 22.1 within the group’s contractual minimum future payments
schedule.

195 Breakdown by nature of interest rate

{in millons of euros) December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Fixed interest rate 2,002 95% 1995 91%
Finating interest rate 97 5% 204 9%
Nominsl value of borrowings before hedging 2,099 100% 2199 100%
L E—_ ]
Pay-fixed interest rate swaps 450 450
Pay-floating interest rate swaps {1.450) {1,450}
Net position at fixed interest rate {1.000) {1,000}
Fixed interest rate 1,002 48% 945 45%
Floating interest rate 1,097 52% 1,204 55%
Nominal value of borrowings after hedging 2099 100% 2,199 100%
b ] e
Interest rate risk

Vivendi's interest rate risk management seeks to reduce its net exposure to interest rate increases. Therefore, Vivendi uses pay-floating and
pay-fixed interest rate swaps. These instruments thus enable the group to manage and reduce volatility for future cash flows related to
interest payments on borrowings. Considering the fixed/floating rate hedging instruments implemented, an unfavorable change of 1% in the
interest rates would have a cumulative impact of -£10 million on net earnings.

As a reminder, in December 2014, concomitantly with the redemption of the bonds having make-whole options, Vivendi made an early
settlsment of pay-floating interest rate swaps having a notional amount of €750 million and €400 million. As of December 31, 2015, the
portfolio of Vivendi's interest rate hedging instruments included the following swaps (unchanged as cf December 31, 2014):

Notional amounts Fair value
Total Maturity Dacember 31, 2815 December 31, 2014
{in milliens of euros) 2016 2007 Assets  Liahilities Assets  Liahilities
Pay-fixed interast rate swaps 450 - 450 - {9} 12}
Pay-floating interest rate swaps {1.450) {1,000} {450) 49 - 75 -

Net position at fixed interest rate (1,000} _ {1,000) - {a) 19 {8 75 {12}

Breakdown by accounting category of rate hedging instruments
Fair Value Hedge {1,000y  {1,000) 19 - 3B -
Economic Hedging {b} - - @ 30 (9) 40 (12

a. Included pay-floating interest rate swaps for a notional amount of €450 miition, as well as pay-fixed interest rate swaps for the same
amount, maturing in 2017, qualified as economic hedges.

h. The economic hedging instruments relate to derivative financial instruments which are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant to
IAS 39.

196 Breakdown by currency

(i mitlions of euros) December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Euro - EUR 2,052 98% 2,162 98%
Other 47 2% 37 2%
Nominal value of borrowings before hedging 2,099 100% 2,199 100%
] L

Currency swaps USD 799 748

Other currency swaps {126} (52

Net total of hadging instruments (a} 673 696
Euro - EUR 2,125 130% 2,958 130%
US dollar - USD (799) 38% {748) -34%
Other 173 8% 89 4%
Nominal value of borrowings after hedging 2,099 100% 2199 100%

a  Notional amounts of hedging instruments translated into guros at the closing rates.
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Foreign currency risk

The group’s foreign currency risk management is centralized by Vivendi SA's Financing and Treasury Department and primarily seeks to
hedge budget exposures {at an 80% level) resulting from monetary flows generated by activities performed in currencies other than the euro
as well as from extemal firm commitments (at a 100% level), primarly relating to the acquisition of editorial content {e.g., sports, audiovisual
and film rights) and certain capital expenditures {e.g., set-top boxes), realized in currencies other than the euro. Most of the hedging
instruments are foreign currency swaps or forward contracts that have a maturity period of less than ene year. Considering the foreign
currency hedging instruments established, an unfavorable and uniform euro change of 1% against all foreign currencies in position as of
December 31, 2015, would have a non-significant cumulative impact on net earnings (below €1 million). In addition, the group may hedge
foreign currency exposure resulting from foreign-currency denominated financial assets and liabilities. Moreover, due to their non-significant
nature, net exposures related to subsidiares’ net working capital {internal flows of royalties as well as external purchases) are generally not
hedged. The associated risks are settled at the end of each month by translating the amounts into the functional currency of the relevant
operating entities.

The principal currencies hedged by the group are US dollars (USD) and British pounds {GBP). In 2015 and 2014, to hedge against & possible
depreciation of (ts net investment in certain subsidiaries in the United Kingdom due to an unfavorable change in GBP, Vivendi set up a hedge
using forward contracts for a notional amount of £832 million, or €1,141 million at forward rate. From an accounting perspective, these
hedge instruments were considered as net investment hedges

The following tables present the foreign currency risk management instruments used by the group; the positive amounts relate to currencies
to be received, the negative amounts relate to currencies to be delivered at contractual exchange rates:

December 31, 2015

Nottonal amounts Fair value
lin millions of euros} Total Ush PLN GBP Dther Assets Liabilities
Sales against the euro [1,535) {85) (290) (1,159} {3n 18 [
Purchases against the euro 2212 651 70 1,377 114 16 {37)
(Other - 198 (118) (13} {67} 5 {1
677 ™ (339) 2% 16 39 0
Breakdown by accounting category of foreign curmency hedging instruments
Cash Flow Hadge
Sales agamst the euro (53} # {35) - {14) - -
Purchases against the euro 48 47 - - 1 2 -
Other . 24 @ - - 1 {1}
15} 67 {59) - (13) 3 n
Fair Value Hedge
Sales agatnst the euro {325} (51) (255) {18 {n 6 {2)
Purchases against the euro 333 Nz - 21 - 1 2
Dther - 106 {94) {8} (4) 4 -
] 367 (349) {5) 5 n (4}
Net Investment Hedge
Sales against the euro {1,141} - - {1,141) - 12 .
(1,141) - - {1.141) - 12 -
Economic Hedging {a)
Sales against the euro 117} - - - {17 - -
Purchases against the euro 1,832 292 70 1,356 14 3 {35}
Other - 8 - 5) (63) - -
1815 360 70 1,351 kT 3 {35)
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Notional amounts Farr value
{in mithons of euros) Total UsD PLN GBP Other Assets Liabilities
Sales against the euro {1,233} (52} {56) {1,062} (63} 2 {18)
Purchases aganst the euro 1908 717 51 1,020 120 40 {2)
Other - 59 - 1 {60} 1 -
675 724 {5) {41} (3) 43 (21)
ritiri iqit currarn (nstruments
Cath Flow Hedge
Sales against the euro {67} {9} {45) 2) i 2 n
Purchases against the eura 33 33 - - - Z -
Other - - - - - - -
(34) 24 {85) 2) (11 4 {1}
Fair Value Hedge
Sales against the eurp (68) {43} (1) {14} - 1)
Purchases against the euro 75 275 - - - 14 -
Other - 3 - i (4 - -
207 25 {11} {13} 4 14 [t}
Net Iavestmant Hedge
Sales against the euro {1,048) {1 .04E'i_)_ 17
{1,046} - - {1,046) - - {17
Economic Hedging {a)
Sales against the euro (52) - - - (52) - -
Purchases against the euro 1,600 409 51 1,020 120 24 (2)
Other - 56 - - {56 1 -
1,548 565 51 1,020 12 F- 3 (7]

Friday, February 19, 2016

a.  The economic hedging instruments relate to derivative financial instruments which are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant to

1AS 39.

19.7 Derivative financial instruments

Value on the Statement of Financial Position

{in millions of euras)

Interest rate nsk management

Foreign currency risk management

Other

Derivativa financial instruments

Deduction of current dervative financial instruments
Non-current derivative financial instruments

Note
195
19.6

December 31, 2015

December 3t, 2014

Assets Lighilities Assets Liabilities
49 {9) 75 {12)
39 {40) 43 (21}
27 (483) (a 2
15 {532) 139 (33)
(a7) 521 {40} 21
68 (L))} 9 (12)

a. Related to the collar hedge dencminated in USD on Vivendi's interest in Activision Blizzard This instrument was unwound on

January 13, Z016 {please refer to Note 12},
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Unrealized gains and losses recognized directly in equity

Cash Flow Hedge
Interest rate Foreign Net Investment Total
nsk currency risk Hedge

{in millions of euros) management  _management

Balance as of Decomber 31, 2013 9 5 [ 2
Charges and income directly recognized in equity . B {56} {50}
ltems to be reclassified to profit o loss 15 {6} - 9
Tax effect - (2) - (2}
Balance as of December 31, 2014 28 3 {50} (23)
Charges and income directly recognized in equity - (3) (66} (69)
[tems to be reclassified to profit or foss (1) 1 - (10)
Tax effect - 1 - 1
Other - (1} - {1}
Balance as of December 31, 2015 13 1 {116} (102)

198 Credit ratings

As of February 10, 2016, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved the Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2015, Vivendi's credit ratings were as follows:

Rating agency Type of debt Ratings Qutlook

Standard & Poor's Long-term corporate debt BBB } Stable
Senior unsecured debt BeB

Mouody's Long-term senior unsecured debt Baa? Stable

Fitch Ratings Long-term senior unsecured debt BBB Stable

Note 20 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

201 Adjustments

Year ended December 31,

{in miltions of eurps} Note 2015 20t4
Itams related to operating activities with no cash impact

Amortization and depreciation of intangitile and tangible assets 3 716 743
Change In provision, net (63) (125)
Other non-cash items from EBIT 2} n
Other

Other income from EBIT 4 {745) (203
Other charges from EBIT 4 45 30
Proceads from sales of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets 1 3
Adjustments {(38) 447

20.2 Investing and financing activities with no cash impact

On June 24, 2015, Vivendi swapped a 4.5% interest in Telefonica Brasil with Telefonica in exchange for 8.24% of Telecom Italia commaon
shares. The value of the interest in Telecom Italia amounted to €1,265 million as of this date.

On September 16, 2015, Vivendi swapped a 3 5% interest in Telefonica Brasil in exchange for 46 million Telefonica shares (i.e., a 0.95%
interest). The value of the interest in Telefonica amounted to €538 mllion. In December 2015, Vivendi received 1.4 million Telefonica shares
with respect to the payment of a dividend in shares, representing a value of €16 million. Please refer to Note 2.3,

On November 27, 2014, Vivend: sold 100% of its interest in SFR to Numericable and received €13,166 million in cash as well as
97,387,845 shares in the newly combined entity Numericable-SFR, which represents a 20% interest and voting rights. This 20% interest in
Numericable-SFR was sold on May 6, 2015 for £3,922 miltion, €1,948 milfion receved on May 6, 2015 and £1,974 million received on
August 19, 2015

In 2015 and 2014, there was no significant financing activity without cash impact.
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Note 21  Related party transactions

As of December 31, 2015, Vivendi's main related parties were:
« corporate officers who are members of Vivendi's Supervisory Board and Management;
o subsidiaries over which Vivendi exercises an exclusive or ioint control, and companies over which Vivendi exercises a significant
influence (piease refer to Note 24 for major consolidated entities or entities accounted under equity methoo);
»  all companies in which corporate officers or their close relatives hold significant voting rights; and
¢ minority sharehoiders exercising a significant influence aver group subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015.

211 Corporate officers

Situation of corporate officers

On June 24, 2014, Vivendi's General Sharehalders’ Meeting notably appointed three new Supervisory Board members: Ms. Katie Jacobs
Stanton, Ms. Virginie Morgon and Mr. Philippe Bénacin.

Vivendi's Supervisory Board, which was convened immediately following the General Shareholders’ Meeting on June 24, 2014, appointed
Mr. Vincent Bollord as Chairman. The Board also appointed Mr. Pierre Rodocanachi as Vice-Chairman and Mr. Jean-René Fourtou, as
Honarary Chairman.

On June 24, 2014, the Supervisory Board also appointad Mr. Hervé Philippe and Mr. Stéphane Roussel as members of the Management
Board, to serve alongside Mr. Arnaud de Puyfontaine, Chairman.

On April 17, 2015, Vivendi's General Shareholders’ Meeting notably appointed two new Supervisory Board members: Mr. Tarek Ben Ammar
and Mr. Dominique Delport. Thereafter, on September 2, 2015, the Supervisory Board co-opted Ms Catherine Lawson-Hall as a member of
the Supervisory Board. This co-option will be submitted to the next General Shareholders’ Meeting of April 21, 2015 for ratification.

The Supervisory Board is currently comprised of 14 members, including an employee shareholder representative and an employee
representative. It is made up of six women, i.e. a ratio of 46% (in accordance with Law n°2011-103 of January 27, 2011, the employee
representative is not taken into account for the calculation of this percentage).

On November 10, 2015, the Supervisory Board appointed Mr. Frédénc Crépin, Group General Counsel, and Mr. Simon Gillham, Chairman of
Vivendi Village and Senior Executive Vice President, Communications, as members of the Management Board.

The Management Board is currently comprised of five members.

Compensation of corporate officers
Management Board

The gross compensation, including benefits in kind, paid by the group in 2015 to the members of the Management Board amounted to
£4.7 milfion, pro rata to their term of office. This amount comprised the fixed compensation {€2.5 milion) and the variable compensation paid
with respect to 2014 (€2.2 million), as approved by the Supervisory Board on February 27, 2015 and November 10, 2015.

On February 18, 2016, the Supervisery Board approved the variable compensation of members of the Management Board with respect to
2015, to be paid in 2016 tor an aggregate amount of €3.1 million, pro rata to their term of office, as well as the achievement rate of the 2014
performance share plan granted to Mr. Arnaud de Puyfontaine, who consequently received 79,123 performance shares {1.e., 75% of the initial
grant).

The Chairman of the Management Board, Mr. Amaud de Puyfontaine, renounced his employment contract. In accordance with the provisions
approved by the General Shareholders” Meeting held on April 17, 2015, he was granted a contractual severance package in the event of
forced departure and subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions.

In 2014, the three members of the Management Board, in office as of December 31, 2014, received a fixed compensation of €1.6 million, in
respect of the:r position as corporate officers.

in addition, with respect to 2014, the members of the Management Board in office until June 24, 2014 received a fixed and variable
compensation in 2014 for an aggregate amount of €2.1 million, and the variable compensation with respect to fiscal year 2013, as approved
by the Supervisory Board on February 21, 2014 (€1.0 million).

The charge recorded by Vivendi with respect to eguity-settfed share-based compensation plans granted to the current members of the
Management Board amounted to €1.9 million in 2015 (£2.1 mullion in 2014).
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The charge recorded by Vivendi with respect to the vested rights under the pension commitments of the Management Board members in
office as of December 31, 2015 amounted to £4.1 miilion {compared to 2.2 million in 2014}, The amount of net pension obligations toward the
members of the Management Board in office as of December 31, 2015 amounted ta €21.2 million as of this date. The former Chairman of the
Management Board, who served until June 24, 2014, exercised, on that date, his pension benefit rights after 23 years of service within the
group and a debit on plan assets was recorded for £9.4 million.

Supervisory Board

For 2015, the Supervisory Board decided, at its meeting held on February 27, 2015 and upon the recommendation of the Corporate
Governance, Nominations and Remuneration Committee, to grant the payment of an annual director's fee of €60,000 to the Chairman of the
Supervisory Board and to offset it against his annual compensation capped at £400,000, which was conseguently reduced to €340,000 and
remains subject to the same performance conditions used to calculate the 2015 variable compensation of the Management Board members.
On February 18, 2016, the Supervisory Board approved the level of satisfaction of performance conditions and as a result, decided to set the
compensation of the cumrent Chairman of the Supervisory Board at €340,000 for 2015,

For the period from June 24 to December 31, 2014, the compensation of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board in office, paid in 2015,
amounted to €207,778 on a prorata temporis basis. The fixed compensation paid to the Chairman of the Supervisory Board in office untii
June 24, 2014 amounted to £338,333 on a prorata temporis basis.

The gross amount of directors’ fees paid to the remaining members of the Supervisory Board with respect to 2015 was £€1,131,666 {compared
to €1,048,571 in 2014). Moreover, at its meeting held on April 4 and 5, 2014, the Supervisory Board decided to award an additional
compensation of €130,000 to members of the ad hoc Committee, in recognition of the workload due to its mandate and the high quality of
the work they had contributed.

Moreover, at its meeting held on September 2, 2015, Vivendi's Supervisory Board authorized the Management Board to enter into an
agreement with Mr. Dominique Delport, a member of Vivendi's Supervisory Board, for a five-year penod as from October 1, 2015. Pursuant to
the terms of this services contract, Mr. Delport provides assistance and advice regarding the creation and use of new digital contents as part
of the development of Vivendi Contents and Dailymotion, for an annual fee capped at €500,000. As part of this contract, Vivendi paid €75,000
in 2015. In addition, pursuant to the terms of this contract, Mr Delport was granted a long-term incentive plan, as described in Note 18.

Chapter 3 of the Annual Report contains a detailed description of the compensation policy and the compensation and benefits of
Vivendi SA's corporate officers, in accordance with the recommendations of the AFEP-MEDEF Code.

212 Other related parties

A list of Vivendi's major consolidated entities or entities accounted under equity method is presented in Note 24:
+ The transactions between consolidated companies are not included in the group’s Consolidated Financial Statements.
« A list of the companies over which Vivendi exercises a sigmficant influence 1s presented in Note 11. It is primarily comprised of
Telecom ftalia hetd at 21% by Vivendi, and Vevo, held at 49% by Universal Music Group The transactions with companies accounted
for under the equity method are presented in the table below.

Companies in which Vivendi's corporate officers or their close relatives hold significant voting rights are notably:
»  Bolloré Group and its subsidiaries, directly or indirectly controlled by Mr. Vincent Bolloré, Chairman of Vivendi’s Supervisory Board,
and his family;
»  Havas Group and its subsidiaries, 60% held by Bolloré Group; and
e  (uinta Communications, held by Mr. Tarak Ben Ammar.

Since April 9, 2015, Bolloré Group holds 196.4 million Vivend: shares. As of December 31, 2015, these shares represented approximately
14% of Vivend's share capital. Vivendi paid, on April 23, 2015, a dividend of €196.4 million to Group Bolloré, with respect to fiscal year
2014, and, on June 29, 2015, an interim dividend of €196.4 million, with respect to fiscal year 2015. On February 3, 2018, Vivendi paid &
second interim dividend of €195.4 million to Group Bollaré, with respect to 2015.

Excluding the following transactions with related parties, there are no other transactions between Vivendi, Havas Group, Bolioré Group, and
their corporate officers.
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{in millions of eurgs) 2015 2014
Assets
Trade accounts receivable and other 37 22
Of which Havas Group ! 1
Liabifities
Trade accounts payable and other 13 10
Of which Havas Group 3 3
Bolforé Group 3
Statement of sarnings
Operating income 156 100
Of which Havas Group 3 2
Telecom Halia 7 -
Operating expenses {61} {72y
Of which Havas Group {25} (24)
Bolloré Group 9 19
Advertising transactions
Of which advertising sales realized via Havas' agencies 99 a9
madia costs realized via Havas' agencies 74} (62}

The following constitutes complementary information about certain related parties’ transactions. Certain Havas Group's subsidiaries render
operating services to Vivendi and its subsidiaries on an arm’s-length basis. Regarding Canal+ Group:

L4

as part of their advertising campaigns, customers of Havas Group entered into transactions with Canal+ Group through media
agencies for an aggregate amount of £35 million in 2015 (€89 million in 2014);

as part of the advertising campaigns developed for Canal+, Canalsat and Canafplay, Canal+ Group entered into transactions with
major media cempaniss through Havas Group and its media agencies for €72 million in 2015 (€62 million in 2014);

media and production services, broadcasting rights and fees were completed by Havas Group and its subsidiaries for €13 million in
2015 (€9 million in 2014); and

Havas Group and its subsidiaries designed and developed advertising campaigns in favor of Canal+ Group for €11 million in 2015
(€13 million in 2014).

In addition, on October 8, 2015, Studiocanal and Quinta Communications entered into an agreement to sell video, TV and Video-on-demand
exploitation rights in France and in other French-speaking territories for 28 movies. The init:al duration of this contract is five years. In 2015,
this contract represented a non-significant amount for Studigcanal.

Note 22  Contractual obligations and other commitments

Vivendi’s material contractual cbligations and contingent assets and habilities include:

contracts entered into, which relate to the group’s business operations, such as content commitments (please refer to Note 10 2j,
contractual obligations and commercial commitments recorded in the Statement of Financial Position, including finance leases, off-
baiance sheet operating leases and subleases and off-balance sheet commercial commitments, such as long-term service contracts
and purchase or investment commitments,

commitments related to the group’s conselidation scope contracted through acquisitions or divestitures such as share purchase or
sale commitments, contingent assets and liabilities subsequent to given or received commitments refated to the divestiture or
acquisition of shares, commitments resutting from shareholders’ agreements and collateral and pledges granted to third parties over
Vivendi's assets;

commitments related to the group’s financing undrawn confirmed bank credit facilities as weil as the management of interest rate,
foreign currency and liquidity risks (piease refer to Note 19}, and

contingent assets and liabilities related to litigation in which Vivendi and/or its subsidiaries are either plamtiff or defendant (please
refer to Note 23).
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221  Contractual obligations and commercial commitments
Mimmum future payments as of December 31, 2015 Total mintmum future
Total Dug in payments as of

{in melhons of eurgs) Note 2016 2017-2020  Ahter 2020 December 31, 2014
Barrowings and other financial iabilies 3,45 1459 1,669 17 2,623
Content liabilities 10.2 2589 Z,ﬁ_ 69 4 2,433
Consolidated statement of financial position items 5734 3975 1,738 21 5,056
Cantractual content commitments 10.2 6,622 2345 4,219 58 6,135
Commercial commitments 1,069 350 555 164 1,160
Operating !eases and subleases 680 96 340 244 640
Net commitments not recorded in the consolideted statement
of financial position 831 M 5114 266 7935
Contractual obligations and commercial commitments 14,105 8,766 6,852 87 12,991

Off balance sheet commercial commitments

Minimum future payments as of December 31, 2015

Total mnmmum future

Total Due in payments as of

{in milhons of euros) 2016 2007 - 2020 After 2020 December 31, 2014

Satellite transponders 605 102 360 143 752
Investment commitments 64 45 19 - B85
Other 553 268 264 21 510
Given commitments 122 415 643 164 1347
Satellite transponders {144) {59) {85) {187}
(ther {9) _i6) K] -
Received commitments (153) {65) {88) - (187}
Net total m ﬂ ﬁ 164 1,160

Off balance sheet operating leases and subleases

Menimum future leases as of December 31, 2015

Total minimum future

Total Dusin_ _____ ieasesasof December
{in mdiions of euros) 2016 2017 - 2020 After 2020 31, 2014
Buildings m 110 345 246 652
Other 1 1 - - 6
Leases 702 m 345 246
Buildings (22) {15) {5) {2} {18}
Subleases {22) {15} {5} 2} (18}
Net total &80 9% ua 244 sqg

in addition, in Ogtober 2015, Universal Music Group entered into an agreement for lease with respect to the off-plan cffice space of
approximately 15,000 m? located in the King's Cross area in London. The lease is expected to be signed upon delivery of the premises in 2017
for a 15-year period.

222 Other commitments given or received relating to operations

Given commitments amounted to a cumulative amount of €68 miltion (compared to €87 million as of December 31, 2014). In addition, Vivendi
grants guarantees in various forms to financial institutions or service providers on behalf of its subsidianes in the course of their operations.

Received commitments amounted to a cumulative amount of €40 milkion {compared to €49 million as of December 31, 2014).

223  Share purchase and sale commitments
In connection with the purchase or sale of operations and financial assets, Vivendi has granted or received commitments to purchase or sell
securities:

call and put options an Orange’s interest in Dailymation {please refer to Note 2.1};

call and put options on the interests in Radionomy held by minority shareholders (please refer to Note 2.6);

project to invest in the future Banijay Zodiak Group {please refer to Note 2.7}, and

liquidity rights in respect of the strategic partnership between Canal+ Group, 1Tl and TVN {please refer to Note 22.5 below).

Vivendi and Its subsidiaries have granted or received purchase or sale options related to shares in equity affiliates and unconsolidated
investments.
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224 Contingent assets and liabilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the
divestiture or acquisition of shares

Ref.

Context

"~ Sale of GVT {May 2015)

__Charsctaristics (nature and amount) 7 _ Expi

Reresentatuons and warranties, limited t spmcally identified tax mtters. cappe a .
BRL 180 milhon {please refer to Note 2)

Sale of the 20% nterest in SFR to Numericable-
SFA {February 2015)

Commitments undertaken in connection with the sale (please refer to Note 2} -

{a)

Sale of Maroc Telecom group {May 2014}

Commitments undertaken in connection with the sale

{b) Sale of Activision Blizzard {October 2013) - Unlimited general guarantees, and
- Tax guarantees capped at $200 million, under certam cireumstances
Merger of Cyfra+ and "n® platforms {November Reciprocal guarantees in favor of TVN, not implemented and expired on July 1, 2015 2015
032 - PN 1 bilkon in the event of a breach of any representation or warranty of covenants,
and
- PLN 300 million in the event of & breach of specific representation or warranty .
(o) Acquisition of Bolloré Group's channels Commitments undertaken, in connection with the authonzation of the acquisition, with 017
(September 2012} - the French Competition Authonty, and
- the French Broadeasting Authority
Divestiture of PTC shares {December 2050) Commitments undertaken i order to end liigation over the shara ownership of PTC.
- fuarantess given to the Law Debenture Trust Company {LDTC), for an amount up to
18 4% for the first €125 million, 46% between €125 mullion and €288 mullion, and
50% thereatfter, and
- Guarantee given to Polte! investment's {Elektrim) administrator. .
{d} Canal+ Group's pay-TV actvities in France New approval of the acquisition of TPS and CanalSatellite subject to comphance with 2017

{January 2007-July 2017}

injunctrons ordered by the French Competion Authority

Divestiture of PSG (June 2006}

Unlimited specific guaraniees 018

Divestiture of UMG manufacturing and
distribution operations {May 2005)

Vanous commutments for manufactuning and distribution services. 2018

Dwvestiture of NC Numericable {March 2005)

Specific guarantess capped at €241 million {including tax and social nsks) not 04
implemented and expired as of December 31, 2014

NBC Universal transaction (May 2004} and
subsequent amendments (2005 - 2010}

- Breaches of tax representations, -
- (Obligation to cover the Most Favored Nation prowistens, and -
- End of claims related to remedial actions since May 11, 2014 014

Divestiture of Canal+ Nordic (October 2003)

Distribution guarantees not implemented and expired as of December 31, 2014 gwen n ms
favor of CanalDigital and Telenor Broadcast Hotding by a former subsidiary.

{e)

Sale of real estate assets {June 2002}

Autonomous first demand guarantees given to Nexity, capped at €130 million in total 2017
{tax and decennial guarantees)

Divestiture of Sithe {Dacember 2000}

Spectfic guarantees capped at $460 milhon [environmental commutments, of which -
potential liabilities related to contarmination nsks)

Other contingent liabilities

012)

__Cumulated amount of 811 mithion icompared to €7 million as of December 31, 2014)

Merger of Cyfra+ and "n* plar (mber

Reciprocal guarantees m favor of TVN, not implemented and expired on July, 1, 2015. 2015
- PLN 1 billion in the event of a breach of any representation or warranty or covenants,

- PLN 300 milhon n the event of a breach of specific represantation or warranty, and

- PLN 145 milkion related to Neowiston's unutilized tax losses carried forward

Acquisition of 40% of N-Vision {November 2012}

Guarantees made by |7| capped at approximately’
- €28 million for general guarantees, expired on May 30, 2014, and 2014
- £277 millon for specific guarantees (including tax matters expining in 2016, freg and -
full ownership of shares sold, authonzations/approvals for the exercise of the
activity}

(e}

Acquisition of Bolloré Group’s channels
{September 2012)

Guarantees capped at €120 miflicn 2617

Acquisition of EMI Recorded Music (September
M2

- Commitments relating to full pension obligations in the United Kingdom assumed by
Citi, and

- Guarantees relating to losses stemming from taxes and hitigatton tlaims, n particular
those related to pensien obligations i the United Kingdom

Acqwsition of Kinowelt [Apnl 2008)

Specific guarantees, notably on film nghts granted by the sellers

Dwestrture of NC Numericable {March 2005}

Dwestiture of Xfera {2003

€151 million counter-guaranteed by Orange, expired as of December 31, 2014, ) . 014
Guarantees amount to €71 rillion .

QOther contingent assets

Cumulated amount of €30 milhon {compared to €86 mulion as of December 31, 2014)
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the contingent assets and liabilities described above.

a The main terms of the Maroc Telecom group sale were as follows.

« Vivendi provided certain customary representations and warranties to Etisalat relating to SPT (the holding company of Maroc
Telecom group), Maroc Telecom and its subsidiaries. Vivendi also granted a number of specific guarantees;

« the amount of compensation payable by Vivend: in respect of indemnifiable losses incurred by Maroc Telecom or one of its
subsidiaries was determined in proportion to the percentage of ownership held indirectly by Vivendi in the relevant company on the
closing date (i.e., 53% for Maroc Telecom);

o Vivendi's overall obligation to indemnify was capped at 50% of the initial sale price, with such threshold increased to 100% in
respect of claims related to SPT;

* the commitments to indemnify provided by Vivendi under these guarantees, other than those in respect of taxes and SPT, will remain
in effect for a 24-month time peried following completion of the transaction (May 2016). Claims for tax-related indemnities must be
made by January 15, 2018 The indemnity in respect of SPT remains in effect until the end of a four-year period following the closing
(May 14, 2018}, and

s to guarantee the payment of any specific indemnity amounts referenced above, Vivendi delivered a bank guarantee with an
expiration date of February 15, 2018, to Etisalat in the amount of €247 million. On July 8, 2014, Vivendi received a discharge of this
guarantee for the amount of €229 million,

Vivendi has agreed to counter-guarantee SFR for any amount that could be claimed by Etisalat or any third party other than Etisalat in

relation to the sale of its interest in Maroc Telecom:

s with respect to the sale agreement entered into with Etisalat, this commitment will expire upen termination of Etisalat's right to
make a claim against Vivendi and SFR, i.e.. May 14, 2018; and

« this commitment, which alsc covers any amount that SFR may be required to pay to any third-party other than Etisalat, will expire in
the absence of any request from Numericable Group within the applicable statutes of limitations

b As part of the sate of 88% of Vivendi's interest in Activision Blizzard, which was completed on October 11, 2013 {the "Closing Date™),
Vivendi, ASAC Il LP and Activision Blizzard gave certain reciprocal commitments customary for this type of transaction {representations,
warranties and covenants) Vivendi, ASAC Il LP, and Activision Blizzard undertook to indemnify each other against any losses stemming
from any breach of their respective commitments Such indemnification is unlimited as to time and amount.

In addition, Vivendi has agreed to indemnify Activision Biizzard with respect to any tax or other liabilities of Amber Holding Subsidiary
Co. (“Amber”), the Vivendi subsidiary acquired by Activision Blizzard, relating to periods preceding the Closing Date. Such
indemnification is untimited as to time and amount. Tax attributes {mainly net operating loss) held by Amber and assumed by Activision
Blizzard were estimated at more than $700 million, which represent a potential future tax benefit of approximately $245 million. Vivendi
agreed to indemmify Activision Blizzard, under certain circumstances, with respect to these tax attributes, subject to a cap of $200 million
limited to fiscal years ending on or prior to December 31, 2016

As a reminder, as part of the creation of Activision Bhizzard in July 2008, Activision and Vivend: entered into customary agreements for
this type of transaction, including tax sharing and indemnity agreements.

¢. On July 23, 2012, as part of the French Competition Authority's approval of the acquisition of the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels
(renamed D8 and D17, respectively), Vivendi and Canal+ Group gave certain commitments. These commitments provide for restrictions on
the acquisition of rights for American movies and television series from certain American studios and for French movies, the separate
negotiation of certain rights for pay-TV and free-to-air movies and television series, limitations on the acquisition by D8 and D17 of
French catalog movies from Studiocanal, and the transfer of rights to broadcast major sports events on free-to-air channels through a
competitive bidding process. These commitments are made for a five-year period and are renewable once if the French Competition
Authority, after having performed a competition analysis, deems it necessary. In addition, on September 18, 2012, the French
Broadcasting Authority { Conseil Supérieur de I'Audiovisuel) approved the acquisition of these channels, subject to certain commitments
relating to broadcasting, investment obhigations and transfer rights.
On December 23, 2013, the French Counci! of State annulled, with a delayed effect as from July 1, 2014, the French Competition
Authority’s approval of the aequisition of the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels (renamed D8 and D17, respectively), which had been
approved on July 23, 2012. On January 15, 2014, Vivendi and Canak+ Group submitted a new notification to the French Competition
Autharity. On April 2, 2014, the French Competition Authority reapproved the transaction, subject to compliance with commitments given
by Vivendi and Canal+ Group. These commitments are similar to the ones contained in the previous 2012 authorization except for an
additional commitment relating to the acquisition of broadcasting rights covering second and third exhibition windows for French films.
All commitments are binding for a period of five years starting July 23, 2012. In 2017, the French Competition Autharity will have the
oppartunity to request a renewal of these commitments for the same duration, if deemed necessary, after a new competitive analysis.

d. On August 30, 2006, the merger between TPS and the Canal+ Group was authorized, in accordance with the merger control regufations,
pursuant to a decision of the French Minister of Economy, Finance and Industry, subject to Vivendi and Canal+ Group complying with
certain undertakings for a maximum period of six years, with the exception of those commitments concerning the availability of channels
and V0D, which could not exceed five years.
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{On October 28, 2009, the French Competition Authority opened an enquiry in respect of the implementation of certain undertakings given
by Canal+ Group in connection with the merger of Canalsatellite and TPS
On December 21, 2012, the French Counceil of State rejected Vivendi and Canal + Group's filed motions requesting the annulment of the
French Competition Authority's decisions of September 20, 2011 and July 23, 2012. Under the first motion, the €30 milion fine imposed
on Canal+ Group was reduced to €27 million. Under the second motion, the transaction was once again cleared, subject to compliance
with 33 injunctions.
Canal+ Group has implemented a number of these injunctions, some since July 23, 2012 and others since October 23, 2012, The
injunctions mainly focus on:
«  Acquisition of movie nghts;
- by limiting the duration of output deals with American studios to three years, requiring separate agreements for different
types of nghts {e.q., first pay-TV window, second pay-TV window, series) and prohibiting output deals fer French films; and
- by the Canal+ Group divesting its interest in Orange Cinema Series — O0CS SNC or by adopting measures limiting its influence
over (range Cinema Series — 0CS SNC. On February 4, 2013, at the request of Multithématiques and to comply with the
injunction ordered by the French Competition Authority on July 23, 2012, the members of Orange Cinema Series - 0CS SNC's
Board of Directors resigned from their positions. As a result, Multithématiques appointed by letter with an effective date of
February 4, 2013, two independent representatives with no affiliation to Multithématiques to the Board cf Directors of
Orange Cinema Series - OCS SNC.
s  Distribution of pay-TV special-interest channels;
- by the distribution of @ minimum number of independent channels, the distribution of any channel holding premium nghts,
and by drafting a mode! distribution deal relating to independent channels included in the Canalsat offer;
- Dby the obligation to promote, in a transparent and separate manner, the distribution of exclusive independent channels on
each owned platform serving more than 500,000 subscribers; and
- by making alt its own movie channels distributed by Canal+ Group (Ciné+ channels) available to third-party distnbutors
{unburdling).
e \Video-on-demand {V0D) and subscription video-on-demand {SVOD):
- by separating contracts entered into for the purchase of VOD and SVOD rights on a non-exclusive basis, and not cornbining
them with rights purchased for linear distribution on pay-TV;
by offering Studiocanal's VOD and SVOD rights to any interested operator; and
- by forbdding exclusive distribution deals for the benefit of Canal+ Group’s VOD and SVOD offers on Internet Service
Providers platforms.
These injunctions are imposed for & period of five years and are renewable once. At the end of the five-year period, the French
Competition Authority will review the competition situation to determine whether the injunctions shouid be kept in place. If market
conditions have changed significantly, Canal+ Group will be able to request that these injunctions be lifted or partially or totally revised.
An independent trustee, proposed by Canal+ Group and approved by the French Competition Authority on Septernber 25, 2012, will be
responsible for monitoring the implementation of the injunctions.

e. In connection with the sale of real estate assets in June 2002 to Nexity, Vivendi granted two autonomous first demand guarantees, ong
for €40 million and one for €110 million, to several subsidiaries of Nexity {SAS Nexim 1 to 6). The guarantees are effective until June 30,
2017,

Several guarantees given during prior years in cennection with asset acquisitions or disposals have expired. However, the time periods or
statute of imitations of certain guarantaes relating, among other things, to employees, environment and tax liabilities, in consideration of
share ownarship, or given notably in connection with the winding-up of certain businesses or the dissolution of entities are still in effect. To
the best of Vivendi's knowledge, no material claims for indemnification against such liabilities have been made to date.

In addition, Vivendi regularly delivers, at the settlement of disputes and litigations, commitments for damages to third parties, which are
typical in such transactions.

225 Shareholders’ agreements

Under existing shareholders’ oF investors” agreements {primanly those refating to nc+), Vivendi holds certain rights (e.g., pre-emptive rnghts
and priority rights) that give it control over the capital structure of consolidated companies that are partially owned by minority shareholders.
Conversely, Vivendi has granted simifar rights to these other shareholders in the event that it sefls its interests to third parties.

In addition, pursuant to other shareholders’ agreements or the bylaws of other consolidated entities, eguity affiliates or unconsolidated interests,
Vivendr or its subsidiaries have given or received certain rights (pre-emptive and other rights] entitling them ta maintain their rights as shareholder
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Strategic partnership among Canal+ Group, iTl, and TVN

The key liquidity rights provided at the level of nc+ under the strategic partnership formed in November 2012 in relation to television services
in Poland are as follows:

¢ Canal+ Group has a call option to acquire TVN's 32% interest in nc+ at market value, which is exercisable during the two
three-month periods beginning November 30, 2015 and November 30, 2016, and

s in the event that Canal+ Group does not exercise its call option, TVN has liquidity rights in the form of an initial public offering of
its interest in ne+.

In addition, in compliance with Articie L. Z25-100-3 of the French Commercial Code, it is stated that certain rights and obligations of Vivendi
under shareholders’ agreements {nc+) may be amended or terminated in the event of a change in control of Vivendi or a tender offer for
Vivendi's shares. These shareholders’ agreements are subject to confidentiality provisions.

226 Collaterals and pledges

As of December 31, 2015 and 2074, no asset in Vivendi's Statement of Financial Position was subject to a pledge or mertgage for the benefit
of third parties.

Note 23 Litigation

in the normal course of its business, Vivendi 15 subject to various lawsuits, arbitrations and govemmental, administrative or other proceedings
{collectively referred to herein as "Legal Proceedings”).

The costs which may result frem these Legal Proceedings are only recognized as provisions when they are likely to be incurred and when the
obligation can reasonably be quantified or estimated, in which case, the amount of the provision represents Vivendi's best estimate of the
nsk, provided that Vivendi may, at any time, reassess such risk if events occur during such proceedings As of December 31, 2015, provisicns
recorded by Vivendi for all claims and litigations amounted to €1,222 million, compared to €1,206 million as of December 31, 2014 (please
refer to Note 16).

To the company's knowledge, there are no Legal Proceedings or any facts of an exceptional nature {including any pending or threatened
proceedings in which it is a defendant), which may have or have had in the previous 12 months a significant effect on the company and on its
group’s financial position, profit, business and property, other than those described hersin.

The status of proceedings disclosed hereunder is described as of February 10, 2018, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved
the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Securities Class Action in the United States

Since July 18, 2002, sixteen claims have been filed against Vivendi and Messrs. Jean-Marie Messier and Guillaume Hannezo in the United
States District Court for the Southem District of New York and in the United States District Court for the Central District of California. On
September 30, 2002, the New York court decided to consolidate these claims under its jurisdiction inte a single action entitled /n re Vivendi
Universal S.A. Securities Litigation.

The plaintiffs allege that, between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, the defendants violated certain provisions of the US Securities Act
of 1933 and US Securities Exchange Act of 1934, particularly with regard to financial communications. On January 7, 2003, the plaintiffs filed
a consolidated class action suit that may benefit potential groups of shareholders.

{n March 22, 2007, the Court decided, concerning the procedure for certification of the potential claimants as a class {“class certification”),
that persons from the United States, France, England and the Netherlands whe purchased or acquired shares or American Depositary
Receipts (ADRs) of Vivendi (formerly Vivendi Universal SA} between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, could be included in the class.

Following the class certification decision of March 22, 2007, a number of individual cases were filed against Vivendi on the same grounds as
the class action. On December 14, 2007, the judge issued an order consolidating the individual actions with the securities class action for
purpeses of discovery. On March 2, 2009, the Court deconsolidated the Liberty Media action from the class action. On August 12, 2009, the
Court 1ssued an order deconsolidating the individual actions from the class action,

On January 29, 2010, the jury returned its verdict t found that 57 statements made by Vivendi between October 30, 2000 and August 14,
2002, were matenally false or misteading and were made in violation of Section 10{b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Plaintiffs had
alleged that those statements were faise and misleading because they faiied to disclose the existence of an alleged “liquidity risk” which
reached its peak in December 2001. However, the jury concluded that neither Mr Jean-Marie Messier nor Mr. Guillaume Hannezo were
liable for the alleged misstatements. As part of its verdict, the jury found that the price of Vivendi's shares was artificially inflated on each
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day of the class period in an amount between €0.15 and €11.00 per ordinary share and USD0.13 and USD10.00 per ADR, depending on the
date of purchase of each ordinary share or ADR. Those figures represent approximately half the amounts sought by the plaintiffs in the class
action. The jury also concluded that the inflation of the Vivendi share price fell to zero in the three weeks following the September 1, 2001,
tragedy, as well as on stock exchange holidays on the Faris or New York markets (12 days) during the class penod.

On June 24, 2010, the US Supreme Court, in a very clear statement, ruled, in the Morrison v. National Australia Bank case, that American
securities law only applies 1o “the purchase or sale of a security listed on an American stock exchange”, and to "the purchase or sale of any
other security in the United States.”

In a decision dated February 17, 2011 and issued on February 22, 2011, the Court, in applying the “Morrison” decisien, confirmed Vivendi's
position by dismissing the claims of all purchasers of Vivendi's ordinary shares on the Paris stock exchange and limited the case to claims of
French, American, British and Dutch purchasers of Vivendi's ADRs on the New York Stock Exchange. The Court denied Vivendi's post-trial
motions challenging the jury’s verdict. The Court also declined to enter a final judgment, as had been requested by the plaintiffs, saying that
to da so would be premature and that the process of examining individual shareholder claims must take place before a final judgment could
be issved. On March 8, 2011, the plaintiffs filed a petition before the Second Circuit Court of Appeals seeking to appeal the decision
rendered on February 17, 2011, On July 20, 2011, the Court of Appeals denied the petition and dismissed the claim of purchasers who
acquired their shares on the Paris stock exchange.

In a dlecision dated January 27, 2012 and issued on February 1, 2012, the Court, in applying the Morrison deeision, also dismissed the claims
of the individual plaintiffs who purchased ordinary shares of the company on the Paris stock exchange.

On July 5, 2012, the Court denied a request by the plaintiffs to expand the class to nationalities other than those covered by the certification
decision dated March 22, 2007

The claims process commenced on December 10, 2012, with the sending of a notice to shareholders who may be part of the class. Recipients
of the notice had until August 7, 2013 to file a claim form and submit documentation evidencing the validity of their claim These claims are
currently being processed and verified by an independent claims administrator and by the parties. Vivendi has the right to challenge the
merits of these claims. On November 10, 2014, at Vivendi's initiative, the parties filed a mutually agreed upon proposed order requesting the
Court to enter a partial final judgment on the January 28, 2010 jury verdict, covering a substantial portion of the claims. Certain large claims
were excluded from this proposed judgment order as Vivendi continues to analyze whether to challenge the validity of those claims. On
December 23, 2014, the Court entered the partial judgment. On August 11, 2015, the Court issued a decision whereby it excluded the claims
filed by Southeastern Asset Management (SAM}, cencluding that Vivend: proved that SAM did not make investment decisions based on
Vivendi's supposedly fraudulent statements {“lack of reliance ).

On January 21, 2015, Vivendi filed its Notice of Appeal with the Second Circuit Court of Appeals. This appeal will be heard together with
Vivendi's appeal in the Liberty Media case in the first quarter of 2016.

Vivendi believes that it has solid grounds for an appeal Vivendi intends to challenge, among other issues, the plaintiffs’ theories of
causation and damages and, more generally, certain decisions made by the judge during the conduct of the trial. Several aspects of the
verdict wili aiso be challenged.

On the basis of the verdict rendered on January 29, 2010, and following an assessment of the matters set forth above, together with support
from studies conducted by companies specializing in the calculation of class action damages and in accordance with the accounting
principles described in Notes 1.3.1 {Use of Estimates) and 1.3.8 {Provisions}. Vivendi made & provision on December 31, 2009, in an amount
of €550 million in respect of the damages that Vivendi might have to pay to plaintiffs. Vivend: re-examined the amount of the raserve related
to the Securities class action litigation in the United States, given the decision of the District Court for the Southem District of New York on
February 17, 2011, which foliowed the US Supreme Court’s decision on June 24, 2010 in the Morrison case. Using the same methodology
and the same valuation experts as in 2009, Vivendi re-examined the amount of the reserve and set it at €100 million as of December 31,
2010, in respect of the damages, if any, that Vivendi might have to pay solely to sharsholders who have purchased ADRs in the United
States. Consequently, as of December 31, 2010, Vivendi recognized a €450 million reversal of reserve.

Vivendi considers that this provision and the assumptions on which it is based may require further amendment as the proceedings progress
and, consequently, the amount of damages that Vivendi might have to pay to the plaintiffs could differ from the current estmate As is
permitted by current accounting standards, no details are given of the assumptions on which this estimate is based, because their disclosure
at this stage of the proceedings could be prejudicial to Vivend..
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Complaint of Liberty Media Corporation

On March 28, 2003, Liberty Media Corporation and certain of its affiliates filed suit against Vivendi and Messrs. Jean-Marie Messier and
Gurilaume Hanneza in the District Court for the Southern District of New York for claims arising out of the agreement entered into by Vivendi
and Liberty Media relating to the formation of Vivendi Universal Entertainment in May 2002. The plaintiffs allege that the defendants
violated certain provisions of the US Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and breached certain contractual representations and wamanties. The
case had been consolidated with the securities ¢lass action for pre-trial purposes but was subsequently deconsolidated on March 2, 2009,
The judge granted Liberty Media’s request that they be permitted to avail themselves of the verdict rendered by the securities class action
jury with respect to Vivendi's lability {theory of “collateral estoppel”).

The Liberty Media jury returned its verdict on June 25, 2012. It found Vivendi liable to Liberty Media for making certain false or misleading
statements and for breaching several representations and warranties contained in the parties’ agreement and awarded damages to Liberty
Media in the amount of €765 million Vivendi filed certain post-trial motions challenging the jury’s verdict, including motions requesting that
the Court set aside the jury's verdict for lack of evidence and order a new trial.

On January 9, 2013, the Court confirmed the jury’s verdict. It also awarded Liberty Media pre-judgment interest accruing from December 16,
2001until the date of the entry of judgment, using the average rate of return on one-year US Treasury bills On January 17, 2013, the Court
entered a final judgment in the total amount of €945 million, inciuding pre-judgment interest, but stayed its execution while it considered
two pending post-trial motions, which were denied on February 12, 2013.

On February 15, 2013, Vivendi filed with the Court a Notice of Appeal against the judgment awarded, for which it believes it has strong
arguments. On March 13, 2013, Vivendi filed a motion in the Second Circuit Court of Appeals requesting that the Court stay the Liberty
Media appeal until the Class Action judgment 1s entered so that the two appeals can be heard simultaneously. On April 4, 2013, the Court of
Appeals issued an Order granting Vivendi's mation, agreeing to hear the Liberty Media case together with the Class Action Vivend filed its
Notice of Appeal in the Class Action on January 21, 2015; these two cases will be heard together by the Court of Appeals in the first quarter
of 2016.

On the basis of the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012, and the entry of the final judgment by the Court, Vivend: mantained as of
December 31, 2015, the provision in the amount of €945 million recorded as of December 31, 2012.

Trial of Vivendi's Former Officers in Paris

In October 2002, the financial department of the Paris Public Prosecutor's office fParquet de Paris) launched an investigation into the
publication of allegedly false or misleading information regarding the financial situation and forecasts of the company and the publication of
allegedly untrue or inaccurate financial statements for the fiscal years 2000 and 2001. Additional charges were brought in this investigation
relating to purchases by the company of its own shares between September 1, 2001 and December 31, 2001. Vivendi joined the proceedings
as a civil party.

The trial took place from June 2 to June 25, 2010, before the 11th Chamber of the Pans Tribunal of First Instance {Tribunal de Grande
Instance de Paris), following which the Public Prosecutor asked the Court to drop the charges against the defendants. On January 21, 2011,
the Court rendered its judgment, in which it confirmed the previous recognition of Vivendi as a civil party. Messrs. Jean Marie Messier,
Guillaume Hannezo, Edgar Bronfman Jr. and Eric Licoys received suspended sentences and fines. Messrs. Jean Marie Messier and
Guillaume Hannezo were also ordered to pay damages to shareholders who are entitled to reparation as civil parties. The former Vivendi
Officers as well as some civil parties appealed the decision. The appeal proceedings were held from October 28 to November 26, 2013,
before the Paris Court of Appeal. The Public Prosecutor requested a 20-month suspended prison sentence and a fine of €150,000 for
Mr. Jean-Marie Messier for misuse of corporate assets and dissemination of false or misleading information, a 10-month suspended prison
sentence and a fine of €850,000 for Mr. Guillaume Hannezo for insider trading, and a 10-month suspended prison sentence and a fine of
£€5 million for Mr Edgar Bronfman Jr. for insider trading. On May 19, 2014, the Paris Court of Appeal rendered its judgment. Regarding the
acts determined by the lower criminal court to constitute the dissemination of false or misleading information, the Court held that these acts
did not meet the criteria for such an offense The Court upheld the conviction against Jean-Marie Messier for misuse of corporate assets and
he received a 10-month suspended sentence and a €50,000 fine. The Court alse upheld the convictions against Messrs. Hannezo and
Bronfman for insider trading and they received fines in the amount of €850,000 {of which €425,000 is suspended) and €5 million (of which
€2 5 million is suspended), respectively. Finally, the Court set aside the lower court’s order for the payment of damages (€10 per share} to
certain shareholders and former shareholders of Vivend: (the “civil action”). With regard to Vivendi, the Court upheld the validity of its status
as a civil party to the proceedings, exonerated 1t from any responsibility and voided the demand for damages brought against it by certain
shareholders or former shareholders. An appeal has been filed with the French Supreme Court {Cour de Cassation) by certain of the
defendants and some civil parties.
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LBBW et al. against Vivendi

On March 4, 2011, 26 institutional investars frem Germany, Canada, Luxemburg, lreland, Italy, Sweden, Belgium and Austria filed a
complaint against Vivendi with the Paris Commercial Court seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of four
financial communications issued by Vivend: in October and December 2000, September 2001 and April 2002. Subsequently, on April 5 and
Apri! 23, 2012, two similar complaints were filed against Vivendi: the first one by a US pension fund, the Public Emplayee Retirement System
of ldaho, and the other by six German and British institutional investors. Lastly, on August 8, 2012, the British Columbia investment
Management Corporation also filed a complaint against Vivendi based on the same grounds. On Janvary 7, 2015, the Paris Commercial Court
appointed a “third party” responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to
evidence their alleged holding of the securities.

California State Teachers Retirement System et al. against Vivendi and Jean-Marie Messier

On April 27, 2012, 67 institutional foreign investors filed a complaint against Vivendi and Jean-Marie Messier before the Paris Commercial
Court seeking damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of the financial communications made by Vivendi and its former CEQ,
between 2000 and 2002. On June 7 and September & and §, 2012, 26 new plantiffs joined these proceedings. in November 2012 and March
2014, 17 plaintiffs withdrew from these proceedings. On January 7, 2015, the Commescial Court of Paris appointed a “third party”
responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to evidence their alleged holding
of the securities.

Actions against Activision Blizzard, Inc., its Board of Directors, and Vivendi

In August 2013, a derivative action was initiated in the Los Angeles Superior Court by an individual shareholder against Activision Blizzard,
inc. {“Activision Blizzard” or the “Company™), all of the members of its Board of Directors and against Vivendi, The plaintiff, Todd Miller,
alleges that Activision Blizzard's Board of Directors and Vivendi breached their fiduciary duties by approving the divestment of Vivendi's
share ownership in the Company. The plaintiff claims that the transaction would not only be disadvantageous to Activision Blizzard but that it
would also confer a disproportionate advantage to a group of investors led by Robert Kotick and Brian Kelly, the Company's Chief Executive
Qfficer and Co-Chairman of the Board, respectively, and that those breaches of fiducfary duty were aided and abetted by Vivendi.

On September 11, 2013, a second derivative action based on essentially the same allegations was initiated in the Delaware Court of
Chancery by another minority shareholder of Activision Blizzard, Anthony Pacchia.

On the same day, another minority sharehalder, Douglas Hayes, initiated a similar action and also requested that the closing of the sale
transaction be enjoined pending approval of the transaction by Activision Blizzard's shareholders. On September 18, 2013, the Delaware
Court of Chancery granted the motion enjoining the closing of the transaction. However, on October 10, 2013, the Delaware Supreme Court
overturned this decision, allowing for the completion of the transaction. On November 2, 2013, the Delaware Court of Chancery consolidated
the Pacchia and Hayes actions into a single action entitled /n Re Activision Blizzard Inc. Securities Litigation.

On March 14, 2014, a similar new action was initiated in the Delaware Court of Chancery by a minority shareholder, Mark Benston. This
action was consolidated into the /n Re Activision Blizzard Inc. Securities Litigation proceeding,

in November 2014, the parties reached agreement on a global settlemant which would put an end to this dispute. Gn December 19, 2014, the
settiement agreement executed between the parties was filed with the Court for formal approval and then the shareholder notification
process cammenced. On May 20, 2015, the Court approved the settlement agreement, which terminated this litigation. As a result of this
settiement, on June 26, 2015, the Los Angeies Superior Court entered an order dismissing the aforementioned action brought by Todd Miller,

Calling of the guarantee issued by Anjou Patrimoine to Unibail

Unibail has called its indemnification guarantee issued by Anjou Patrimoine {a former subsidiary of Vivendi} in connection with the sale of
the CNIT offices in 1999. On July 3, 2007, the High Court of Nanterre [ Tribunal de grande instance de Nanterre) ordered Anjou Patrimoine to
indemnify Unibail for a tax liability arising from the creation of offices and rejected all other claims. On October 31, 2008, the Versailles Court
of Appeal reversed the High Court's ruling, denied all of Unibail’s claims and ordered it to reimburse Anjou Patrimoine for all sums paid under
the first decisian. On November 27, 2008, Unibai! appealed this decision. On September 11, 2013, the French Supreme Court reversed the
October 31, 2008 ruling of the Versailles Court of Appeal and remanded the case to the Paris Court of Appeal The hearing was held on
Agril 2, 2015. The Paris Court of Appea! rendered its decision on June 4, 2015 It ordered Anjou Patrimoine to pay approximately €5 million
for buitding code reiated improvements. However, it denied all of Unibail’s other ¢laims. Unibail filed an appeal against the judgment of the
Paris Court of Appeal, which was notified to Anjou Patrimgine on September 14, 2015
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Vivendi Deutschland against FIG

Further to a claim filed by CGIS BIM (a former subsidiary of Vivendi) against FIG to obtain the release of part of a payment remaining due
pursuant to a buildings sale contract, FIG obtained, on May 29, 2008, the annulment of the sale foliowing a judgment of the Berlin Court of
Appeal, which overruled 2 judgment rendered by the Berlin High Court. CGIS BIM was ordered to repurchase the buildings and to pay
damages. Vivendi defivered a guarantee so as to pursue settlement negotiations. As no settlement was reached, on September 3, 2008,
CGIS BIM challenged the validity of the reasoning of the judgment. On April 23, 2009, the Regional Berlin Court issued a decision setting
aside the judgment of the Berlin Court of Appeal dated May 29, 2008. On June 12, 2008, FIG appealed that decision. On December 18, 2010,
the Beriin Court of Appeal rejected FIG's appeal and confirmed the decision of the Regional Berlin Court in April 2008, which decided in
CGISBiM's favor and confirmed the invalidity of the reasoning of the judgment and therefore overruled the order for CGIS BiM to repurchase
the building and pay damages and interest. Thig decision is now final. In parallel, FIG filed a second claim for additional damages in the
Berlin Regional Court which was served on CGIS BIM on March 3, 2009. On June 19, 2013, the Berlin Regional Court ordered CGIS BIM to
pay FIG the sum of €3.9 million together with iterest from February 27, 2009. CGIS BIM has appealed this decision.

Telefonica against Vivendi in Brazil

On May 2, 2011, TELESP {now Telefonica Brazil), filed a claim against Vivend: before the Civil Court of S8o Paulo (3* Vara Civel do foro
Central da Comarca da Capital do Estado de S50 Pauto) The company 1s seeking damages for having been biocked from acguiring controt of
GVT and damages in the amount of 15 million Brazilian reals {(currently approximately €4.7 million} corresponding to the expenses incurred by
Telefonica Brazil in connection with its offer for GVT. At the beginning of September 2011, Vivendi filed an cbjection to jurisdiction,
challenging the junisdiction of the courts of Sdo Paulo to hear a case involving parties from Curitiba. This objection was dismissed on
February 14, 2012, which was confirmed on April 4, 2012 by the Court of Appeal.

On April 30, 2013, the Court dismissed Telefonica’s claim for lack of sufficient and concrete evidence of Vivendi's responsibility for
Telefonica's falling to acquire GVT. The Court notably highlighted the inherently nsky nature of operations in the financial markets, of which
Telefonica must have been aware. Moreover, the Court dismissed Vivendi’s counterclaim for compensation for the damage it suffered as a
result of the defamatory campaign carmed out against it by Telefonica. On May 28, 2013, Telefonica appealed the Court’s decision to the
5t Chamber of Private Law of the Court of Justice of the State of S4o Paulo.

On September 18, 2014, within the framework of agreements entered into betwsen Vivend and Telefonica concerning the sale of GVT, the
parties agreed to end this dispute without payment to gither side. On May 28, 2015, the date of the completion of the sale of GVT by Vivendi,
the parties entered into a settlement agreement which terminated this litigation.

Dynamo against Vivendi

On August 24, 2011, the Dynamo investment funds, former shareholders of GVT, filed a complaint against Vivendi before the Bovespa
Arbitration Chamber {S&o Paulo stock exchange), seeking compensation amounting to the difference between the value of the shares sold by
them before Vivend's acquisition of GVT and BRL70 00 per share. According to Dynamo, the provision in GVT's bylaws providing for an
increase in the per share purchase price when the 15% threshold is crossed {the “poison pill provision”) should allegedly have applied to the
acquisition by Vivendi. Vivendi, noting, first, that Dynamo had sold the vast majority of its stake in GVT before November 13, 2009 (the date
on which Vivendi took control of GVT) and, second, that this poison pill provision was waived by a GVT General Shareholders’ Meeting in the
event of an acquisition by Vivendi or Telefonica, denies all of Dynamo's allegations. The arbitral tribunal has been constituted and a hearing
before the Bovespa Arbitration Chamber is expected to be scheduled to discuss the merits of the case. In parailel, on February 6, 2013,
Dynamo filed an application with the 21st Federal Court of the capital of the State of Rio de Janeiro to compel CVM and Bovespa to provide
the arbitral tribunal with confidential information retating to the acquisition of GVT by Vivendi. On December 17, 2014, the Rio de Janeiro
Court of Appeal autherized the provision of the abovementioned information solely to the arbitral tribunal, denying Dynamo access to the
information. Notwithstanding the appeals filed by Vivendi, the confidential information was provided by CVM and Bovespa to the arbitral
tribunal. On December 1, 2015, Dynamo filed a petition requesting access to this information. Such request is waiting decision by the arbitral
tribunal,

Hedging-Griffo against Vivendi

On September 4, 2012, the Hedging-Griffo funds filed a complaint against Vivendi before the Bovespa Arbitration Chamber (S3o Paulo Stock
Exchange} seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred due to the conditions under which Vivendi completed the acquisition
of GVT in 2609. On December 16, 2013, the arbitral tribunal was constituted and the plaintiffs submitted their initial briefs. The Hedging-
Griffo funds demanded compensation for the difference between the price at which they sold their GVT shares on the market and 125% of
the price paid by Vivendi in connection with the tender offer for the GVT shares, pursuant to the “poison pill” provision in GVT's bylaws.
Vivendi believes that the decision taken by the Hedging-Griffo funds to sell their GVT shares before the end of the stock market battle that
opposed Vivendi against Telefonica was their own decision made in the context of their management of these funds and can in no way be
attributable to Vivendi. It also denies any application of the bylaw prowvision mentioned above, as it was waived by a GVT General
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Sharehotders’ Meeting in the event of an acquisition by Vivendi or Telefonica. On July 23, 2015, the parties entered into a settloment
agreement which terminated this fitigation.

Parabole Réunion

In July 2007, the group Parabole Réunion filed a legal action before the Paris Tribunal of First Instance following the termination of its rights
to exclusively distribute the TPS channels in Reunion Island, Mayotte, Madagascar and Mauritius, and the degradation of the channels made
available to it. Pursuant to a decision dated September 18, 2007, Canak Group was prohibited, under threat of a fine, from allowing the
broadcast by third parties of these channels or replacement channels that have substituted these chennels and was ordered to replace the
TPS Foot channel in the event it 1s dropped. Canal+ Group appealed this decision. In a ruting dated June 18, 2008, the Paris Court of Appeal
partially reversed the judgment and stated that these replacement channels were not to be granted exclusively if the channels were made
available to third parties prior to the merger with TPS. Parabole Réunion was unsuccessful in its claims concerning the content of the
channels in question. On September 19, 2008, Parabole Réunion appealed to the French Supreme Court On November 10, 2009, the French
Supreme Court dismissed the appeal brought by Parabole Réunion.

On September 24, 2012, Parabale Réunion filed a claim against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the enforcement
magistrate of the Court of First instance of Nanterre seeking enforcement of the fine imposed by the Paris Tribunal of First instance and
confirmed by the Court of Appeal {a request for such enforcement having been previously rejected by the enforcement magistrate of
Nanterre, the Paris Court of Appeal and the French Supreme Court) On November B, 2012, Parabole Réunion expanded its claim to cover the
TPS Star, Cinecinema Classic, Cult and Star channels. On April 9, 2013, the enforcement magistrate dismissed in part Parabole Réunion’s
claim and declered the rest inadmissible. He took care to recall that Canal+ Group had no legal obligation with respect to the content or the
maintaining of programming on channels made available to Parabole Réunion and held, after noting that production of the TPS Foot channel
had not stopped, that there was no need to replace this channel. Parabate Réunion filed a first appeal agamst this judgment on April 11,
2013. On May 22, 2014, the Versailles Court of Appeal declared this appeal inadmissible due to Parabole Réunion’s lack of representative
capacity. On February 14, 2014, Parabole Réunion filed an appeal on points of law and filed a second appeal against the April 9, 2013
decision. On April 9, 2015, the French Supreme Court gverturned the May 22, 2014 decision of the Versailles Court of Appeal in which the
appeal filed by Parabole Réunion on Aprit 11, 2013 was declared inadmissible. The case was remanded to the Paris Court of Appeal, brought
before the Court by Parabole Réunion on April 23, 2015. In paraliel, the second appeal filed on February 14, 2014 by Parabale Réunien is
currently pending before the Versailtes Court of Appeal, following denial by the French Supreme Court on Szptember 18, 2014, of the motion
seeking the recusal of the 16th chamber of the Versailles Gourt of Appeal filed by Parabole Réunion.

At the same time, on August 11, 2009, Parabole Réunion fited a complaint against Canal+ Group before the Paris Tribunal of First instance,
requesting that the Tribuna! order Canal+ Group to make available a channel with a level of attractiveness similar to that of TPS Foot in 2006
and to pay damages. On April 26, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a complaint against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution
before the Paris Tribunal of First Instance asking the Tribunal te acknowledge the failure of the companies of the group to fulfiil their
contractual obligations to Parabole Réunion and their commitments to the Ministry of Economy. These two actions have been consolidated
into a single action. On April 29, 2014, the Paris Tribunal of First Instance partially recognized the admissibitity of Parabole Réunion's claim
with respect to the pericd following June 19, 2008 and recognized the contractual liability of Canak Group due to the degradation of the
gquality of channels made available to Parabole Réunion, The Tribunal ordered an expert report on the damages suffered by Parabole Réunion,
rejecting the assessment produced by the latter. On November 14, 2014, Canal+ Group appsaled against the decision of the Paris Tribunal of
First Instance. The court appointed expert issued its report on December 18, 2015 and the case was argued before the Paris Court of Appeal
on January 28, 2016.

belN Sports against the National Rugby League and Canal+ Group

On March 11, 2014, belN Sports filed a complaint with the French Competition authority against Canal+ Group and the National Rugby
League, challenging the award to Canal+ Group of exclusive broadcasting rights to the “TOP 14" for the 2014-2015 to 2018-2019 seasons. On
Juty 30, 2014, the French Competition Authority imposed interim measures suspending Canal+ Group’s agreement with the Nationa! Rugby
League as from the 2015-2016 season and mandated that a new tender process be organized. Canal+ Group and the National Rugby League
appealed this decision before the Paris Court of Appeal.

On October 9, 2014, the Paris Court of Appeal dismissed the appeal of Canal+ Group and the National Rugby League and directed the
National Rugby League to complete a new tender process for rights to the “TOP 14" for the 2015-2016 season as well as the following
seasons by no later than March 31, 2015. On October 30, 2014, Canal+ Group appealed against this decision. On March 10, 2015, Canal¢
Group withdrew its appeal and an order of discontinuance was issued on April 9, 2015, by the President of the Commercial Chamber of the
Paris Court of Appeal.
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Action brought by the French Competition Authority regarding Practices in the Pay-TV Sector

On January 9, 2009, further to its voluntary investigation and a complaint by Orange, the French Competition Authority sent Vivend and
Canal+ Group a notification of allegations It alleges that Canal+ Group has abused its dominant position in certain Pay-TV markets and that
Vivendi and Canal+ Group colluded with TF1 and MB, on the one hand, and with Lagardére, on the other Vivendi and Canal+ Group have
each denied these allegations.

On November 16, 2010, the French Competition Authority rendered a decision in which it dismissed the allegations of collusion, in respect of
all parties, and certain other allegations, in respect of Canal+ Group. The French Competition Authority requested further investigation
regarding fiber optic TV and catch-up TV, Canal+ Group's exclusive distribution rights on channels broadcast by the group and independent
channels as well as the extensian of exclusive rights on TF1, MB and Lagardére channels to fiber optic and catch-up TV. On October 30, 2013,
the French Competition Authority took over the investigation into these aspects of the case.

Canal+ Group against TF1, M6, and France Télévision

On December 9, 2013, Canal+ Group filed a complaint with the French Competition Authority agamst the practices of the TF1, M6 and France
Télévision groups in the French-language film market. Canal+ Group accused them of inserting pre-emption rights into co-production
contracts, in such a way as to discourage competition The French Competition Authority is examining the case

Canal+ Group against TF1, and TMC Régie

On June 12, 2013, Canai+ Group SA and Canal+ Régie filed a complaint with the French Competition Authority against the practices of TF
and TMC Régie in the television advertising market. Canal+ Group SA and Canal+ Régie accused them of cross-promotion, having a single
advertising division and refusing to promote the D8 channel during its launch. The French Competition Authority is examining the case.

Private Copying Levy Case

On February 5, 2014, a claim was filed with Court of First Instance of Nanterre by Copie France who is seeking compensation in respect of
external hard drives used in connection with the G5 set-top boxes. Copie France claims that the external drive used by Canal+ is “dedicated”
to the set-top box and therefore it should be treated as an integrated hard drive. Copie France therefore believes that the applicable amount
of the compensation should be higher. Copie France subseguently expanded its claim, asserting that the amount of compensation applicable
to the "multimedia hard drive® with 80 GB capacity should be alsc higher

Aston France against Canal+ Group

On September 25, 2014, Aston notified the French Competition Authority about Canal+ Group's decision to stop seliing its satellite
subscription called “cards only” {enabling the reception of Canal+/Canalsat programs on Canal Ready-labeled satellite decoders,
manufactured and distributed by third parties, including Aston). In parallel, on September 30, 2014, Aston filed a request for injunctive relief
against Canal+ Group before the Commercial Court of Paris, seeking a stay of the decision of the Canal+ Group to terminate the Canal Ready
partnership agreement and thus stop the marketing of satellite subscriptions called “cards only”. On October 17, 2014, the Paris Commercial
Court issued an order denying Aston’s requests. On November 4, 2014, Aston appealed this decision and, on January 15, 2015, the Paris
Court of Appeal, ruling in chambers, granted its requests and suspended the decision of Canal+ Group to stop selling its “cards only”
subscriptions until the French Competition Authority renders its decision on the merits of the case.

Pro D2

On July 8, 2015, Altice filed an application for interim measures and a referral on the merits with the French Competition Authority
concerning the practices of Canak+ Group, Eurosport and the National Rugby League (the “NRL") during the allocation of Pro D2 broadcast
rights Altice is challenging the way the broadcasting rights to French Pro D2 Rugby for the 2015/2016 to 2019/2020 seasons were
commercialized by the NRL during December 2014. The rights bidding process resulted in one portion of the rights being allocated to
Furosport and the other portion being allocated to Canak+ Group on Apnl 3, 2015, The French Competition Authonty 1s expected to rule on the
request for interim measures in the first quarter of 2016.

Thirel against Canal+ Group

On December 23, 2015, Thirel filed a complaint against Canal+ Group seeking enforcement of a computer services contract, or, in the
alternative, an order against Canal+ Group to pay damages.
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Complaints against Music Industry Majors in the United States

Several complaints have been filed before the Federal Courts in New York and California against Universal Music Group and the other music
industry majors for alleged anti-competitive practices in the context of sales of CDs and Internet music downloads. These complaints have
been consolidated before the Federal Court in New York. The motion to dismiss filed by the defendants was granted by the Federal Court on
October 9, 2008, but this decision was reversed by the Second Circuit Court of Appeals on January 13, 2010. The defendants filed a motion
for reheaning which was denied. They filed a petition with the US Supreme Court which was rejected on January 10, 2011, The discovery
pracess is underway.

Complaints against UMG regarding Royalties for Digital Downloads

Since 2011, as has been the case with other music industry majors, several purported class action complaints have been filed against UMG
by recording artists generaily seeking additional royalties for on line sales of music downloads and master ringtones. On April 14, 2015, a
global transaction terminating the litigation was entered into. This settlement transaction is expected to be formally approved by the Court in
the first quarter of 2016.

Capitol Records and EMI Music Publishing against MP3tunes

On November 9, 2007, Capitol Record and EMI Music Publishing filed a joint complaint against MP3tunes and its founder, Michael
Robertson, for copyright infringement on the sideload.com and mp3tunes com websites. The trial was held in March 2014, and, on March 19,
2014, the jury returned a verdict favorabie to EMI and Capital Records. It found the defendants liabie for knowingly allowing the unauthorized
content on the websites. On March 26, 2014, the jury awarded damages in the amount of USD41 million. On October 30, 2014 the Court
confirmed the verdict but entered judgment in the reduced amount of USD12.2 million, The defendants have appealed against the judgment.

Mireille Porte against Interscope Records, Inc., Stefani Germanotta and Universal Music France

On July 11, 2013, the artist Mireille Porte {AKA “Orlan”) filed a complaint against Interscope Records, Inc., Stefani Germanotta (AKA [ ady
Gaga") and Universal Music France with the Paris Tribunal of First Instance for the alleged copyright infringement of several of Orlan’s
artistic works.

James Clar against Rihanna Fenty, UMG Recordings, Inc. and Universal Music France

On June 13, 2014, the artist James Clar filed a complaint against Rihanna Fenty, UMG Recordings, Inc. and Universal Music France before
the Paris Tribunal of First Instance { Tribunal de Grande Instance de Farist for the alleged infringement of his work.

Reti Televisive Italiane {RTI) against Dailymotion

Since 2012, several legal actions have been filed by RTl against Dailymotion before the Civil Court of Reme Similar to claims it has made
against other major onlire video platforms, RTI is seeking damages for infringement of its neighboring rights {audiovisual production and
broadcasting rights}) and unfair competition as well as the removal of the contested content from the Dailymotion platform.
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Note 24 Major consolidated entities or entities accounted under equity method

As of December 31, 2015, approximately 520 entities were consolidated or accounted for using the equity method {compared to
approximately 540 entities as of December 31, 2014)

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Country Accounting Voting Ownership  Accounting Voting (hwnership
Note Method Interest Interest Method Intarest Interest
Vivendi S.A. France Parent company Parent company
Groupe Canal+ S.A. Franco 4 100% 100% [ 100% 100%
Société d’Edition de Canal Plus 25 France c 100% 160% [ 49% 49%
Multithématiques S.A $ France C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Canal+ Overseas SA S France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
D8 France C 100% 160% [ 100% 100%
Studiocanal S A. France G 100% 106% c 100% 100%
IT! Neovision Poland C 51% 51% C 51% 51%
VSTV (a) Vietnam ¢ 49% 49% ¢ 49% 43%
TVN 210 Poland na - - E 49% 2%
Universal Music Group, Inc. United States c 100% 100% 4 100% 100%
Universal Mustc Group Holdimgs, Ing United States c 100% 100% ¢ 100% 100%
UMG Recordings, Inc. United States C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Vevo 11 United States E 45% 49% E 48% 48%
SIG 104 France C 100% 100% ¢ 100% 100%
Universal Internationat Music B V Netherlands c 100% 100% ¢ 100% 100%
Universal Music Entertainment GmbH Germany C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Universal Music LLC Japan C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Unwversal Music France SA S France C 100% 100% ¢ 100% 100%
Universal Music Holdings bimited United Kingdom € 100% 100% € 100% 100%
EMI Group Worldwide Holding Ltd United Kingdom C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Vivendi Vitlage
See Tickets United Kingdom C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Digitick France C 100% 100% % 100% 100%
MyBestPro {formerly Wengo) France c 100% 1% C 100% 9%
Watchever GmbH Germany C 100% 100% C 100% 160%
L'Olympta {b) France € 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Aadionomy Group 26 Belgium C 64% 64% na - -
CanalQlymma 3 France c 100% 100% na
New Initiatives
Dallymotion 21 France ¢ 90% 9% na
Group Vivend: Africa 31 France C 100% 100% na -
Vivendi Contents N France C 100% 100% na -
Boulogne Studios 26 France C 100% 100% na -
Other
Telecor ltaha 22 ltalia E 21% 15% na na na
Poktel Investment {Elektrim Telskomumkacya) Paland C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Discontinued businesses
Global Village Telecom S A. 29 Brazil na - - C 100% 100%

C: Consolidated; E: Equity; na: not applicable.

a. VSTV {Vietnam Satellite Digital Television Company Limited) is held 49% by Canal+ Group and 51% by VCTV, a subsidiary of VTV (the
Vietnamese public television company). This company has been consolidated by Vivendi given that Canal+ Group has both operational
and financial control over it pursuant to a general delegation that was granted by the majority shareholder and pursuant to the
company’s bylaws.

b. L'Olympia was transferred from Universal Music Group to Vivendi Village as from January 1, 2015
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Note 25 Statutory auditors fees

Fees paid by Vivendi SA in 2015 and 2014 to its statutory auditors and members of the statutory auditor firms (including fees related to
discontinued operations in 2015 and 2014 at prorata temperis, if any) were as follows:

KPMG S A Ernst & Young et Autres

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Total
{in millions of euras) 2015 204 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Statutory audit, certification, consolidated and
individual financial statements audnt
Issuer 06 06 20% 10% 6.6 07 10% 10% 12 13
Fully consolidated subsidiaries 14 41 47% 73% 52 55 82% 75% 66 96
Other work and services directly related to the
statutory audit
Issuer 01 0.5 3% 9% 0.2 03 3% 4% 03 08
Fully consolidated subsidiaries 0.2 0. 7% 7% 0.3 05 5% 7% 05 0.6
Subtotal 23 53 % MN% 6.3 10 100% 5% 86 123
Other services provided by the netwark to fully
consohdated subsidiaries
Legal, tax and social matters 0.6 0.2 20% 3% - 0?2 - 3% D6 04
Other 01 02 3% 3% - 01 - 1% 0.1 0.3
Subtotal 07 04 2% 6% - 03 - 4% 0.7 0.7
Total 3.0 5.7 100% 100% 6.3 1.3 100% T0% 93 130

Note 26  Audit exemptions for UMG subsidiaries in the United Kingdom

Vivendi S.A has provided guarantees to the following UMG subsidiaries, incorporated in England and Wales, under the registered number
indicated, in order for them to claim audit exemptions, with respect to fiscal year 2015, under section 479A of the UK Companies Act 2006.

Name Company Number Name Company Number
Backcite Limited 02358972 Universal Music Holdings (UK} Limited 00337803
Centenary UK Limited 03478918 Universal Music Leisure Limited 03384487
EGW USD 08107583 Universal Music Publishing MGB Holding 05092413
E.M.l. Overseas Holdings Limited 00403200 UK Limited

EMI {IP) Limited 03984464 Universal SRG Artist Services Limited 01890289
EMI Group Electronics Limited 0046161 Universal SRG Group Limited 00284340
EMI Group Holdings (UK} 03158108 Universal SRG Music Publishing Copyrights 02873472
EMI Group International Holdings Limited 01487770 Limited

EMI Group Worldwide 03158106 Universal SRG Studios Limited 03056388
EM! Limrted 00053317 V2 Music Group Limited 03208625
EMI Recorded Music (Chile) Limited 07934340 Virgin Music Group 02259343
EMI Regords UK Holdco Limited 06388809 Virgin Records Overseas Limited 00335444
UMGI {ATW) Limited 05103127 VAL 1 Limited 03967882
Universal Mus:c (UK} Holdings Limited 03383881
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Note 27  Subsequent events

The significant events that occurred between the closing date and February 10, 2016 {the date of the Management Board meeting that
approved Vivendi's Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015) were as follows:

e On January 13, 2016, Vivend unwound the hedge denominated in USD of the Activision Blizzard shares that it held, and sold its
entire interest. The cash proceeds from these transactions amounted to $1,083 milfion, i.e., €976 million. The unwinding of these
transactions also enabled Vivendi to recover a cash deposit of $0.4 billion (please refer to Note 12};

o  On February 3, 2016, following the coupon detachment on February 1, 2016, Vivendi distributed a second interim dividend with
respect to fiscal year 2015 for €1,318 million {please refer to Note 15}; and

e As of February 10, 2018, Vivendi held 64.8 million treasury shares {please refer to Note 15).
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